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Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

- The performance and the results of operations of Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) as set out in this annual report
are historical in nature and past performance is not a.guarantee of future performance. This annual report may contain forward- Iooking statements and opinions (including
statements, figures, plans, images and other information) that involve nsks and uncertainties. Actual tg\‘sults may.also differ materially from expectations diseussed in such
forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the. Group nor any of its directors, employees or ag‘e&ts\ shall assume any obllgations or liabilities in the event that any

forward-looking statements or opinions does not matenalise or turns out to be incorrect. N : o
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Guangshan Zensun Scholar Mansion

SELIER ZEFENT

Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) was founded in 1965 and listed on
the Main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
since 1972. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) primarily
engages in property development, property investment, project management and
sale services, hotel operations and securities trading and investment in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and overseas.

With the change of controlling shareholder of the Company since July 2015, the
Group has been expanding its business in the property development sector in the
PRC. From mid-2015 and up to 2024, the Group completed 161 land acquisitions
through tenders, public listings for sale auctions and other merger and acquisitions
in support of the land reserves for property development business in Henan
Province, Beijing and Hubei Province. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had
84 completed property projects and/or sub-phases and 22 on-going complex
property projects on hand with 90 land parcels under development and planning
constituting the Group’s land reserves with an aggregate site area of approximately
6.3 million square metres (“sq.m.”) and aggregate estimated gross floor area (“GFA”)
of approximately 13.5 million sg.m. in the PRC. In return, it is expected that the
land reserves will bring to the Group an estimated saleable/leasable GFA under
development of approximately 2.8 million sg.m. and estimated GFA under planning
of approximately 2.4 million sg.m. The Group has built up strong land reserves for
the Group’s property development business in the PRC for the next three to four
years with a strong presence in Henan Province. In the foreseeable future, the
Company will continue to identify new property development projects and bid for
land use rights of selective land parcels in the PRC with focus on Henan Province,
as well as other selective first and second tier cities in the PRC. Since 2022, the
Group has started to operate a hotel, namely, Zensun Jianguo Hotel, the first LOFT
themed space art hotel in Zhengzhou City, the PRC.

In the United States (“USA” or “U.S.”), the Group holds approximately 5.6% equity
interest over a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) listed on the New York Stock
Exchange (“NYSE”), Global Medical REIT, Inc. (“GMR”) as of 31 December 2024,
and continues to share GMR’s growth through receipt of dividend income, thereby
achieving long-term capital appreciation of the Group’s investment.

The Company will make use of the Group’s financial, human and technological
resources to enhance its portfolio, asset base and brand image in the PRC, USA
and overseas with an aim to create new sustainable revenue streams and enhance
its shareholder value.
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
FREEA

Dear Shareholders,

[, on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Zensun Enterprises Limited (hereinafter referred to
as the “Company”, and its subsidiaries, collectively,
the “Group”), am pleased to present you the
consolidated annual results and business review of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024

(the “Year”).
ERNELRER :

AANERREBEXARQAB(ATEBE N AR
Al MEMBAR(GEIAEE DEES([EF
g DMARBURREEREEHE20245F12 A
SIHNER(AEE DEEEENEHERE -

In 2024, China’s real estate market still showed an overall trend of adjustment. 20244 - B EHETIZERE LA IR FHELES -
Faced with the cyclical challenges of the industry, the central and local TE¥472 BB B Pk Hr o R0 & 4% Hb 75 BT e 48
governments at all levels successively introduced measures to stabilize the market, &EMHMNERERERT[ZREFHETS KD
explicitly stating the need to “promote the stabilization and recovery of the real &)  BHRTARINEET(ESE  REREHEHRE
estate market”, which sent a strong signal of property market stabilization. The ﬁ%gz}x& BWEEAELDL  EBEEBBIEREF

policy goals were aimed at turning around the industry’s fundamentals and injecting  &f » BIFT B - £B ML - EHEHE B4 O -
confidence into the market. The Group actively seized the policy benefits with ’féjs&ﬁ ﬁgzm ZEIEHEBIET —ERK
innovative thinking, and took advantage of the favorable situation. It has achieved C REBRAEERESETFREE -

certain results in various aspects such as sales efforts, fund recovery, quality
delivery, and inventory reduction, thus laying a solid foundation for the Group’s
sustainable development.
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Zhengzhou Zensun West Lakeside Scholar Mansion

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s revenue and gross
profit were approximately RMB9,542.1 million and approximately RMB363.1
million, respectively, representing a decrease of about 52.4% in revenue and a
decrease of about 53.0% in gross profit compared to the same period in 2023. The
revenue and gross profit for this year mainly came from the property development
business in China. The decrease in revenue was primarily due to the combined
impact of a reduction in the saleable/leasable floor area (referred to as “floor area”)
of completed property development projects delivered by the Group this year
compared to 2023 and a decline in the average selling price (referred to as “average
price”) compared to 2023. The decrease in gross profit this year compared to
2023 was due to the recognition of several property projects with lower profit
margins within this year. The development progress of these property projects was
extended, resulting in unexpectedly higher construction costs. Additionally, under
the circumstances of weakened public purchasing desire and reduced consumer
power due to a combination of adverse factors (including the downturn in the
macroeconomy and the continued weakening of demand for real estate properties),
the selling prices of these property projects were under pressure.
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Under the general trend of the government’s continuous increase in policy support
and the stabilization of the real estate market, the Group remains confident. We
fully mobilize all positive factors and take a variety of measures to spare no effort
in achieving sales and capital recovery targets and ensuring the timely delivery
of projects. | believe that as long as all colleagues in the Group maintain their
composure, proceed steadily, and work together to advance all tasks, we will
surely be able to overcome difficulties, successfully navigate through the industry
correction period, and usher in a new stage of our light — footed and stable
development.

In 2024, against the backdrop of the real estate market not yet fully stabilizing, the
Group focused on the development and sales of existing projects and did not add
any new land reserves throughout the year. Looking ahead, the Group will continue
to fulfill the government’s “ensure the delivery of buildings” mission and steadily
advance the construction of new projects according to market conditions. We will
also strengthen sales and capital recovery management to ensure cash flow safety.
At the same time, we will continue to maintain good communication with investors
to lay a solid foundation for the Group’s sustainable development.

Overseas

In the United States, the Group currently holds interests in two real estate
investment trusts, namely GMR and American Housing REIT, Inc. (“AHR”), with
GMR being listed on the New York Stock Exchange. GMR has always focused
on acquiring top — notch, licensed specialty medical facilities in the United States.
It currently owns 190 medical and health care facilities with a net leasable area
of approximately 4.8 million square feet. The Group expects that GMR, with its
robust property portfolio, will continue its rapid development. As of 31 December
2024, the Group holds approximately 5.6% of GMR’s equity and receives dividend
income from GMR on a quarterly basis.

The Group currently controls 99% of the equity in AHR. At present, AHR owns
senior housing properties located in Oxford Derby, Kansas, and Oxford McKinney,
Texas. We will closely monitor the local market environment in the United States
and adjust our business strategies and development directions in a timely manner.
In addition, the Group owns a number of SOHO (Small Office/Home Office)
commercial — residential units and high — quality residential properties in Singapore
for rental and capital appreciation purposes. We will regularly review the Singapore
property market to explore market opportunities and development prospects in the
foreseeable future.
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Zhengzhou Zensun Golden Mile House
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
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Zhengzhou Zensun Zhenruishangjing
BMIER R L5

Appreciation B

“Stay confident and move forward steadily.” Throughout its journey, the Group [ERE{S0 + EERTT] - £ —KEKR - B FHEE

has relied on the care, support, and assistance of all shareholders, partners, and &5 « S{EZM - EAZEMBL  ZEMEH - &
customers, as well as the hard work of all employees. On behalf of the board BETHEZEE TEHNE - AARRREZTSMAKX
of directors, | would like to extend our sincere thanks and heartfelt respect to  BUA T BB A B2 E o

everyone.

Mr. Zhang Jingguo
Chairman, Executive Director, and Chief Executive Officer

RENE 4
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Hong Kong, 28 March 2025 B 202593 A28H
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HONG KONG AND OVERSEAS PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

BRKEIIMIFERAS

The Group owns a diverse range of residential, commercial properties and senior
housing communities located in Singapore, Hong Kong and the U.S..
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1. Dakota Residences

SINGAPORE PROPERTIES

The Group’s Singapore property portfolio is concentrated in locations near Mass
Rapid Transit (MRT) stations, Singapore’s railway system, ensuring convenience
and connectivity. The Group owns a portfolio of SOHO units at Southbank which
features high-ceilings and duplexes. These units are uniquely zoned for both
residential and commercial uses and hence generate strong rental yield. The Group
also owns a portfolio of residential properties at Dakota Residences adjacent to the
Dakota MRT station.

28&3. Southbank Soho

E bR S
NEBFMFEMEA S EF RTINS EIEHA - 2
W E = - AN % @ 7 Southbank ## B SOHO % {i 78
B UREERERATAEEL - ZSBEMEIFA
DB AIMEEEREERSE RS KEER - &
£ [E #£ Dakota Residences# & X E¥ %414 - Dakota
ResidencesHt #8Dakotatt i ©

HONG KONG PROPERTIES

1M

The Group owns two floors and two car-parking spaces in Wyndham Place, a
prime commercial office building located in the Central district of Hong Kong — the
central business district of the region. The Group currently uses one floor as its
headquarters and treats the remaining portion as investment properties for earning
rental income and/or capital appreciation.

ERUE

AEERERBEFOEEMEREEFTEMEENL - ZBFRERTRIEN
DA IRREHEF O - AEEBFE D —EEREE  ERHoBERR
By ARBRE S WA K REAEE -

U.S. PROPERTIES

The Group owns two senior housing communities
(one in Texas and one in Kansas) with total area of
approximately 98,700 sq.ft. which were held through
its U.S. subsidiary, AHR. The Group also owns freehold
land parcels with approximately 273,200 sg.m. in
California and two apartment residential units situated
on Wall Street in New York.

XEYE

AEEEBERER Y HBARAHRKE TRERE -
EEEE(—ERNERENN - —ERRBEMN) - | ol
EREA 498,700 F 57 R o 7 & M 7R 72 i B 4 - mwwm
273,200 K2 Kk A £ M B - WAERNEREES L

WA ABEEREL -

182. Glen Carr House, senior housing community
Glen Carr House K& (E/F 5%
38&4. Oxford Grand McKinney, senior housing community

Oxford Grand McKinney =& 1EEZ
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Xuchang Zensun Golden Mile House
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6 Luoyang Zensun City
&5 E R

11

Luoyang Zensun City
&85 I Pk

Xuchang Zensun Orchids Mansion
FrEERAMEERN

7 Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley Phase |l
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12

Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage Mansion

BN I PE AL B SE

Ruyang Zensun Scholar Court

KIZERERERE

8 Zhengzhou Zensun Longhushangjing
BRI IE I _EIR

13

Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids Mansion
(Valley-view Court)
BN IEREET (W RERE)

Guangshan Zensun Scholar Mansion

RILEREREN

9 Wuhan Zensun Scholar Mansion

RELHEREN

14

Zhengzhou Zensun Smart City B-08
Land Parcel
EP)1 IE 7 5 230 B-083h 51

Yichuan Zensun Yihe Horizons
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10 Xuchang Zensun Golden Mile House
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15

Shanggiu Zensun Scholar Mansion
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EAENER 2EERE

Project

Number  Property Project

Location

R

North of Jingnan 2nd Road and east of Jingkai
9th Avenue, Zhengzhou City
SHmERENL  BREARENE
East of the intersection of Dahe Road and
Guxu Road, Zhengzhou City
SNFATBRE AR AR

The intersection of east to Sanglin East Road

L
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS
ZitBRAZN%ER
1 Zhengzhou Zensun
Jingkai Plaza
N EAERRES
2 Zhengzhou Zensun
Xinghan Garden
INEREERR
3 Zhengzhou Zensun
Scholar Garden

EiNE

Zensun Zensun
Longhushangjing
BNEERALE

Zhengzhou Zensun River
Valley Phase |
(Green-view Garden No. 1)

SNEFTRH-H
(BREE-5R

Zhengzhou Zensun River
Valley Phase I
SNEFTRH-B

and north to Ruifeng Road, Zhengzhou City
DR FRR R RER

North of Chaoyang Road and east of
Zhongyi Road, Zhengzhou City
INTRERIL - RERNR

North of Lvda Road and west of Yuxiu Road, and
south of Chunxi Road, and west of
Jinzun Road, Zhengzhou City
GNmEERIY - RARNER
ERANE SRBIE

North of Lvda Road, east of Hongsong Road,
and Jinzun Road, south of Chunxi Road,
and east of Yuxiu Road, Zhengzhou City
SHmREAN  LBIR  SRRNER
FRANE  BAMNE

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

Ath quarter of 2017
NITEERER

4th quarter of 2017
NTEEMER

Ath quarter of 2019
N9EENER

4ih quarter of 2019
M19FEREE

4th quarter of 2019
MOFEMER

4th quarter of 2020 to
2nd quarter of 2021

NNFENFEE
WIEE-FE

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
MER%
il 3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Total
sitearea  Aggregated
(sqm)  GFA(sqm)

Type Approximately

BEBER EIEEER

(T5%) (T5R)

B# f #

Commercial 4773 21,748
[

Residential 34,439 66,103
fiz

Commercial 25,357 100,662
Bx

Residential 62,286 93,399
=2

Residential 132,111 176,845
fiz

Residential 186,648 191,971
fiz

Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately

Estimated

saleable/

Completed  leasable GFA
saleable/ under
leasable  development
GFA (sq.m,) (sqm)
BRI BRA
TE/88 fHTE/HE
E4ER BEER
(T5%) (T5%)
f #
211748 -
66,108 -
100,662 -
93,399 -
176,845 -
191,971 -

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately

SE R
BEER
(¥5%)

f




Project

Number  Property Project

LR

HEE

Location

R

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
FifcrANEEE (%)

7

Znengzhou Zensun River
Home Phase |
(Courtyard No. 1)

INEEZTR B
(EE-%R)

Znengzhou Zensun River
Home Phase I
(Courtyard No. 2)

INEEZTR -8
(2E-%R)

Zhengzhou Zensun
Prosperity Court
INEERRER

Zhengzhou Zensun
Voyage Mansion
YN EBEREE

Dengfeng Zensun City ¢
Yu Garden
BHERSHE

Dengfeng Zensun City
Xiang Garden
BB #E

Dengfeng Zensun City
He Garden
BYUEE AR

Dengfeng Zensun City ¢
Xi Garden
BHERNER

Dengfeng Zensun City
Tal Garden
EHERS5E

South of Xincheng Road, east of Yule Road,
and east of Xinxi Street, Zhengzhou City
SN  RERURRABENE

South of Xinyun Road, east of Yule Road, east
of Xinxi Strest and west of Tianshan Road,
Zhengzhou City

INTEERINE - RERIR
FEGNRRRUENE

South of Shisu Road and east of
Fengshuo South Road, Zhengzhou City
NTRERIE  ERERIR

West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, north of
Hanghai East Road, Zhengzhou City
SHTERETEABUE  ERREML

Southwest District of Intersection of Taihe Road
and Zhengtong Road, Dengfeng City
EHTATRER AR N ERRY

Northeast corner of Intersection of Hanque Road
and Tianzhong Road, Dengfeng City
BHTERRERPALNARY A

Northeast comer of Intersection of Yinghe Road
and Tianzhong Road, Dengfeng City
BATEARERTRRNARLA

Northeast comer of Intersection of Denggao Road
and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City
BHTERLRERARRNOFILA

Northwest comer of Intersection of Denggao Road
and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City
BMERLRARARANAELA

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

4ih quarter of 2019
M19FENEE

3rd quarter of 2021
WNFEZZE

2nd quarter of 2020
WNEE-ZFE

4th quarter of 2020 to
4th quarter of 2027

NNFENFEE
NIEENEE

3rdl quarter of 2020
NNFEZZR

3rd quarter of 2020
NNFE=EF

3rd quarter of 2020
NNFE=FE

3rdl quarter of 2021
WIFEZER

3rd quarter of 2021
NNFE=EF

Interest
attributable
tothe
Group

558
MER%
il 3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Total
site area

(sam)
Type Approximately

BiEwER
(T5%)
B# f
Residential 178,559
=2
Residential 188,643
=2
Residential 8,051
=2
Commercial 55,631
[
Residential 46,899
iz
Residential & 21,210
commercial
iz B3
Residential & 50,436
commercial
iz E%
Residential & 15,992
commercial
fiz %
Residential & 32,986
commercial
iz 2%

Annual Report 2024 — &~ U ELR

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m,)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately ~ Approximately

BirsEd
(£5%)
sq

289,951

210275

2,476

193,851

78,137

59,987

127,818

37,635

81,307

BAT
18/8%
REER
(F7%)
f

289,951

210275

2476

182,129

78,137

59,987

127,818

37,63

81,307

Estimated
saleable/
leasable GFA
under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BRA
fEre /B8
BEER
(T5%)

#

61,722

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately

SE R
BEER
(¥5%)

f
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Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[FREXEERAE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC

EAENER 2EERE

Interest
attributable
Project Actual/Estimated to the
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group
A5R
WERA
BES  NEER ER B/ EHRIRE fEx
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZiBRAZNFRE(R)
16 Xuchang Zensun Scholar Mansion  North of Nongda Road, south of Gui Hua 4th quarter of 2020 to 100%
HETHERER Nong Xuan Road and west of Gui Hua 4th quarter of 2022
Han Lin Road, Jianan District, Xuchang Gty 2020£ £ EEZ2022
HETERREARIY - REBHENE - EEMEE
REEMAINE
17 Zhengzhou Zensun South of North 3rd Ring Road and east of 3rd quarter of 2020 100%
Longshuishangjing Longhu Neihuan East Road, Zhengdong NNFE=ZR
NEREK LA New Distrct, Zhengzhou City
SNMIRMEL=RBIE - RANRRENR
18 Xinxiang Zensun Smart City ¢ North of Health Avenue and west of 4th quarter of 2020 100%
Rong Garden Central Avenue, Qlying Town, NNEERER
i A Central District, Xinwiang County
AR BRERARENA  RERRAEN
19 Xinxiang Zensun Smart City ¢ Intersection of Central Avenue and 4th quarter of 2021 100%
Yiang Garden Financial Road, Qlying Town, NANEERER
FATHESNS R Central District, Xinxang County
FRgBRERAERSRRR NN
20 Luoyang Zensun City East of West Ring Road and north of Tank Road,  4th quarter of 2017 100%
North Garden Phase 1 Jianxi District, Luoyang City NTEEREE
BELEIA-B BETRER SRR BRERARE
2 Zhengzhou Zensun Princess West of Zhengxin Highway and both east 1st quarter of 2019 100%
Lake Phase | and south of Princess Lake Xincun Town, N19FE-ZR
SNEERER-H Zhengzhou City
SmHREREHERRRES N R AER
2 Znengzhou Zensun Princess Lake  North of Xincun North Road and west of 4ih quarter of 2020 100%
Phase Il (Huanhuxian) Huarui Road, Xincun Town, Zhengzhou Gy~ 200025 E
INEEREA=H SHmIRER B ERRER
(FillER)
2 Zhengzhou Zensun Riverview East of Jingkai 14th Avenue and South of Jingnan - 2nd quarter of 2020 100%
Gerden 9th Roard, Jingkai District, Znengzhou Gity 202085 -%%

B A NPERRAEARERIR T EAERA

Type

fig

Residential
=

Residential
=2

Residential &
commercial

[ #%

Residential &
commercial

A%

Residential &
commercial

iz B%

Residential
=

Residential
=2

Residential &
commercial

[ #%

Total
site area

(sam)
Approximately

BEbER
(F7%)
f

115,449

58,338

40279

98,642

92,728

147,988

40819

31462

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m,)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

BirsEd
(£5%)
sq

305,318

96,549

45,126

96,465

185,261

22,672

81,951

119,251

BAT
18/8%
REER
(¥5%)
f

305,318

96,049

45,126

96,465

185,261

22,672

81,551

119,251

Estimated
saleable/
leasable GFA
under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BRY
fEre /B8
BYER
(T5%)

#

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately

SE R
BEER
(¥A%)

f
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRME BB/ BB IRE KEE  RR f # f # f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
4 Beijng Zensun Grand Garden ~ Huaifang Vilage & Xingong Vilage, 2nd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential 53,214 89,017 89,017 - -
S RERSH Nanyuan County, Fengtai District, Bejing MNEE-FR fiz
RTEREBAARENRIER
2 Bejing Zensun Yazhu Garden 5th Avenue District, Shunyi Newtown, 2nd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential "1 59,307 59,397 - -
FRIEREER Renhe Town, Shunyi District, Beling NNEEZZR fiz
FATEEENERSFHERR
26 Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage South of Heshou Quter Ring Road and 2nd quarter of 2021 100%  Commercial 11,215 38,029 38,029 - -
International Plaza (Phase west of Shuanghe Lake 2nd Street, and WNEEZZR [
INEBRRAREE -3 east of Heshou Outer Ring Road and
north of Wanhui Road, Zhengzhou City
INTERNERNG  EENEE
27 Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids West of Guihua 3rd Road and north of 2nd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential 43410 130,135 130,136 - -
Mansion (Valley-view Garden) reserve land of Government, WNEEZZR fiz
INEEBEER(UEER) Longhu Town, Xinzheng City
HOTERERZ=HNE  BREEDLML
2 Xuchang Zensun Golden East of Laodong North Road and south of 4th quarter of 2021 to 100%  Residential 60,948 144,381 2,101 1,674 -
Mile House Gui Hua Zhou Zhwang Street, 4th quarter of 2026 fiz
FELERILR Jianan District, Xuchang City NNFEMFEZE22
FETERELDIHNR - REBHENE EEMEE
29 Xinxiang Zensun Golden West of Xinzhong Avenue, southeast comer of  3rdl quarter of 2021 100%  Residential & 10,701 121,108 127,708 - -
Mile House (Phase Il intersection of Hongyuan Street and WNFEZEE commercia
HHTHAELER 8 Guihua Road, Xinxiang Ctty iz B%
FRmAAAENE  BREEREERNNEE
f
Kl Zhengzhou Zensun South of Qiine South Road and the west of 4th quarter of 2021 100%  Gommercial 13,442 107,388 107,388 - -
International Building Jiayuan Road Znengdong New Distric, NNFERER [
INEEERAR Zhengzhou City
NTIRFE ETERIE  ZEBIE
3 Znengzhou Zensun Voyage West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, south of 1st quarter of 2022 to 100%  Residential & 50,921 203,216 80,414 122,802 -
Garden (Phase ll Jingbei 4th Road Zhengzhou City 4th quarter of 2027 commercial
BNEBERER S INFERETCABNE  EHERIR WF5E-FREN ffz B%
EEMER
2 Znengzhou Zensun Boya Northwest corner of Intersection of Tashan Road st quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 1,1 37,269 37,269 - -
Court Phase ) and National Highway 310 Xingyang City N0EE-FE iz
INEBERER-5 SEMALASS0EERROEL A



18  Zensun Enterprises Limited EREXERATE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRME Bl /RiAIRE KEE  RR f # f # f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
3 Znengzhou Zensun Voyage West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, north of 3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 35,702 106,903 106,903 - -
Garden (Phase | Jingbe 1st Road Zhengzhou City NNFEZZE iz
INEEERE -3 SNTERETCABNA S
34 Wuhan Zensun Scholar Mansion Wt of the intersection of Chenggong 3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 46,888 164,108 164,108 - -
RETHZEER Avenue and Maoxing Road, Caician Stregt, 202055 =%% iz
Caidian District, Wuhan City
RETEAREALRI B ERRERNE
K Zhengzhou Zensun Yating South of Qiaohang Road (Xiangrui Road), 3rd quarter of 2022 to 100%  Residential 54,298 146,603 107,661 38,942 -
Mangion gast of Linghan Strest (Znenggang 7th Street),  4th quarter of 2026 =z
ONERREER Airport Harbour Zone, Zhengzhou City NNEEZFEEA
NTREERMBR(HERING RRE(DE  EEDNER
THHE
K] Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage East of Heshou Outer Ring Road and north of -~ 3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Commercial 10,701 40313 40313 - -
Interational Plaza (Phase I Wanhu Road, Zhengzhou Cty NNFE=FE [
IHEERRERRA—E SHm2REL  BENRRIR
37 Zhengzhou Zensun East of Longteng 2nd Strest, south of 3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 68,819 106,882 106,882 - -
Zhenniishangjing Ruyi River West 2nd Street, NNFE=ZE fiz
INEEER LR Zhengdong New Distrct, Zhengzhou City
SHTERIEER_GUR - WEAE_HNE
38 Zhengzhou Zensun Princess East of Huarui Road, west of Princess Lake and  3rd quarter of 2022 to 100%  Residential 154,901 308,773 107,863 200,910 -
Lake Phase | south of Binhe South Road, and 4ih quarter of 2027 fiz
(Yuehu Horizons) west of Zhengxin Highway, Xincun Town, NNEE-FEZ
SNERREH-H Zhengzhou City WTEERER
(B=s) SNmHTESRRRE  AEHEE - BTER
AR ERREE
3 Dengzhou Zensun Xintiand East of Sanxian Road and south of 2nd quarter of 2022 51%  Commercial 42,39 42,39 42,39 - -
BHEBHTXS Tuenje Road, Dengzhou City NRFEZ5E [

PAT=ERRA Bl

40 Zhengzhou Zensun West South of Hongmei Strest and west of 4th quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 51,39 132,121 132,121 - -
Lakeside Scholar Mansion Chuanyang Road, Gaoxin Distict, NNEERER =2
INEEERER Zhengzhou City
SNTRIERAISHENE  IBHMNE
i Fengan Garden East of Lingshan Road and west of 4th quarter of 2022 51%  Residential & 16,809 33,516 33,516 - -
LE) Yesheng Street, Dengzhou City NEEMEE commercia
SHBRWBLE - FBEHEE frz B%
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRME Bl /RiAIRE KEE  RR f # f # f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
£ Znengzhou Zensun Ecological - South of Yuwu Road, east of Pearl Road and 1st quarter of 2023 100%  Residential 74214 185,563 185,563 - -
Clty (No.1 and 2 Garden) east of Jingzhuang Road Guancheng Distrct, 20235 —5 fiz
ONEEES(-¥RA-%  Zhengzhou Cly
k) INMERERRRMNE  FRENR
HHBIR
IX] Zhengzhou Zensun South of Longhu Neihuan East Road, east of 1st quarter of 2023 100%  Residential 45,506 77,118 7,118 - -
Fenghuashangjing Chunle Street, Zhengdong New District, NBEE-ZR iz
NEELELR Zhengzhou City
INTERFERANRRANE  BEEUR
4 Zhengzhou Zensun South of Yinghua Road and east of 2nd quarter of 2023 o 100%  Residential 84,186 212,465 58,226 164,239 -
Xin Harbour Home Century Avenue, north of Lianhua Road and 4th quarter of 2027 =2
INEERER west of Shenzhou Road, Xuedian Town, NFEFFANE
Xinzheng City EM5E
FENEEEtENERE - BEEHUR
ERRRIE BBER
4 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Southeast comer of the Intersection of Shaolin ~ 2nd quarter of 2023 o 100%  Residential 55,405 127,110 127,110 - -
Rui Garden Avenue and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City 3rd quarter of 2023 fiz
BYLIEH +5E BUmOMABRERRRINNRAA NBEEFFENN
55-Zg
4 Dengzhou Zensun West of Bejing Avenue and north of 2nd quarter of 2023 o 100%  Residential 64,028 160,069 117,000 43,069 -
Kaiyue Mansion Lingshan Road, Dengzhou City 4th quarter of 2027 =2
YNEBARER PN RAERE - B NREEFEREN
EEMER
a7 Nanyang Zensun Scholar Court ~ North of Dushi Road and west of 2nd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential & 25,298 88,460 88,460 - -
ARTAEEER Xindong Road, Nanyang Ciy 2nd quarter of 2024 commercia
BBEmRERN  FRRNE NREEFEZNU fix %%
FE2ER
48 Zhengzhou Zensun Skyline South of Balyun Road, and east of Runan Road, ~ 2nd quarter of 2023 o 100%  Residential & 50,148 100,179 218 58,046 -
Lake Court Phase | Shangje District, Zhengzhou City 4th quarter of 2027 commercial
BNEBZHLR(-8) YN EERAZRNE LERIR NEE-BEEN iz A%
EEMER
49 Luoyang Zensun City North Southwest and southeast comer of intersection of - 3rd quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 52,1712 159,771 159,771 - -
Garden Phase I Kewen Road and Qunan Road, Janxi Distrct, 20236 £=%F commercial
REIES R S(ER) Luoyang City 2 B2

RETRERR R ERER AN AR A



20  Zensun Enterprises Limited 1EFBEXERANE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
ERS  MREE BRME Bl /RiAIRE KEE  RR f # f # f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
50 Hualbin Zensun Scholar West of Chuxiang Avenue, north of Chaoyang ~ 3rd quarter of 2023 90%  Residential & 53,764 118,280 118,280 - -
Mansion Phase | Sireet, and south of Qingnian Street, NBFE=ZE commercia
FRIEEREN-H Hualbin Count, Xinyang City 2 B2
EETERALIENERN FEELHREES
]
51 Huaxian Zensun West of Jigfang Road and north of Xinda Road,  3rd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential 55,720 111,441 11,441 - -
Orchids Mansion Hua County, Anyang City 3rd quarter of 2024 fiz
EELENERR ZETARRIRE  HERL NBEE=FFE0U
55-%g
5 Ruyang Zensun Scholar Court ~ South of Yonghui Road, north of Weishier Road,  3rd quarter of 2023 o 100%  Residential & 84,043 176,419 49,050 40,361 87,008
FRBIERERER south of Weishier Road east of Liuling South ~4th quarter of 2027 commercia
Road, west of Malan West Road, County South 2023 E=ZE 20007 fiz E%
New District, Ruyang County, Luoyang Ciy FEMEE
BETAREERREAERE BT AL
YRmRR  BHERE  SEVEETCR
B ARERR SHERE
53 (Gongyi Zensun Scholar Mansion  East of Qinglongshan Road, south of Sugin Road  3rd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential 51815 93,267 85,765 7502 -
No. 1 Garden Oty Greenland, and east of Jinniushan Road, 4t quarter of 2025 =z
BRIHERER-HR Gongyi Oty WREEZFREN
EETETUER  BRILER HER EEMEE
il
54 Xinxiang Zenstn Golden South of Kelong Avenue and east of 3rd quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 45,501 159,569 159,569 - -
Mie House (Phase | Xiner Street, Xinxiang City NBEE=ZR commercia
FALERILE -4 FETHRRENG  BoENE ENH
55 Guangshan Zensun East of Zishui Street, north of Paifong Road, 3rd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential & 51,847 129,616 66,889 62,721 -
Scholar Mansion Guangshan County, Xinyang City 4th quarter of 2026 commercial
RUEHEEER EETRLELAKRERE - AR NBFEZERZ20% fz &%
EEMER
56 Xinyang Zensun Golden East of Yangshan Sports Park, Huaibin County,  3rd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential & 46,435 102,167 93,684 8,473 -
Mile House Xinyang City 4ih quarter of 2026 commercial
(Yangshan New District) BEMEREELBELRRE NEEZFEEA iz B2
EREERILR(FIHE) EEMER
57 Weihui Zensun Golden Northeast comer of the intersection of Bigan 3rd quarter of 2023 to 90%  Residential & 43,964 109,911 109,911 - -
Mie Court Avenue and Zhenxing Road, Weihui City 4th quarter of 2024 commercial
ERIFHEE R T AERRRAR AR A NBFEZZEZ iz B
NUFEMER



Project

Number Property Project

LR

HELE

Location

Rt

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
EREEE L ESELE )

58

5

60

61

62

63

64

65

Dengzhou Zensun Xinyu City
YNEEHTH

Befing Zensun Xinghai Court
FREBRESR

Shanggiu Zensun
Scholar Mansion
BETHERER

Gongyi Zensun Heluo Horizon
ESIHIAER

Dengzhou Zensun Pearl Lake

SN EERRA

Yichuan Zensun Yihe Horizons
FIEBFTER

Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids
Mansion (Valley-view Court)

BNCEREZR(hREE

Xinxiang Zensun Orchids
Meansion Phase |
FRIEREER-H

South of Renmin Road and east of
Sanxian Road, Dengzhou City
PHTARERE  ZBREH

East of Yingyi Street, west of Yingtong Street,
south of Yinghong Road and north of Yingzhi
Road, Yinghai Town, Daxing District, Bejing

IRAEEREERERSY BIEAL
BERLHR  LERER

East of Ziing Road and south of Yuhang Road,
Suiyang District, Shanggju City
BETESREAREN  FHEEH

West of Baiyunshan Road and south of
Renhe Road, Gongyi City
2ETAZLEE AR

North of Yingbin Avenue and east of Dongfu
Road, Dengzhou City
BilmPER et FRAEY

North of Yilong Avenue and east of Binhe Avenue,
Yichuan County, Luoyang City
BETRIEFRAENS - BTABIR

South of Guhua 1st Road, west of Qiushi Road,
north of Guihua 2nd Road and west of
reserve land of Government,

Longhu Town, Xinzheng City

TOmEAESE-HIE  BREEDINE
FERNRRBE RN

North of Fuyu Road, west of Znengtong Strest
and south of Xinyan Road, Gudingzhai Town,
Xinxiang County

FRELEFEREANE  HRGNARERR
Wi

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

4ih quarter of 2023
NRBFENEE

4th quarter of 2023
NBFEMER

4th quarter of 2023 to
4th quarter of 2027

NBEENFEE
NTEERER

Ath quarter of 2023
N3FEMER

4th quarter of 2023
NBEEMER

3rd quarter of 2023 to
4ih quarter of 2027

NBFEZERE
NIEEMER

4th quarter of 2023 to
4th quarter of 2027

NBEFENFEE
NTEERERE

3rd quarter of 2023
N3FE=FE

Interest
attributable
tothe
Group

558
MER%
il 3

51%

100%

100%

100%

51%

100%

100%

90%

Total
site area

(sam)
Type Approximately

BiEwER
(T5%)
B# f
Residential a7
iz
Residential 47,892
fiz
Residential 67,802
fiz
Residential 20,004
iz
Residential 53,734
iz
Residential & 202,883
commercial
iz 5%
Residential 93,497
fiz
Residential & 40,105
commercial
iz 5%

Annual Report 2024

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m,)

SEEER
(F5R)
)

102,735

103,979

196,62

40,008

122,362

239,460

280,490

“ERIMEER

Estimated
saleable/

Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
saleable/ under  GFAunder
leasable  development planning

GFA (sq.m,) (sqm) (sqm)

Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately — Approximately
BRI BRY

TE/RE GHTE/AE R
EEER BYER BEER
(%) (T7%) (Frk

f i f
102,735 - -
103,979 - -
126,043 70,582 -
40,008 - -
122,362 - -
92,736 33,065 113,669
178,091 5,668 96,731
80,210 - -

80,210

21




22 Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[EFEBEXERANE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/BE RHTE/BR  EER
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRME BB/ BB IRE KEE  RR f # f 8 H]
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
66 Lushan Zensun Golden Southeast of the Intersection of 1st quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 32,602 48903 28,436 20,467 -
Mile House Fanrong Road and Wenxing Road, 4ih quarter of 2027 commercial
B TELHER Lushan County, Pingclingshan City NUFE-FFE REH
FRLTEFERBRENERRNORR NTEERER
67 Huaiyang Zensun South of Huaining Avenue and north of 1st quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 42,841 85,682 73409 12,213 -
Longhu Horizons Chunrong Road, Huaiyang District, 4ih quarter of 2026 commercial
ERTERNES Zhoukou Cly NUEE-FEE iz &%
BATERREEAEE  BRAL NBEEMER
68 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Southeast comer of the Intersection of Diznong  3rd quarter of 2024 100%  Residential 40713 73,000 73,090 - -
Jing Garden Road and Zhongyi Road, Dengfeng City NUFE=FE iz
BHIE +ER ETHARERERNNREA
Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Southwest corner of the Intersection of Shaolin -~ 3rd quarter of 2024 100%  Residential 12,185 21,933 21,933 - -
Ya Garden Avenue and Lunong Road, Dengfeng City 20455 =3% fiz
BHERN R BHMSMAEEERRRNNERA
69 Xinxiang Zensun Smart City South of Health Avenue and west of Central 3rd quarter of 2024 100%  Residential & 52,387 83,819 8,741 - 75,078
Phase Il Avenue, and intersection of Central Avenue and  4th quarter of 2028 commercial
AR Financial Road, Qiying Town, Central District,  2004£3=%5% iz @2
Xinxiang County NBFEREE
THG ERERAABIE  RRAENER
RAREESRELIN
70 Zhengzhou Zensun Ecological  North of Yuliu Road and west of Xiangjiang Road,  3rdl quarter of 2024 100%  Residential 38,685 96,630 96,630 - -
City No.5 Garden Guancheng District, Znengzhou City NUFEZEE fiz
INEEEEITRR INTEHER RN REIRNE
n Xinmi Zensun City ¢ South of Qingping Street, west of 3rd quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential 79029 132,651 121432 1,219 -
Xiang Garden Fuxi Road, north of West Strest and 4th quarter of 2026 =2
HREES-#E east of Chengyun Road, Xinmi City NUEEZZFEE

FETERAGRE  TEAEE BAEL & 06FRLER




Project

Number Property Project

Location

Rt

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)

ERS  MREE
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
n Dengfeng Zensun
Yinghe Mansion
EHEERTER
13 Dengfeng Zensun Yingbin
House Phase [ ¢
Qiyue House

4

%

76

I

BHIAOEEZ -5
HER

Luoyang Zensun City North
Garden Phase Il
AREEIR=B(HE)

Zhengzhou Zensun Zuoan

BNEELE

Zhengzhou Zensun Xinrui
Scholar Mansion
BN EBRER

Zhoukuo Zensun Golden
Mie House
BREEEER

South of Yinghe Road, north of South
2nd Ring Road, Dengfeng City
BUTETANE BRI

Northeast corer of the intersection of Shaolin
Avenue and Luhong Road, Dengfeng City
EHTORABERRRRNOELA

Southwest and southeast corner of
intersection of Kewen Road and
Qunan Road, Jianxi District, Luoyang City
BT ERRMERERARA
ERARREA

West of Wenming Road, north of
Planning Third Road and south of
the land in Xizhangzhai Village,
Longhu Town, Xinzheng City
HEmEMRURREN  RE=HLAR
ERENLHRA

West of Honghu Road, south of Government
Land of Longhu, Longhu Town, Xinzheng City
FEmREAREAEN ERER RN

South of Jiaotong Avenue and east of Tongda
Road, Zhoukou City
BRmR@xEmE BEARE

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

3rd quarter of 2024
NUFE=EE

4th quarter of 2024 to
4ih quarter of 2026

NUFENFEE
NBFENFE

3rd quarter of 2024 to
4ih quarter of 2026

NUFE=FEE
NBFEMER

3rd quarter of 2024 to
4ih quarter of 2026

NUFE=FEE
NBFEMER

3rd quarter of 2024 to
4ih quarter of 2027

NUFEZERE
NIEEMER

4th quarter of 2024 to
4th quarter of 2027

NUFENFEE
NTEERER

Interest
attributable
tothe
Group

558
MER%
il 3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

56%

Type

fig

Residential &
commercial

[ A%

Residential &
commercial

A%

Residential &
commercial

A%

Residential
fiz

Residential
=2

Residential
fiz

Total
site area
(sqm)

Annual Report 2024

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m,)

“ERIMEER

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(squm)

Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately

BEbER
(F7%)
f

30,727

41543

69,655

57,015

13,734

52,941

SEEER
(F5R)
)

76,819

78,932

246,647

91,311

68,672

108,824

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA
saleable/ under
leasable  development
GFA (sq.m,) (sqm)
BRI BRA
TE/88 fHTE/HE
E4ER BEEE
(T5%) (T5%
f i
76,819 -
70,706 8,226
139,016 107,631
68,482 -
43810 -
49,363 63,287

REH
BEER
(¥A%)

f

22,829

24,862

46,174
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRME BB/ BB IRE KEE  RR f # f # f
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZirBRAZNFRE(R)
8 Yuanyang Zensun Golden Mie -~ West of Jinhua North Street and north of 4ih quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 51,298 92,326 19,259 - 73,067
House Huanghe Avenue, Yuanyang County 4th quarter of 2028 commercial
FREFHLR REGSEIERE ETRELH NUFEMERE fiz #E%
NBEENFR
79 Shangcheng Zensun East of Zhenxing Road and north of Lishu Street,  3rd quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 45,756 100,662 43016 21983 35,063
Scholar Mansion Shangcheng County, Xinyang City 4th quarter of 2027 commercial
BYIAEEER EETEIARRAR  REa) NUFEZZRE frz B
NTEERER
80 Huaibin Zensun Golden East of Honghe Road and south of Qingnian 4th quarter of 2024 to 90%  Residential & 12,122 26,669 16,848 9,821 -
Mie House Street, Huaioin County, Xinyang City 4th quarter of 2027 commercial
ERIHLLR EETEREATRRE  FERH NUFENFEE fiz E%
NAEEMER
81 Luohe Zensun West of Mangshan Road and north of Mudanjiang  3rd quarter of 2024 to 90%  Residential & 47,604 119,011 20,187 27,637 70,187
Chenyue Horizons Road, Demonstration Zone, Luohe City 4th quarter of 2028 commercial
ENIARNES ENTREEDIAEE AR NUFEZZRE iz B
NBEEMER
82 Luoshan Zensun East of Chungiu Road and north of Longshan 3rd quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 33819 74,403 35,987 19,039 19,317
Scholar Mansion Avenue, Luoshan County, Xinyang City Ath quarter of 2028 commercial
BITHEEER EETRLEENERE BN NUFEZZEE EN
NBFEMER
83 Yucheng Zensun North of Songshan Road, Yucheng County, 3rd quarter of 2024 to 100%  Residential & 51410 128,526 67,456 33,332 20,131
Scholar Mansion Shanggiu City 4th quarter of 2027 commercial
RNEEEEER BETERESELE NUEE=FRE ENH
TFENER
84 Znengzhou Zensun Smart City - West of Zhengxin Express Road and north of -~ 4th quarter of 2024 1o 100%  Residential 51,98 129,962 76,373 20347 24,282
B-08 Land Parcel auxiiary road of Ring Expressway, 4ih quarter of 2027 =2
DI EERZHB 085 Longhu Town, Xinzheng ity NUFENEEE

FOTRMATRRERER  BHBRSELN  AEEREE




Project

Number Property Project

LR

HELE

Location

Rt

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING
35/ 882 %5R

1

Znhengzhou Zensun River
Valley (Green-view
Commercial Gentre)

INEBTEN-
REREDL

Znhengzhou Zensun Boyue
Commercial Centre

[ABRERRL

Zhengzhou Zensun
River Home Lane
NEBZAE

Zhengzhou Zensun
River Home Horizon
BNEBFES

Dengfeng Zensun City ¢
Xin Garden
BHEESLE

Zhengzhou Zensun
Lehuo City Gongyi City
INEEEEnE

Xuchang Zensun Orchids
Mansion

FEIAREER

Zhengzhou Zensun
Boya Court (Phase )
BNEEREEE-H

North of Lvda Road, and east of
Wenyun Road, Zhengzhou City
FiimgER - ERIR

South of Xincheng Road, and east of
Nanbel Avenue, Zhengzhou Gty
SRR - BEAENE

South of Xinyun Road and east of Fengshuo
South Street, Zhengzhou City
YNTEERIAE SRR

West of Xinxi Strest, and south of
Kalyuan Road, Zhengzhou City
INTRTES  HELE

Northwest corner of the Intersection of Yudai
Road and Dizhong Road, Dengfeng City
BN IR ER N OEL A

Zhaoling Village and Caodian Village,
Mihe Town, Gongyi City
EETATERETRERN

South of Guihua Zhuyuan Street and

east of Guihua Yongyian Road,

Jianan District, Xuchang City
FETERERANEEINE  RANEMIR

Southwest of the intersection of Luyin West Road

and Tashan Road Xingyang City
KETRERRERLARNOREY

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiMIRE

4ih quarter of 2028
NBFENEE

4ih quarter of 2025
NBFENEE

4th quarter of 2028
NBFEMER

2nd quarter of 2025
NBEE-FE

4ih quarter of 2028
NBFENEE

4th quarter of 2028
NBFEMER

2nd quarter of 2025 10
4th quarter of 2027

NBEEFRE
NTEERER

2nd quarter of 2025 0
4ih quarter of 2027

NBEE_ERE
NEEMER

Interest

attributable

tothe
Group

558
MER%
il 3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Total
site area

(sam)
Type Approximately

BiEwER
(T5%)
B# f
Commercial 28,062
[
Commercial 31,005
[
Commercial 14,647
[
Residential 33,446
iz
Residential 43728
=2
Residential, 238,138
commercial,
catering &
public utiity
it d%
2504
%
Residential 62,832
iz
Residential 63,577
=2

Annual Report 2024

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m,)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

SEEER
(F5R)
)

84,217

108,519

32,23

99,996

69,965

229,340

173,708

184,372

BAI
18/8%
REER
(F7%)
f

Estimated
saleable/
leasable GFA
under
development
(sqm)

“ERIMEER

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(squm)

Approximately - Approximately

B
e/ 28
BEER
(¥5%)

)

84,217

108,519

99,996

147413

173,708

184,372

REH
BEER
(¥A%)

f

32,003

69,965

81,927

25
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER EEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRME Bl /RiAIRE KEE  RR f # f # f
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR/BUR2N2ER(R)
9 Xinxiang Zensun Smart City South of Health Avenue and west of Central 4ih quarter of 2028 100%  Residential & 150,518 283,334 - - 283,334
FATERZ Avenue, and intersection of Central Avenue and - 2028 £ 105 % commercia
Financial Road, Qiiing Town, Central District, iz #%
Xinxiang County
THG 2RERAABIE  RRAENER
RAREESRELIA
10 Zhengzhou Zensun Skyline South of Baiyun Road, and west of Dengfeng 4t quarter of 2028 100%  Residential & 47,847 95,693 - 39,061 56,632
Lake Court Phase I Road, Shangjie District, Znengzhou City NBFENEE commercia
INEEERR-H N LERAERNE - BRI ENH
1 Zhengzhou Zensun East of Tonghang Fifth Road and north of Anyang  4th quarter of 2028 100%  Commercial 93,643 284,108 - 53,881 180,227
Zhengshang Road Shangjie District, Znengzhou Cty NBEEMER [
Commercial Centre ENDLERRRTRNE  BERMY
IHEAD LERL
12 Zhengzhou Zensun South of Yuwu Road, east of Pearl Road, 2nd quarter of 2025 to 100%  Residential 115,340 307,791 - 141,137 166,654
Ecological City west of Weihe East Road, and south of 4t quarter of 2027 fiz
(No.6 to 7 Garden) Yunyang Road and west of Pangzhuang Road, 202525 -3E %
SNEEERA Guancheng Distict, Znengzhou Cty NEEMER
(AHRRELER) SHTERRERRIE  BRENR
RURRERBARMNL - BIRNER
EGRE BHAR
13 Xinxiang Zensun Orchids North of Fuyu Road, west of Znengtong Street ~ 2nd quarter of 2025 to 90%  Residential & 44948 89,896 - 39,169 50,721
Mansion Phase Il and south of Xinyan Road, Gudingzhai Town, dth quarter of 2027 commercial
EHTEEEER - Xinxiang County NBEE-FEE EERYH
TRECERENTANE MRGNERERE  00EE0EE
DS/
1 Huaibin Zensun Scholar West of Chuxiang Avenue, north of 2nd quarter of 2025 10 90%  Residential & 43,180 94,99 - - 94,99
Mansion Phase I Chaoyang Street, and south of Qingnian Street,  4th quarter of 2027 commercial
EETEEREN -4 Hualbin Count, Xinyang City NBEE-FEE iz BE
EETEREEERERN  FRELAR NTEENEE

EEmf




Interest
attributable
Project Actual/Estimated tothe
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group
A5R
WERA
BES  MEER ER B/ EHRIRE fEx
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR/BUR2N2ER(R)
15 Dengfeng Zensun Southwest area at the intersection of 4ih quarter of 2028 100%
Yingbin House Phase Il ¢ Zhongyi Road and Yudai Road, and NBFENEE
Yingbin House southeast corer at the intersection of
BHIAIBEE B Taihe Road and Yudai Road, Dengfeng Cty
LER EUTANRETRRRNAREA
RERETERRNOAEA
16 Dengfeng Zensun Songyue Southwest area at the intersection of 4t quarter of 2027 100%
Horizans (No. 10 3 Garden) Znhongyi Road and Yingxia Road, NTEENER
EHIREEES Yudel Road and Yingxia Road, and
(-5hz=%k) northeast area at the intersection of
Taishi Road and Cuixiu Road, Dengfeng City
EUTEERENERNNEREY
IRRENERINOERES -
AERERARINORLEY
17 Gongyi Zensun Scholar East of Qinglongshan Road, south of to 4th quarter of 2028 100%
Mansion No. 2 Garden Sugin Road City Greenland, and east of 008 FEMER
2EIHEEER-SR Jinniushan Road, Gongyi City
EETRLUER BRILRR HER
i e
18 Huixian Zensun Southwest comer of Yinbin Avenue and Xueyuan  2nd quarter of 2025 to 100%
Scholar Mansion Road, Huixian City, Xinxiang City 4ih quarter of 2027
BEEEER HATRETIE EEERRERA NBFE-FEE
NAEEMER
19 Luoyang Zensun Scholar Northeast comer of Sik Road Avenue and 4th quarter of 2028 100%
Mansion Qubel Road, Jianyi District, Luoyang Cy NEFEMER
BEIHEEER BETRERL R EEEHERLA
20 Shanggiu Zensun East of Suiyang Road and south of 2nd quarter of 2025 to 100%
Kaiyue Mansion Wenhua Road, Demonstration Zone of Ath quarter of 2028
AL EENER Urban-rural Integration, Shangqiu City N5EE-FEE
BETAA- B TEE  BRERE- ABFEMER

el

Total

site area

(sq.m)

Type Approximately

BiEwER

(T5%)

B# f

Residential 98,972
iz

Residential 146,813
iz

Residential 47,286
fiz

Residential & 37,065

commercial
iz E%
Residential & 70,095
commercial
fiz 2%

Residential 45,564

iz

Annual Report 2024

“ERIMEER

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
saleable/ under  GFAunder
Aggregated leasable  development planning
GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,) (sqm) (sqm)
Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately — Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
STREER EEER BYER BEER
(T5%) (%) (T7%) (TA%
# f # f
188,047 - - 188,047
220220 - 61,201 158,929
85,115 - 85,115 -
81,542 - 81,542 -
224,302 - - 224,302
132,135 - 59,933 72,202
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EFENER 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed ~ leasable GFA Estimated
Interest Total saleable/ under  GFA under
attributable sittarea  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated tothe (sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sq.m) (sq.m.) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately Approximately
BRI BRY
TE/RE GHTE/AE R
A5R BERER RREZER BEER BYER BEER
WEEH (F5%) (T5%) (%) (T7%) (¥AR)
ERS  MREE BRME Bl /RiAIRE fEE  RE f # f # f
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR/BUR2N2ER(R)
21 Xinmi Zensun Zhenyuan West of Huifeng Street, South of Pingyang Road ~ 4th quarter of 2028 100%  Residential 43,862 78,790 - 16,590 62,200
Horizong and east of Xinhui Street, Xinmi Clty NBFENEE iz
FELEERER FETHEER  FEARREEHE
2 Dengfeng Zensun Golden Mie -~ Northwest of the intersection of 3rd quarter of 2025 to 100%  Residential 42082 75,747 - 75,747 -
House Dengfeng City Fuyou Road and Yinghe Road, 4t quarter of 2027 fiz
CENEEE N BTERRERTRLN AR NBFE=FEE

NTEERER

Grand total Eh 6270883 13,533,361 8,208,588 2,795,794 2,438,979
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN W R

FINAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year”), the Group recorded revenue
of approximately RMB9,542.1 million and gross profit of approximately RMB363.1
million, with a decrease of approximately 52.4% as compared to revenue of
approximately RMB20,034.9 million and a decrease of approximately 53.0% as
compared to gross profit of approximately RMB772.7 million for 2023, respectively.
Revenue and gross profit of the Year and for 2023 were primarily derived from
the property development business in the PRC. The decrease in revenue during
the Year was mainly contributed by less delivery of saleable/leasable gross floor
area (“GFA”) from the delivery of the Group’s completed property development
projects during the Year as compared to 2023. The decrease in gross profit during
the Year as compared to 2023 was resulted from less delivery of the GFA and
the recognition of certain lower profit margin property projects during the Year,
which was caused by unexpected higher construction cost and suppressed selling
prices under the decreasing public purchasing desires and power derived from the
macroeconomic downturn and the continued depletion of demand in real estate
properties.

The Group had other income of approximately RMB7.2 million during the Year, with
a decrease of approximately 17.2% as compared to approximately RMB8.7 million
during 2023. It was primarily attributable to the decrease in interest income during
the Year.

The Group had net other losses of approximately RMB1,563.6 million during
the Year, as compared to net other losses of approximately RMB1,610.1 million
for 2023. The Group’s net other losses during the Year were mainly attributable
to (i) write-down of completed properties held for sale and properties under
development to net realisable value of approximately RMB1,391.1 million (2023:
approximately RMB1,273.2 million), (i) fair value loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately RMB89.3 million (2023: fair value
gain of approximately RMB40.3 million), (i) net exchange losses of approximately
RMB24.9 million (2023: approximately RMB64.3 million), (iv) impairment losses on
accounts receivable and other receivables of approximately RMB28.3 million (2023:
approximately RMB4.6 million), and (v) fair value loss on investment properties of
approximately RMB30.1 million (2023: fair value loss of approximately RMB8.0
million).

The Group’s sales and marketing expenses decreased by approximately 42.0%
from approximately RMB97.0 million for 2023 to approximately RMB56.2 million for
the Year. The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately 17.9%
from approximately RMB173.6 million for 2023 to approximately RMB142.5 million
for the Year. Such decreases were in line with less sales activities in the market and
the cost-cutting measures implemented by the Group in view of the continuous
downturn in the property market of the PRC during the Year.

The Group’s finance costs decreased by approximately 34.0% from approximately
RMB438.6 million for 2023 to approximately RMB289.7 million for the Year. The
decrease was primarily due to the combined effect of decrease in interests which
are eligible for capitalisation to properties under development and decrease in
interests on bank and other borrowings during the Year.

The Group’s income tax expenses decreased by approximately 30.7% from
approximately RMB709.3 million for 2023 to approximately RMB491.2 million for
the Year. The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in PRC CIT due
to the decrease in operating profits in the PRC during the Year.

KRERRE

REZE2024F12A31BIEFE([AFE]) - AEBER
BREHARES 42 1HETLREFHAREES63.1
BEJTT - DRIE2023F 2 WA AREE20,034.96 8
TR A #52.4% R EFHOAREI727TEE TR DL
53.0% o AFEE K2023F 2 W R EMNEBREFEH
MEBRER - AEERFZIRL HDEZHRAEER
AEERXIMNZEXRYEERBERXINZAILE ME
BT ([EERE ) K2023F /MM - REEE
FE2023F WA TR AFEAR 2 2REER D
DRERETHERREZMEEE  WBARELRE
KBTI REMENERT KSEERERAREER
FERBENTERNERT  BIEERSEEXNAR
EEBZE -

AEBPAFEREHMBANARE7T2EE L &
2028 FMMARBETEEBILRALH172% EEER
R A E R B AR D BT R o

REBMPAFEZ LM BEREFEN B ARE1,563.68
BT M2023F RIER B HmEEFEHARE1,610.1
BEL - AEERAFEZEMEBEBFENIETEZREA
ROMBBIEHEZERIWERERERYEEA#
BFEHNARKE1,3911HEL(2023F : HARKE
1,2732HE7T) » (WRAFEFABRZZERHEEZ
N EEEHARES.3HET(20234F « AFEWe
HAREA40.3EETT) - (i)ELEBFEOHAREKE24.9
AEIT(20234F : HYARBE4IFET) » (V)EKRIRR
K H b JE W 8 2R BB 1B 4 AR B28.8 5 B (2023
F:HARB46BET)  RVEEMEATFEEIE
HARBES0.1EBIT(2023F « R FEBBEHARE
8.0B&ETT) °

AEEZHERTSHES AHR2023FHAREI?.0
BB DR 0% ERFEHNARES62EETT
NEEZITHERH2023FHARE173.6AE TR
BT INERNEEHNARE1425FE T » P ET
BHEEEHRIRAEERAFEFREEHEMSH
FHER R E AR AT — 5 o

REE 2 BERKAH2023FH AR 438.6 A E TR
HBLO0RERFENHARKE280.7TAETT - LR TIE
EHRAFEFTAERENMEBRRTMEZNER
DIARARTT R BABEEF SR KR ERATE

REE 2 BT X R2023F N ARE709.38 & TR
PRIBOTHREARFENARKEAN2BET - B TY
ITEHRAFENTELE MR GNP RELE
PRASTUR A PTEL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year amounted to approximately RMB2,182.0 million (2023:
RMB2,298.5 million).

The basic loss per share for the Year was approximately RMB114.0 cents (2023:
RMB120.1 cents) which was due to the decrease in loss attributable to owners of
the Company during the Year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the Year
(2023: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property Development in the PRC

During the Year, the property development business in the PRC contributed
revenue of approximately RMB9,436.1 million (2023: approximately RMB19,917.7
million) and segment loss of approximately RMB1,592.0 million (2023: RMB1,554.4
million) to the Group. The decrease in segment revenue was attributable to the
decrease of GFA delivered to the property owners during the Year. The increase
in segment loss was mainly due to the increase in write-down of completed
properties held for sale and properties under development during the Year.

There were 19 newly completed property development projects in phases/sub-
phases delivered during the Year (while during the year ended 31 December 2023,
there were 24 newly completed projects delivered).

Together with the existing property projects completed in prior years, there were
approximately 1,327,000 sq.m. GFA delivered with average selling price (“ASP”) of
approximately RMB7,110 per sg.m. and recognised into revenue during the Year
as compared to that of approximately 2,088,000 sg.m. GFA delivered with ASP of
approximately RMB9,540 per sg.m. and recognised into revenue during 2023.

During the Year, with the continuous impact of economy downturn, the overall real
estate market in the PRC continued to experience a decrease in public purchasing
power. The selling prices of property projects were inevitably suppressed which led
to slowing down of sales and such situation was especially worsened for non-core
city locations. As a result of the foregoing, a write-down of completed properties
held for sale and properties under development of approximately RMB1,391.1
million (2023: approximately RMB1,273.2 million) for certain properties whose
selling price was not recoverable as expected to net realisable value was provided
during the Year.

In view of the abovementioned, the Group continues to adopt a conservative
approach and implementing cost-cutting schemes to maintain its competitive
and sustainable business development plan. Given the current severe real estate
market environment, the Group will remain conservative in reviewing its pace of
business expansion, and may adjust its project development plans and schedules
in response to the changing market conditions, as and when appropriate.

EREMER  REERNEARAGRERS AEBEAERES
BHABARE2182.08 8 L(20234F : AR¥?2,2098.5
BET) °

RAFEN  SRELXBBEHAARE114.095 (2023
F:ARE12019) TEHREAFEARRESR AL
1B A ETEL -

EFe TRERNAFE ZME (20235 « ) -

EBEE

FEYEERE

RAFER  FEVEBREEFSALAEERERMKELN
ARM9 43618 & T (2023%F : HARMKE19917.7H
B o EEBHOAREK,502.08&T(20234%F + A
R#1,55448587L) - DMl E R TR ANFEER
NFPEFCEEABRLOAB - DEEEENTIES
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TERZ ATEIRFENE 2B EHRMBRELEZE
EIMERERFVEHARE,3901.15E 7L (2023
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Project Management Services in the PRC

During the Year, the Group provided project management services in the PRC
and recorded revenue of approximately RMB17.5 million (2023: approximately
RMB32.2 million) and segment profit of approximately RMB9.5 million (2023:
approximately RMB16.7 million) from the provision of project management services
in the PRC to independent property owners. The decrease was primarily resulted
from fewer new project management services contracts entered into during the
Year.

Hotel Operations in the PRC

The Group operated a hotel in Zhengzhou City in the PRC since 2022 and
generated revenue of approximately RMB36.2 million during the Year as compared
to approximately RMB35.0 million for 2023 and segment profit of approximately
RMB17.1 million during the Year as compared to profit of approximately RMB14.8
million for 2023. The improved performance for this segment was mainly resulted
from more guests staying at the hotel during the Year as compared to 2023.

Property Investment and Management in the USA on AHR

The segment revenue derived from property investment and management on
AHR amounted to approximately RMB10.7 million for the Year and approximately
RMB15.3 million for 2023, and segment loss of approximately RMB10.6 million for
2023 as compared to segment loss of approximately RMB3.8 million for the Year
was mainly stemming from the fair value loss of investment properties recognised
in the USA for 2023.

Property Investment other than AHR

During the Year, the property investment in other regions other than AHR division
contributed to segment revenue of approximately RMB24.7 million (2023:
approximately RMB17.3 million). The turnaround of segment profit of approximately
RMB13.3 million for 2023 to segment loss of approximately RMB9.8 million for the
year was primarily due to the increase in fair value loss of investment properties
recognised in Hong Kong.

Securities Trading and Investment

During the Year, the Group’s securities business recorded segment revenue of
approximately RMB16.9 million with segment loss of approximately RMB72.5
million as compared to segment revenue of approximately RMB17.3 million with
segment profit of approximately RMB57.6 million for 2023. The turnaround of
segment profit for 2023 into segment loss for the year was primarily stemming
from the recognition of fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately RMB89.3 million during the Year (2023: fair value gain of
approximately RMB40.3 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity Position

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of the Group’s total cash and
bank balances including pledged deposits and restricted bank balances were
approximately RMB983.2 million (2023: approximately RMB1,843.4 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 46.7%. The total cash and bank
balances were mainly denominated in RMB, Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD” or “HK$”),
US Dollar (“USD” or “US$”), and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”).

As at 31 December 2024, certain bank balances and deposits of the Group
were pledged to certain banks and financial institutions as securities for (i) the
bank and financial institutions facilities granted to the Group and (i) the mortgage
loan facilities granted to the property buyers of the Group. The total pledged
deposits were approximately RMB123.7 million as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
approximately RMB130.9 million).

Capital Structure, Borrowings and Charges on the Group’s assets
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes bank and
other borrowings, loans from a related company, and amounts due to related
companies, net of the aggregate of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances and pledged deposits. The equity attributable to owners of the Company
comprised issued share capital and reserves.

As at 31 December 2024, net debt and equity attributable to owners of the
Company were approximately RMB13,590.7 million (31 December 2023:
approximately RMB13,332.1 million) and approximately RMB897.8 million
(31 December 2023: approximately RMB3,068.6 million), respectively. As at
31 December 2024, the Group’s aggregate borrowings including bank and
other borrowings, loans from a related company, and amounts due to related
companies amounted to approximately RMB14,573.8 million (31 December 2023:
approximately RMB15,175.5 million), of which approximately RMB13,453.5 million
(31 December 2023: approximately RMB13,987.8 million) were repayable within
one year or on demand, and approximately RMB1,120.3 million (31 December
2023: approximately RMB1,187.6 million) were repayable after one year. The
aggregate borrowings were mainly denominated in RMB, USD, SGD and HKD.

In addition to the 12.5% per annum fixed-rate interest for the US$160 million senior
notes due 2024 (the “2024 Notes”) and the US$200 million senior notes (i.e. the
2023 Notes), and the 7% per annum fixed-rate interest for the US$103.478 million
senior notes (i.e. the 2025 Notes), the Group’s bank and other borrowings carried
fixed interest rates ranging from 2.80% to 9.03% per annum and also various
floating interest rates linking up with international lending rates including Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate, Singapore Dollar Swap Offered Rate, Singapore Interbank
Offered Rate, London Interbank Offered Rate, the base lending rate of the People’s
Bank of China and the Loan Prime Rate in the PRC as at 31 December 2024. The
Group’s interest rate risk is mainly driven by the bank and other borrowings with
floating interest rates.
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As at the date of this annual report, the outstanding principal amount of the 2025
Notes is US$103,478,000. Under the terms of the 2025 Notes, the non-payment
with respect to the 2024 Notes triggered a cross default under the 2025 Notes. In
view of the liquidity pressure faced by the Company, the Company has not made
interest payment in the amount of US$3,621,730 under the 2025 Notes which
was due and payable on 12 September 2024. As a result, an event of default has
occurred under the terms of the 2025 Notes. Furthermore, interest in the amount of
US$3,621,730 under the 2025 Notes became due and payable on 12 March 2025,
and the Company has a grace period of 30 days to make the interest payment
which will expire on 11 April 2025. As at the date of this annual report, such
interest payments remain outstanding. The Company is in good faith discussion
with holders of the 2025 Notes regarding the delay in interest payment and will
maintain active communications with creditors and seek to implement an optimal
solution. Trading in the 2025 Notes on the Stock Exchange has been suspended
with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 2 April 2024 at the request of the Company and will
remain suspended until further notice.

As at 31 December 2024, certain bank and financial institutions facilities granted to
the Group together with the mortgage loan facilities granted to the property buyers
of the Group were secured by certain investment properties, properties under
development and pledged deposits with total carrying values of approximately
RMB5,560.5 million (31 December 2023: approximately RMB10,386.5 million).

Shares of certain subsidiaries of the Group are pledged to secure certain bank
and financial institutions facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December 2024.
The Group’s senior notes and certain bank and financial institutions facilities to the
Group were guaranteed by related companies which are ultimately controlled by
Ms. Huang, together with her spouse, Mr. Zhang, and her daughter, Ms. Zhang
as at 31 December 2024. No asset of the Group was pledged to these related
companies in respect of the guarantees.

As at 31 December 2024, loans from a related company and the amounts due to
related companies were unsecured and interest-free.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose during the
Year.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

Key Financial Ratios

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded a current ratio of approximately
1.03 (31 December 2023: approximately 1.07) and a gearing ratio of approximately
34.4% (31 December 2023: approximately 28.7%). Gearing ratio is defined as the
ratio of total borrowings less the aggregate value of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank balances and pledged deposits to total assets.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2024, the capital commitments of the Group in connection with
the property development expenditures was approximately RMB4,926.4 million (31
December 2023: approximately RMB6,799.7 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had contingent liabilities relating to
guarantees amounting to approximately RMB18,227.5 million (31 December 2023:
RMB19,614.5 million) in respect of mortgage facilities provided by certain banks in
connection with the mortgage loans entered into by property buyers of the Group.
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments
by these buyers, the Group would be responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principal together with the accrued interest thereon and any penalties
owed by the defaulted buyers to the banks. The Group would be entitled to take
over the legal titles to and possession of the related properties. These guarantees
will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the mortgage loan by the
property buyers; and (ii) the issuance of the property ownership certificate for
the mortgage property and the completion of the deregistration of the mortgage.
In the opinion of the Directors, no provision for the guarantees was recognised
in the financial statements for the Year as in case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the outstanding principal
together with the accrued interest and penalties.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are denominated substantially in
RMB, HKD, USD and SGD in the respective entities of the Group. Due to the
currency peg of HKD to USD, the exchange rate between these two currencies
has remained stable and thus the Group currently does not implement any hedging
or other alternatives. Going forward, the Group may formulate a foreign currency
hedging policy to provide a reasonable margin of safety for its exposure to RMB
and Singapore dollars through transactions, assets and liabilities should the need
arise.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to prevailing market
terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally reviewed on
an annual basis based on performance appraisals and other relevant factors. Apart
from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including mandatory provident
fund, medical insurance and performance-related bonuses. The Company has
also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) to provide the
Company with a means of providing the eligible participants with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage them to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefits of
the Company and its Shareholders as a whole, as well as to motivate them to
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. During the Year, the Company
did not grant any share options under the Share Option Scheme. Total staff costs,
including Directors’ emoluments during the Year, amounted to approximately
RMB38.1 million (31 December 2023: RMB55.4 million).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 310 employees.
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Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture and Future Plans for
Material Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not hold any significant investment
accounting for more than 5% of the Group’s total assets. The Group did not make
any other material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint
venture or future plan for material investment or capital assets during the Year.

Outlook and Prospects

The Group is principally engaged in the business of property development,
property investment, project management and sales services, hotel operations and
securities trading and investment. In order to pursue sustainable development, the
Group looks for investment opportunities which strengthen its profitability under the
acceptable risk in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas markets.

Looking forward to 2025, despite the real estate industry may still face demand
and financing pressure, it is expected the Chinese government will continue to
introduce policies to support the real estate market and stabilize macroeconomic
growth. It is also expected that there may be prospect that the consumer
confidence and market sentiment can be restored at some point of time, taking
into account the time needed for the relevant policies to take effect. Meanwhile, the
Group will continue to implement measures to improve operational efficiency and
achieve business objectives.

The Group will continue to finance the repayments on financial assistance from
the controlling shareholder through proceeds from the pre-sale and sale of the
Group’s properties, internally generated cash flows from other operations, and
borrowings from commercial banks and financial institutions. Going forward, the
Group believes its future funding needs in support of property development and
land acquisition activities will be satisfied by the above-mentioned sources and
additional issuance of equity securities or other capital market instruments. The
Group seeks to manage the level of its liquid assets to ensure the availability of
sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected cash requirements arising from its
business. The Group will continue to assess available financial resources in support
of its business needs on an ongoing basis, and plan and adjust its development
schedule or implement cost control measures if necessitated by its then-existing
financial conditions and cash requirements. The Group intends to continue to assess
existing capital resources, and to seek new sources of funding, in order to maintain
and expand its business on a cost-effective basis.
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The PRC

During the Year, a number of new property development projects were delivered
to customers in accordance with the terms and conditions of the purchase
agreements. The Group’s property development projects focus on providing
“high quality” property with both standard and deluxe design accompanied by full
refurbishment so as to meet different customers’ preferences and needs. Revenue
from the sale of properties is expected to be recognised upon the completion and
delivery of the completed properties and/or sub-phases.

After the land acquisitions completed in the past years, the Group built up and
maintained strong land reserves for the Group’s property development business
in the PRC for the next three years with a strong presence in Henan Province,
thus, the Group will focus more on developing the existing and new property
development projects from its land reserves in the near future. The Board will
maintain open mindset in identifying new property development projects and
bidding for land use rights of other selective land parcels in the PRC with a focus in
Zhengzhou City, Henan Province and other selective first- and second-tier cities in
the PRC in the coming few years.

The Group continues to pursue in diversification of its business to a light-
asset model by investing more internal resources to further expand the project
management business and providing a more integrated project management
services in return for management fee income. The Board considers project
management business in the PRC shall become popular in the market with
prosperous business potential, and the expansion in project management business
served as a diversification to light-asset model from our traditional heavy-asset
model in the property development business. The diversification allows the Group
to gain competitive advantages from managing property projects on behalf of
property owners without having to bear heavy investment cost in land acquisition
and construction cost.

The Company takes leverage on the PRC property development and investment
experience of its management team to seek suitable projects for development
or investment with potential to deliver value to its Shareholders. In addition to
existing business partners, the Company will continue to seek cooperation with
potential partners to explore capital resources and reduce the Group’s capital
investment in property projects at an early stage and facilitate project development.
The management of the Group remains cautiously optimistic on the long-term
prospects of the real estate industry and will expedite its property development and
sales of its development projects in the PRC.
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The U.S.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has approximately 5.6% equity
interest in a real estate investment trust listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
Global Medical REIT, Inc. (“GMR”) and approximately 99% equity interest in
American Housing REIT, Inc. (“AHR”).

1. GMR
GMR has been focusing on acquisition of state-of-the-art, purpose built,
licensed and specialised medical facilities in the U.S. During the Year, the
Group performed regular review on GMR’s business performance and its
business strategies and prospect. It is considered that the investment in
GMR’s would achieve long term capital appreciation to the Group with
stable average annual yield.

2. AHR
AHR, primarily focusing on property investment and management segment,
is currently 99%-controlled by the Group. AHR diversified its previous
investment in single family houses to senior housing communities in order to
seize the potential opportunity for the current strong demand on retirement
communities and elderly care industries in the USA for higher-than-average
annualised yield.

Other operations

The Group has operated a hotel in Zhengzhou City in the PRC since 2022 and
will regularly review the Singapore property market to explore different business
opportunities.

Overall

The Company will make use of the Group’s financial, human and technological
resources to seize business growth opportunities and enhance its portfolio, asset
base and brand image in the PRC, USA and overseas markets. The Group remains
optimistic and confident about the future, and believes that with the efforts of all
employees, the Group will overcome the current difficult conditions and move
forward steadily.
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UPDATE ON LISTING STATUS

Trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange was suspended at the request of
the Company on 2 April 2024 as a result of the delay in publication of the financial
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

On 26 June 2024, the Company received a letter from the Stock Exchange setting
out the following guidance for the resumption of trading in the securities of the
Company (the “Resumption Guidance”). Pursuant to the Resumption Guidance,
the Company shall:

(@) publish all outstanding financial results required under the Listing Rules and
address any audit modifications;

(b) demonstrate the Company’s compliance with Rule 13.24 of the Listing
Rules; and
(c) inform the market of all material information for the Company’s shareholders

and other investors to appraise the Company’s position.

Details of the fulfilment of the Resumption Guidance and actions taken by the
Company have been set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27
November 2024. The Board was pleased to announce that the Company has
fulfilled the Resumption Guidance and the trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange has been resumed on 28 November 2024.

GOING CONCERN

The Auditor’s disclaimer of opinion and basis for such disclaimer
The external auditor of the Company, Prism Hong Kong Limited (the “Auditor”),
did not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 (“Disclaimer of Opinion”). Due to
the significance of the matters on the material uncertainties relating to going
concern as described in the section headed “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” in
the independent auditor’s report in this annual report, the Auditor was not able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion. Please refer to the section headed “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” in the
independent auditor’s report from pages 82 to 84 of this annual report for further
details on the basis for the Disclaimer of Opinion.

Management’s position, view and assessment on the Disclaimer of
Opinion

In view of the Disclaimer of Opinion, the Directors have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern. The following plans and measures are formulated to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the financial position of the Group,
including:

(@) The Company will continue to communicate proactively with its creditors,
especially noteholders, on mutually agreeable arrangements on payments
of outstanding principal and interests;

(b) The Group will implement various strategies to improve the Group’s income
from sales of properties, project management and sales, hotel operations,
rentals from investment properties and dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss to generate additional operating
cash inflows and putting extra efforts on the collection of outstanding sales
proceeds and other receivables;
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(¢) The Group is actively reviewing its debt structure and looking for funding
opportunities, including actively negotiating with several financial institutions
to obtain new loans at a reasonable cost; and

(d) The Group will continue to take active measures to control administrative
costs and unnecessary capital expenditures to relieve liquidity to support
operations.

The Board is of the opinion that, taking into account the above-mentioned
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Board is satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above plans and measures, coupled with the volatility of the
property sector in China and the uncertainties to obtain continue support by the
banks and the Group’s creditor, the Board understood the concerns of the Auditor
that uncertainties exist as to whether the Group will be able to implement the plans
and measures successfully and arrive at the intended outcome of the plans and
measures.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments may
have to be made to write down the carrying values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Audit Committee’s view on the Disclaimer of Opinion

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion, the management’s
position concerning the Disclaimer of Opinion (the “Management’s Position”) and
measures taken by the Group to address the Disclaimer of Opinion. The Audit
Committee had discussed with the Board and the Group’s management and
agreed with the Management’s Position based on the reasons above. The Audit
Committee had also discussed with the Auditor regarding the financial position
of the Group, measures taken and to be taken by the Group, and considered the
Auditor’s rationale and understood their consideration in arriving their opinion.

There is no disagreement by the Board, the Group’s management nor the Audit
Committee in relation to the position taken by the Auditor regarding the going
concern issue and the basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
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ZHANG JINGGUO
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhang Jingguo (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 62, is the Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a member of each of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He was appointed to the Board on
6 July 2015 following the change of controlling shareholder of the Company on 29
June 2015.

Mr. Zhang has over 30 years of experience in the real estate development industry
in China. From July 1983 to April 1995, Mr. Zhang held various positions at the
then Light Industry Bureau of Henan Province, the governmental authority in
charge of the light industry in Henan Province, and its associated collectively-
owned enterprises, including division chief, engineer and vice manager, where he
was responsible for administrative management. From April 1995 to April 2001, he
worked at Xingye Real Estate as general manager, where he was responsible for its
overall operations. Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”) cofounded a
real estate company which has become one of the top 100 property development
companies in China. Mr. Zhang has served as the Chairman and chief executive
officer of this top 100 real estate company since 2001. Mr. Zhang is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and general management of our Group and is
instrumental to our growth and business expansion.

Mr. Zhang received a bachelor’s degree in radio science from Zhengzhou
University in July 1983, an Executive MBA degree from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University in July 2013 and an Executive MBA degree from
PBC School of Finance, Tsinghua University in July 2018. Mr. Zhang currently
serves as senior consultant of Henan Real Estate Chamber of Commerce, vice-
president of Industry & Commerce Association of Henan Province, graduate tutor
of Zhengzhou University. During the years of 2016, 2017 and 2018, Mr. Zhang
was named “Outstanding Real Estate Developer of Henan Province by Real Estate
Association of Henan Province. Mr. Zhang received his senior engineer qualification
from the People’s Government of Henan Province in May 2012, he received his first
class construction engineer qualification from the Ministry of Housing and Urban-
Rural Development.

Currently, Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of Zanyu Technology Group Co. Ltd., a listed
company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002637).

Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Huang, a Non-Executive Director. As at 31
December 2024, Mr. Zhang is interested in 1,377,439,892 shares of the Company,
which are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward
Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited.
The entire issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited are assets
of a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Mr. Zhang is a director of Zensun
Group Limited, a company which had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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HUANG YANPING
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Huang, aged 63, is the Non-Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Huang
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She was appointed to
the Board on 27 July 2015 following the change of controlling shareholder of the
Company on 29 June 2015.

Ms. Huang has over 20 years’ experiences in the property development and
investment industry in the PRC. Ms. Huang has been involved in the development
of not less than 36 property development projects in Henan Province, Shandong
and Hainan Province in the PRC with a total gross floor area of not less than 14
million sg.m.. She is one of the founders of a real estate company which has
become one of the top 100 property development companies in the PRC.

Ms. Huang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, an Executive Director. As at 31 December
2024, Ms. Huang is interested in 1,377,439,892 shares of the Company, which
are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward
Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited. The
entire issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited are assets of a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and Vistra
Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Ms. Huang is the sole director of Joy
Town Inc. and Notable Reward Limited, both of which are companies which an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO.

ZHANG GUOQIANG
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Guogiang, aged 61, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
was appointed to the Board on 27 July 2015 following the change of controlling
shareholder on 29 June 2015.

Between August 1983 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang Guogiang worked as a tutor
at the Communication Command Academy of PLA, now known as the National
Defence Information Academy of PLA. Between October 1997 to March 2003, Mr.
Zhang Guogiang served as the director of the marketing department of Wuhan
Research Institute of Post & Telecommunications, also known as FiberHome
Technologies Group, a product and solution provider in the field of information and
telecommunications, where he was responsible for marketing. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Zhang Guogiang worked as a general manager at Nanjing North Road
Technologies Co., Ltd., a coal analysis equipment manufacturer, from May 2003
to November 2005, where he was responsible for general management. Mr. Zhang
Guogiang joined the real estate company co-founded by Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang
in 2006 and in the position of vice president of that company since then. Mr. Zhang
Guogiang received a bachelor’s degree in radio science from Zhengzhou University
in July 1983. In 1988, Mr. Zhang Guogiang received his lecturer qualification from
the National Defence Information Academy of PLA and received his engineer
qualification from Wuhan Research Institute of Post of Telecommunications.

Currently, Mr. Zhang Guogiang is a director of Zanyu Technology Group Co., Ltd.,
a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002637).
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LIU DA
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Liu Da (“Mr. Liu”), aged 49, was appointed as an independent Non-Executive
Director on 27 July 2015.

Mr. Liu graduated from the University of International Business and Economics
with a major in international business administration and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics. Mr. Liu is also a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in
China. Mr. Liu served as an audit manager and a senior audit manager of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) Guangzhou Office from 1998 to 2009 and
Chicago Office from 2005 to 2007. Mr. Liu provided audit and consulting services
to a number of global top 500 enterprises and overseas listed Chinese companies
during his tenure of office in PwC. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive director
and the chief financial officer of the Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., a listed
company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 106) from 31 July 2013 to 5 January
2015 and was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Long Ji Tai
He Holding Limited, a listed company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1281)
from 26 February 2015 to 16 October 2015. Currently, Mr. Liu is the managing
partner of Key Wealth Capital Company Limited, providing financing and overseas
mergers and acquisition services to Chinese enterprises.

Mr. Liu was an independent non-executive director of Guangdong Dongfang
Precision Service & Technology Co., Ltd., a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 002611) from 12 August 2022 to 2 September 2024, and is
an independent non-executive director of Kimou Environmental Holding Limited, a
listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6805) since
1 March 2023.

MA YUNTAO
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ma Yuntao (“Mr. Ma”), aged 44, was appointed as an independent
Non-Executive Director on 27 July 2015.

Mr. Ma has been serving at Tian Yuan Law Firm as a registered partner from
December 2021 up to now. He served at Jia Yuan Law Firm from July 2010 to
November 2021 and at Commerce & Finance Law Offices from July 2002 to June
2010, engaging in securities business as to PRC laws. He acquired qualifications as
a practicing solicitor in 2006.
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Mr. Ma ran projects including the secondary listing project of New Oriental
Education & Technology Group Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9901) which is principally engaged in the private educational services,
the privatisation and delisting project of AVIC International Holdings Limited,
a company formerly listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0161) which
was principally engaged in electronic high-tech, retail and consumer products,
international engineering and trade logistics businesses, the initial public offering
(“IPQ”) project of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3320) which is principally engaged in
the research and development, manufacturing, distribution and retail of a broad
range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products, privatisation and delisting project
of Hunan Nonferrous Metals Company Limited, a company formerly listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2626) which was principally engaged in nonferrous
metallic mineral resources mining business, IPO project of Poly Culture Group
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3636)
which is principally engaged in culture industry involving theatre management,
artwork auction and investment, IPO project of Kerry Logistics Network Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0636) which is principally
engaged in logistics, IPO project of eprint Group Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1884) which is principally engaged in internet printing,
spin-off listing in respect of Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited, a company formerly
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1249) which is principally engaged in
production of electronics products of TCL Multimedia Technology Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1070) which is principally
engaged in production of electronics products, very substantial acquisition project
of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0966) which is principally engaged in insurance, and
IPO (both A share and H share) project of China Aluminum International Engineering
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2068)
and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601068) which is principally engaged
in nonferrous engineering design and construction.

Mr. Ma was an independent non-executive director of TUS-Pharmaceutical Group
Co. Ltd., a listed company on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000590)
since 21 May 2020 and retired with effect from the close of its annual general
meeting held on 18 May 2023. Mr. Ma is an independent non-executive director
of Beijing Infosec Technologies Co. Ltd., a listed company on Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 688201) since 6 December 2023.
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LI HUIQUN
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Li Huigun (“Dr. Li"), aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 18 October 2021.

Dr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics, a master’s degree in economics
and a doctorate degree in economics from the School of Economics of Wuhan
University, Hubei Province, China in 1988, 1991 and 1994, respectively. Dr. Li
holds the title of Senior Economist, has extensive experience in the banking and
financial markets sector. From April 1994 to October 2015, she served as head
of several divisions and on vice-president level positions in the Shenzhen Central
Branch of the People’s Bank of China, in charge of the Money and Credit Division,
the Financial Research Office, the Bullion Management Division, labour union work
and management of human resources. From November 2015 to June 2021, she
has been the vice president of Shenzhen Rural Commercial Bank in charge of asset
management, financial market and inter-bank business, international business and
management of the Qianhai branch.

Dr. Li has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Nine
Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, a listed company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2689) since 6 February 2023 and an independent
non-executive director of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited, a listed company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 925) since 2 July 2024.

Ms. Xing Zhumei (“Ms. Xing”), aged 53, appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company in November 2020, responsible for the Group’s financial reporting,
corporate finance activities and investor relations matters.

Ms. Xing has approximately 28 years of experience in accounting and audit. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Xing served as an accountant at Zhengzhou Fruit and Food
Corporation* (B 77 £ B X422 7)) from July 1995 to December 2004. She then
served as the chief accountant in Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (A& [E&
FBEEMR AT from January 2005 to April 2017 and as the chief financial officer in
Henan Xingye Internet of Things Management Technology Co., Ltd.* (A &3 52 3 ) Bt
PERRE AR AT from May 2017 to September 2019. Thereafter, she served
as the chief accountant in Zensun Group Limited (IE &4 E AR A 7)) from October
2019 to September 2020.

Ms. Xing obtained her bachelor’s degree in auditing from Zhengzhou University in
1995. She received her qualified accounting certificate (medium level) in 2002 from
Ministry of Finance of the PRC* (R 2 A R HEFE 81 B F) and certified tax agent
certificate in 2003 from Department of Human Resources and Social Security of
Henan Province* (AIRI& A 1 &R ML REEEE). Ms. Xing is @ member of Henan
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (] B s it & 5HET 1 ).

Mr. Chang Eric Jackson (3R 1t3£) (“Mr. Chang”), aged 44, was appointed on
29 February 2024 as the Company Secretary of the Company and is responsible
for the Group’s corporate secretarial functions. Mr. Chang has over 20 years
of experience in accounting, auditing, financial management and corporate
governance matters. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chang has over 10 years of
working experience in Hong Kong listed companies, and has worked as a senior
manager in an international audit firm. Mr. Chang is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHEE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and together with its
subsidiaries engages in property development, property investment, project
management and sale services, hotel operations and securities trading and
investment. The activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by principal operating segments for
the Year is set out in the notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on page 85.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company was founded in 1965, and is currently focused on property
development, property investment, project management and sale services, hotel
operations and securities trading and investment in Hong Kong, the PRC and
overseas.

A detailed business review for the Year, including further discussions of important
events occurred since the end of the financial year, likely future development of the
Group’s business and financial performance review with financial key performance
indicators, are set out in “Chairman’s Message” on pages 6 to 10, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 29 to 39 and “Financial Summary” on page 195
respectively. These discussions form part of this report.

The Company had issued separately an Environmental, Social and Governance
Report under Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Code as specified
in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Under the Group’s current risk management and internal control system, regular
review of the principal risks and uncertainties that may affect the Group’s financial
condition, results of operations, business and prospects are maintained. There
may be other risks and uncertainties further to the following key risk areas and
uncertainties currently identified by the Group.

The performance of the Group’s property development business in the PRC is
susceptible to the national regulatory control measures and polices implemented to
restrict the purchase of properties, and the general downturn in macro economic
environment in the PRC. Any changes in the national measures and policies may
also penetrate into the overall national economic conditions, and influence changes
in consumer confidence, consumption spending and preferences in property
market in the PRC.
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The Group’s operation is also subject to certain risk factors pertaining to property
development business in the PRC, including lack of availability of potential land
resources in the PRC, escalation of construction cost due to inflation and the
supply shortage, default on the part of our customers, construction contractors,
business partners and tenants, adverse weather conditions, other unexpected
inadequacies or failure of internal process or other external factors may have
various levels of risk on the Group’s operations. Liquidity issues of certain property
developers have further worsened the public confidence in the real estate market.

The Group’s capital risk management and financial risk management are set out in
notes 34 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

In response to these possible risks and uncertainties, the Group continues to
implement a series of internal control and strategies to adapt itself to cope with
the possible risks and changes. The Group also develops and reviews strategies,
policies and guidelines on risk control which enable the Group to monitor closely
and formulate business strategies to respond to risk promptly and effectively. The
Group also actively proposes measures and adjusts the development pace to
minimise any potential business impact on the Group from these possible risks and
uncertainties.

In 2024, the Group continued to implement strategy in expanding its project
management business in order to diversify its income streams.

Key stakeholder relationships

To build a solid foundation for the Group’s sustainable development, the
Group recognise its employees, customers and business partners being the
key stakeholders and maintain a continuous dialogue with them. The Group is
dedicated to establish a close and supporting relationship with its employees,
provide quality products and services to customers and strengthen all kinds of
cooperation with its business partners.

The Company provides a healthy and safe workplace, career development
opportunities and competitive remuneration and benefits to employees based
on their qualifications in accordance with industry practice in the geographical
locations in which they are located. To treasure its loyal and industrious staff
members and improve their performance at their positions, different forms of
rewards and compensation including salaries, provident fund, performance bonus,
insurance coverage, or share options, etc., will be considered and reviewed on an
annual basis based on performance appraisals for eligible employees.

Maintaining close relationship with its customers as well as tenants are paramount
to the long-term success for the Group. Interacting channels with customers and
tenants are established to identify and respond to the dynamic market needs
proactively, improve the quality of products and services to adhere to customers’
needs and preference timely. In the long run, it fosters customer recognition of the
brand of the Group with a trust-worthy basis.

The Group is also committed to developing fair and co-operating business
partnership with suppliers and contractors to ensure stability of the Group’s
operation. Through a series of standardised procurement process including
quotation or tender procedures, cost and quality of the procurement supply of the
Group are able to be monitored, assessed and evaluated reasonably. The Group
continuously upholds an effective communication with suppliers to deliver quality
products and services to customers for long-term sustainability.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

As far as the Company is aware of, the Group has complied with applicable laws
and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies which are significant
to the operations of the Group.

Environmental policy

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of businesses and
communities with which it engages. The Group pursues this business approach by
managing its business prudently and executing management decisions with due
care and attention to balance the sustainable business growth and environmental
protection.

The Group endeavours to make improvements by promoting environmental friendly
policies in the Group’s operations and increasing the employee’s awareness over
environmental protection. By means of advocating eco-friendly and reusable
materials, paper-recycling and energy saving measures on office equipment and
appliances, it helps enhance efficient use of resources, energy efficiency and
reduction of waste.

The Group is committed to acting in an environmentally responsible manner to
review its environmental protection policies and activities from time to time for
implementation of any further measures and practices on environmental protection
in the business operation.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31 December 2024 are
set out in “Hong Kong and Overseas Property Portfolio” on page 11, “Property
Development Project Summary in the PRC” on pages 14 to 28 and “Particulars of
Major Investment Properties” on page 196.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the Year are set out in notes 15 and 16 respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at the year end date. The
revaluation for the Year resulted a fair value loss of approximately RMB30,079,000
which has been charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during the Year.
Details of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2024 are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 89.

The Company had no distributable reserves as at 31 December 2024.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS
There is no charitable donations made by the Group during the Year.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of the
Company ("Articles of Association") or the laws of Hong Kong, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares to existing Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the Shareholders
by reason of their shareholding in the Company. If the shareholders are unsure
about the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or
exercising of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company, they are advised
to consult an expert.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 195.

DIRECTORS

(@) Directors of the Company
The Directors during the Year and present Directors up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:
Zhang Jingguo
Zhang Guogiang

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director:
Huang Yanping

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Liu Da

Ma Yuntao

Li Huiqun

In accordance with Articles 24 and 25 of Articles of Association and
pursuant to code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”), Mr. Zhang Guogiang and Dr. Li Huiqun will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
13 June 2025 (the “2025 AGM”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election. Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2025 AGM are
set out in the circular to the Shareholders which will be published together
with this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.
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(b)

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years which may be terminated in accordance
with the terms of the service agreements.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2025 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which are not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 40 to 44.

Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
The directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during the Year and up to the
date of this report are:

Bai Mengjun
Bie Sanjiang
Chen Jiguo
Chen Weibing
Cheng Yuewu
Feng Hongfeng
Feng Jiansong
Geng Chong
Guo Wei
Huang Yanping
Liu Chuanke
Liu Hai

Wang Heping
Liu Zhengiang
Lu Hongyan
Meng Yuming
Tan Shumei
Wang Jinhu
Xing Zhumei
Zhang Huigi
Zhang Guogiang
Zhang Jianmin
Zhang Jingguo
Zhou Bing

(b)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 10, 27, 28 and 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 27, 28 and 42 to the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the financial assistance provided by the controlling shareholder
of the Company to the Group and the transactions disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements and also detailed under sections headed “Related
Party Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” and there was no
contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, together with those of the five highest
paid employees of the Group for the Year are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or any interest or short positions which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or any interests and short positions which have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions
(i) Interest in the Shares of the Company

Annual Report 2024 — 2~ PUFEF IR

ESRIBETHRABREZZEERAR

MN2024F 128318 - EERAQFTEIBITHAER
ARRZEBRIRG (TRMD DR ~ ANRRSKE M
REEE(EERES KRB EAIEXVED) 2 BERG
RiEHF  BHEREBEEFRBEEHEXVIETRES
AHMEHEARA Rz ER AR (BERER
BEAFRHEGAZEEFEE R IERA 2
RKE) » RBES RS KHIFE 3526 BE LR %
EGIFT i & R M 2 AR SOAR - RIRE EMARA
MiSRCOFTE L BT AE ZEITES X HNIZESTA
(T24s7 A ) BHAEARRQ ) B AT 2 (T s Bk
=3/

i)
() REXFRBPOER

Approximate
percentage of
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capital of the

Company (%)

Number of LA AT
Name of Director Capacity in which interests are held Shares held BRITRA
EEHE ERBEEESH R EE Z B2 (%)
Mr. Zhang Spousal interest (Note 1) 1,377,439,892 71.99
REE fi i@ iees (A1)
Ms. Huang Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,377,439,892 71.99
HuangZz & TR EE S (M aE2)
Notes: Htat -
1) Mr. Zhang (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of (1) REA(KRDBIER - THAEARRNTE

the Company) is the spouse of Ms. Huang, under SFO, he is deemed to
be interested in 1,377,439,892 Shares in which Ms. Huang is interested.

) 1,377,439,892 Shares are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as
settlor and protector and Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee.
Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group Limited. Zensun Group
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited, which in
turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire
issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets
of the trust. Superior Glory Enterprises Limited, Notable Reward Limited,
Zensun Group Limited and Joy Town Inc. are holding companies of the
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company
under SFO.
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(1)

Interest in ordinary shares of associated corporations of the (i)

Company

RAEQFEBZEEBR P HERS

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

capital of

Name of Capacity in which the Number of associated

Name of Director associated corporation interests are held share held corporation (%)

i HEEEEESRT

EEHE HEEEER ERBEESH RBEE BRA& 2z 8D (%)

Ms. Huang Superior Glory Interest of controlled 1 100
Enterprises Limited corporation (Note)

Huang# + SYEEE g (H )

Ms. Huang Notable Reward Limited Interest of controlled 100 100

corporation (Note)

Huang#z & Ry E Ew (M)

Ms. Huang Zensun Group Limited Interest of controlled 1 100

corporation (Note)

Huang# + FEEEBRAR S EE S (i)

Ms. Huang Joy Town Inc. Beneficial owner (Note) 1 100

HuangZ + BEmEB ANHT)

Note: 1,377,439,892 Shares are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which are Kzt - 1,377,439,892 % f% 15 M1 Joy Town Inc. B
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as BH  ESEHAHangL TR IEAZ T
settlor and protector and Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. A MR 3 A K | Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte
Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group Limited. Zensun Group Limited{E B Z L AH 2 REFEHMER  Joy
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited, which in Town Inc. HIEEEBEERABE2EREA © IE
turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire 5 B AR A 7] ANotable Reward Limited 2
issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets 2 & KB A 7 - M Notable Reward Limited
of the trust. Superior Glory Enterprises Limited, Notable Reward Limited, th Superior Glory Enterprises Limited & &
Zensun Group Limited and Joy Town Inc. are holding companies of the & - 1 Superior Glory Enterprises Limited %
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company HEBITRAK REEEFTHEE ° Superior
under SFO. Ms. Huang is the sole director of Joy Town Inc. and Notable Glory Enterprises Limited - Notable Reward
Reward Limited and Mr. Zhang is the sole director of Zensun Group Limited * 1E 7% B A R 2 7 &Joy Town Inc.
Limited. HREARBZERAR BEaAEHFRH

ERPITETARE 2 HE8EE © HuangZZ 74
Joy Town Inc. & Notable Reward Limited Z I
—EEF MREEAEBEERRARIZHE—
EEo

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors, chief BATIRE AN - PA2024%12A31H &% + K

executive of the Company or their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which: (a) were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the directors nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than a contract of service with any Director or any person engaged in the full-
time employment of the Company, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, revenue attributable to the largest customer of the Group
accounted to approximately 0.4% of the total revenue in the Year and the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 1.1% of the Group’s
total revenue in the Year.

During the Year, none of our Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of
the Shareholders (who to the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5%
of our Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in our Group’s five largest
customers.

During the Year, purchases attributable to the largest supplier of the Group
amounted to approximately 35.6% of the total purchases in the Year and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 61.3% of the Group’s
purchases in the Year.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(who to the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5% of our Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in our Group’s five largest suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain Directors and companies controlled by certain Directors
entered into transactions with the Group which are disclosed in notes 27, 28 and
42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, the Board confirmed that none of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following transactions are
continuing connected transactions which are subject to the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions with Zensun Development
Group

In 2015, a master services agreement (“Master Services Agreement”) has been
entered into between the Company and Henan Zensun Corporate Development
Group Limited* (A EREPHFEEEBEBFREEAT) (“Zensun Development”),
pursuant to which, Zensun Development has agreed to provide, or procure
members of Zensun Development, its subsidiaries and/or any other company in the
equity capital of which Zensun Development and/or any of its subsidiaries taken
together are directly or interested so as to exercise or control 30% or more voting
power at general meetings, or to control the composition of a majority of the board
of directors, and the subsidiaries of such company (the “Zensun Development
Group”) to provide construction and related ancillary services to the Group
according to the definitive agreement(s) signed between Zensun Development
Group and the Group from time to time. On 21 February 2017, the Company
and Zensun Development entered into a supplemental agreement (the “2017
Supplemental Agreement”) to, among other matters, extend the effective term of
the Master Services Agreement to 31 December 2019. On 11 October 2018, the
Company entered into a supplemental agreement with Zensun Development (2018
Supplemental Agreement”) to further amend the effective terms of the Master
Services Agreement as amended by the 2017 Supplemental Agreement to be
three years from 1 January 2018 and continue up to 31 December 2020.

On 21 October 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Zensun
Development (the “2021 Master Services Agreement”) which commences from 1
January 2021 and continue up to and including 31 December 2023. For details of
the terms of the 2021 Master Services Agreement, please refer to the Company’s
circular dated 18 November 2020.

On 30 October 2023, the Company entered into an agreement with Zensun
Development (the “2024 Master Services Agreement”) which commences from
1 January 2024 and continue up to and including 31 December 2026 and the
annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the 2024 Master Services
Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2024, 2025 and
2026 are RMB2,330 million, RMB2,134 million and RMB1,516 million, respectively.
The 2024 Master Service Agreement and the annual caps mentioned above were
approved by independent Shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 12 December 2023. For details of the terms of the 2024 Master Services
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 20 November 2023.

During the Year, the annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 (the
“2024 Annual Cap”) approved for the continuing connected transactions between
the Group and Zensun Development Group under the 2024 Master Services
Agreement was RMB2,330 million and the actual transacted amounts were
approximately RMB1,489.7 million, which did not exceed the 2024 Annual Cap.
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As Zensun Development is owned as to 90%, 9% and 1% by Beijing Xiangcheng
Investment Co., Ltd.* (b REEFHIRE AR A R]) (“Xiangcheng Investment”), Ms.
Zhang Huigi (“Ms. Zhang”) and Mr. Zhang, respectively. Xiangcheng Investment
is owned as to 98% by Ms. Zhang and Ms. Zhang is the daughter of Mr. Zhang
and Ms. Huang, an Executive Director and the Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Zensun Development is therefore a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions with Xingye Wulian Group
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement

On 18 February 2020, the master property engineering framework agreement
(“Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”) has been entered into
between the Company and Xingye Wulian Service Group Co. Ltd. (“Xingye Wulian”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Xingye Wulian Group”), pursuant to which,
the Group appointed the Xingye Wulian Group as its service provider to provide
property engineering services to the Group during the period from the effective
date of the Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement up to and including
31 December 2022. Relevant members of the Xingye Wulian Group may from
time to time to enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the Group in
relation to the provision of property engineering services, subject to the terms and
conditions of Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement. For detail of the
terms of Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 17 April 2020 and 23 April 2020.

On 20 October 2022, the Company entered into a master framework agreement
with Xingye Wulian in relation to the provision of the property engineering
services by Xingye Wulian to the Group (the “2022 Master Property Engineering
Framework Agreement”) which commences from 1 January 2023 and continue
up to and including 31 December 2025 and the annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the 2022 Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement
for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2023, 2024 and 2025 are
RMB26.6 million, RMB29.7 million and RMB32.1 million, respectively. The
2022 Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the annual caps
mentioned above were approved by independent shareholders of Xingye Wulian
in its extra-ordinary general meeting held on 15 December 2022. For details of the
terms of the 2022 Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 20 October 2022.

During the Year, the annual cap approved for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Xingye Wulian Group under the 2022 Master
Property Engineering Framework Agreement was RMB29.7 million and the actual
transacted amount was approximately RMB13.3 million, which did not exceed the
above mentioned annual cap.
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Master Property Management Framework Agreement

On 18 February 2020, the master property management framework agreement
(“Master Property Management Framework Agreement”) has been entered
into between the Company and Xingye Waulian, pursuant to which, the Group
appointed the Xingye Wulian Group as its service provider to provide property
management and value-added services to the Group during the period from the
effective date of the Master Property Management Framework Agreement up
to and including 31 December 2022. On 28 August 2020, the Company further
entered into a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) with Xingye
Woulian to amend certain terms of the Master Property Management Framework
Agreement to revise the annual caps for each of the three financial years ending
31 December 2022. Relevant members of the Xingye Wulian Group may from time
to time to enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the Group in relation
to the provision of property management and value-added services, subject to the
terms and conditions of Master Property Management Framework Agreement. For
detail of the terms of Master Property Management Framework Agreement and
Supplemental Agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 17
April 2020, 23 April 2020 and 28 August 2020.

On 20 October 2022, the Company entered into a master framework agreement
with Xingye Wulian in relation to the provision of the property management and
value-added services by Xingye Wulian to the Group (the “2022 Master Property
Management Framework Agreement”) which commences from 1 January 2023
and continue up to and including 31 December 2025 and the annual caps for
the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master Property Management
Framework Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2023,
2024 and 2025 are RMB28.9 million, RMB31.6 million and RMB32.3 million,
respectively. The 2022 Master Property Management Framework Agreement and
the annual caps mentioned above were approved by independent shareholders
of Xingye Waulian in its extra-ordinary general meeting held on 15 December 2022.
For details of the terms of the 2022 Master Property Management Framework
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 20 October 2022.

During the Year, the revised annual cap approved for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Xingye Wulian Group under the Supplemental
Agreement was RMB31.6 million and the actual transacted amount was
approximately RMB19.7 million, which did not exceed the above mentioned annual
cap.

The entire issued share capital of Xingye Wulian is indirectly owned as to
approximately 56.59% by the Blossom Trust, which is controlled by Ms. Zhang
as the protector. Ms. Zhang is the daughter of Mr. Zhang, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company and Ms. Huang, the
non-executive Director of the Company. As such, Xingye Wulian is a connected
person of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master
Property Management Framework Agreement and the 2022 Master Property
Engineering Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Each of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The independent Non-
Executive Directors confirmed that each of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the Year have been entered into

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(ii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the
auditor of the Company to conduct certain procedures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has also issued an unqualified letter containing the
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information”, the auditor has also reported to the Board that for the
Year, nothing has come to their attention that in respect of: a) the continuing
connected transactions governed by the 2024 Master Services Agreement: (i)
have not received the approval of the Board; (i) are not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (iii) have not been entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the relevant annual cap as set for the year
ended 31 December 2024 by the Company in respect of the continuing connected
transactions; and b) the continuing connected transactions governed by the 2022
Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the 2022 Master Property
Management Framework Agreement: (i) have not received the approval of the
Board; (i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group; (iii) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) have exceeded
the relevant annual cap as set for the year ended 31 December 2024 by the
Company in respect of the continuing connected transactions.

The Board confirms that the auditor of the Company has confirmed the matters set
out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2024, according to the register of interest in Shares and
underlying Shares and short positions kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO and so far as is known to or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiries by the Directors, the persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company are as follows:
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Long positions in the Shares of the Company REATRGZHFE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interests Shares held Company (%)
KRR DT BT
BREREBE ERME FrERHEE BRAz2E D (%)
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Trustee (Note) 1,377,439,892 71.99
Pte Limited BEREAHIEE)
Superior Glory Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,439,892 71.99
Enterprises Limited Ry E (i)
Notable Reward Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,439,892 71.99
AR ()
Zensun Group Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,439,892 71.99
FEEBEERAR Ry E v (HiE)
Joy Town Inc. Beneficial owner (Note) 1,377,439,892 71.99

mamEA AN

Note:

These Shares are directly owned by Joy Town Inc., which are ultimately owned by a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and Vistra Trust
(Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited,
which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire issued
share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets of the trust. Ms.
Huang is the sole director of Joy Town Inc. and Notable Reward Limited and Mr. Zhang is
the sole director of Zensun Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no person other than the
Directors whose interests are set out in the above section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Securities”, had registered
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company, and short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares that was required to be recorded in
the register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors was interested in any business,
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group’s businesses except that Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang are individually
and collectively deemed interested in Zensun International Holdings Company
Limited and/or its subsidiaries and associated companies which are engaged in
construction, property development and related business in the PRC.

As the Board is independent of the boards of these companies, the Company has
therefore been) capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at
arm’s length from, the above businesses.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme adopted by the Company on 28 August 2013 (the “2013
Scheme”), which was valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date
of adoption, expired on 27 August 2023. In order to ensure continuity of a share
option scheme for the Company, the shareholders of the Company passed an
ordinary resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 June
2023 to approve the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) and the termination of the 2013 Scheme. The New Share Option
Scheme became effective following the grant of a listing approval by the Stock
Exchange on 12 June 2023 (the “Adoption Date”).

The 2013 Scheme

The purpose of the 2013 Scheme is to motivate eligible persons who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The 2013 Scheme will remain in force
for 10 years from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible
persons of the 2013 Scheme include (i) a director or proposed director (including
an independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group; (i) a direct
or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (iii) a supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group; (iv) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member
of the Group; (v) a person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support or any advisory, consultancy, professional services to any
member of the Group; and (vi) a landlord or tenant (including a sub-tenant) of any
member of the Group. Subject to the terms of the 2013 Scheme, the Board shall
be entitled at any time during the life of the 2013 Scheme to offer the grant of any
option to any eligible person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select and
the basis of eligibility shall be determined by the Board from time to time.

Pursuant to the 2013 Scheme, the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted is such number of shares which, when aggregated with
shares subject to any other share option scheme(s), must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the annual general meeting
approving the 2013 Scheme on 28 August 2013. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible person in the 2013 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options) of the Company. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The amount payable upon the acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The period
within which an option must be exercised shall be such period as the Board may
in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant, save that such period shall
not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of grant of an option.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board, but may not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the
grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant; and (jii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
2013 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of the annual general meeting approving the 2013 Scheme
on 28 August 2013, without prior approval from the Shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Shareholders. Options vested immediately and may be exercised at any time
not exceeding a period of 5 years from the date on which the share options is
accepted.

The New Share Option Scheme

(1) Purpose of the New Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide eligible
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole, as well as to motivate eligible participants
to contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

(2) Eligible participants

Eligible participants of the New Share Option Scheme include (i) directors,
chief executive and employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including persons who are granted options under the New Share
Option Scheme, share options or awards as an inducement to enter into
employment contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries) (the
“Employee Participants”); (ii) advisers, consultants, contractors, suppliers,
agents, entities providing research, development or other technological
support and service providers of any member of the Group (the “Service
Providers”); and (iii) directors, chief executive and employees of the holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated companies of the Company
(the “Related Entity Participants”).
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Maximum number of shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued in respect of all options
and awards to be granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) or share award scheme(s) of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the Adoption
Date (i.e. 191,338,666 Shares).

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued in respect of all
share options or awards granted to each eligible participant (including
both exercised or outstanding options, share options and awards) in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Exercise of options and minimum period

The Board may in its absolute discretion determine the period within which
an option may be exercised, save that such period shall not be longer than
10 years commencing on the date of grant.

An option must be held for at least 12 months after the date of grant before
it is vested and exercisable by the grantee. A shorter vesting period may
be granted to Employee Participants at the discretion of the Board or the
remuneration committee of the Company or any other authorised agent(s) as
deemed appropriate at the sole discretion of the Board.

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer, there is no
performance target which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised under the terms of the New Share Option Scheme nor any
clawback mechanism for the Company to recover or withhold any options
granted to any eligible participant.

Time of acceptance and payment on acceptance

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant
concerned for a period of 14 days from the date on which the letter
containing the offer is delivered to that eligible participant.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the option to which
the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken
effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of the
offer duly signed by the grantee with the number of Shares in respect of
which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein, together with a remittance
or payment in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof, is received by the Company. Such remittance payment
shall not be refundable in any circumstances.

Exercise price

The exercise price of any options shall be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion and it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing prices of the
Shares in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Duration of the New Share Option Scheme
The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing on the Adoption Date.

For further details of the New Share Option Scheme, please refer to the circular of
the Company dated 27 April 2023.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, no share option of the Company has
been granted, vested, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the New Share Option
Scheme. As at 1 January 2024, 31 December 2024 and the date of this report, the
total number of shares available for issue under the scheme mandate limit and the
service provider sublimit of the New Share Option Scheme is 191,338,666 shares
and 19,133,866 shares respectively, representing 10% and 1% respectively of the
share capital of the Company in issue at the respective dates.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes for the employees of the Group are
disclosed in the section headed “Other employee benefits — Retirement benefit
scheme and pension scheme” set out in note 2.22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 66 to 81.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). The Company
considers stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders to be its goal.
According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(i) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(ii) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans;

(iv) the Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group;

(vi) the Shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry’s norm;
(vii) the general market conditions; and

(vii)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association and any other applicable laws and
regulations.
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The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend
Policy at any time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Board on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float as required under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a Director. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group
throughout the year.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

During the Year, the Company was not involved in any litigation, arbitration or
claims of material importance and there was no litigation or claim of material
importance which was known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or
against the Company.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the biographical details of the Directors as set out in the
section headed “Board of Directors and Senior Management”, there has been
no change to the information of the Directors which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent to the publication of
the Company’s interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company has repurchased the US$160 million 12.5% senior
notes due 2024 (the “2024 Notes”) in the open market in an aggregate principal
amount of US$15.5 million, representing approximately 9.7% of the 2024 Notes
issued. As the 2024 Notes matured on 23 April 2024, the 2024 Notes were
delisted from the Stock Exchange on the same day.

During the Year, the Company has repurchased the US$103.478 million 7% senior
notes due 2025 (the “2025 Notes”) in the open market in an aggregate principal
amount of US$5.0 million, representing approximately 4.8% of the 2025 Notes
issued.
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As at the date of this annual report, the outstanding principal amount of the 2025
Notes is US$103,478,000. Under the terms of the 2025 Notes, the non-payment
with respect to the 2024 Notes triggered a cross default under the 2025 Notes.
In view of the liquidity pressure faced by the Company, the Company has not
made interest payment in the amount of US$3,621,730 under the 2025 Notes
which was due and payable on 12 September 2024. As a result, an event of
default has occurred under the terms of the 2025 Notes. Furthermore, interest
in the amount of US$3,621,730 under the 2025 Notes became due and payable
on 12 March 2025, and the Company has a grace period of 30 days to make the
interest payment which will expire on 11 April 2025. As at the date of this annual
report, such interest payments remain outstanding. The Company is in good faith
discussion with holders of the 2025 Notes regarding the delay in interest payment
and will maintain active communications with creditors and seek to implement an
optimal solution.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, there was no significant event that
affected the Group has occurred since the end of the Year and up to the date of
this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2025 AGM will be held on Friday, 13 June 2025 and the notice of the 2025
AGM will be published and despatched in the manner as required by the Listing
Rules and the Articles of Association in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the 2025 AGM expected to be held on Friday, 13 June 2025, the register
of members of the Company expected to be closed on Monday, 9 June 2025 to
Friday, 13 June 2025, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the 2025 AGM, all transfer documents should be lodged for registration with
the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong expected not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 6 June 2025.
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from 25
December 2023 and Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was appointed as the
auditor of the Company with effect from 26 December 2023 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Ernst & Young and subsequently resigned
with effect form 4 July 2024. Prism Hong Kong Limited has been appointed
as the auditor of the Company with effect from 11 July 2024 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited. Saved as
disclosed, there has been no change in the auditor of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Prism Hong Kong

Limited, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
2025 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
ZHANG JINGGUO
Chairman, Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer

28 March 2025
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance, formulate good corporate governance practice to improve
accountability and transparency in operations, and strengthen the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group from time to time so as to cope with the
expectations of the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
(“Code Provision(s)”) and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules (“CG
Code”) throughout the Year, save for the deviations which are explained below.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly internals. Although only
two regular Board meetings were held during the Year, the Board considered
that sufficient meetings had been held as business operations were under the
management and the supervision of the executive Directors. In addition, senior
management of the Group has provided to the Directors the information in respect
of the Group’s business development and activities from time to time and, when
required, ad hoc Board meetings were held to discuss matters.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive of the Company should be segregated. The Company is of the view that
it is in the best interest of the Company that Mr. Zhang with his profound expertise
in the property business, shall continue in his dual capacity as chairman and chief
executive officer. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority for
the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the
current Board composition and structure taking into account the background and
experience of the Directors.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the model code as set out in Appendix C3 (“Model
Code”) to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for securities transactions by
the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
each of them confirmed that they have compiled with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the relevant employees of the Group who are considered likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company or its securities on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code in relation to their dealings in the securities
of the Company pursuant to Code Provision C.1.3 of the CG Code. To the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, all relevant employees have complied with
the required standard of such code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging its corporate
accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence in the interests of its
Shareholders and fulfil his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills,
care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory requirements.
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Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for formulating group policies and strategic business
directions, and monitoring business performances through implementation
of adequate risk management and internal control systems. The executive
Directors are delegated with the authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day
management of the Group, operational and business decisions within the control
and delegation framework of the Group. The Non-Executive Directors (including
independent Non-Executive Directors) contribute valuable views, professional
opinions and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;
(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the board committees, details of
which are set out below.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company, including
appointment of new Directors, approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant accounting policies, material contracts, significant appointments such as
company secretary and external auditors, terms of reference of board committees,
major corporate policies such as code of conduct, and other significant financial
and operational matters.

The Board is also responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. It has carried out
review of the existing implemented systems, including control measures of financial
and operational compliance of the Group.

The Directors having material interest in the matter shall abstain from voting at such
Board meeting and the independent Non-Executive Directors with no conflict of
interest shall attend at such meeting to deal with the matters. All Directors ensure
that they can give sufficient attention to discharge their responsibilities to the affairs
of the Company and the Directors have disclosed to the Company the identity and
nature of offices held in any public organisation and other significant commitments
on an annual basis.

To the best knowledge of the Company, apart from the family relationship between
Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang, there is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among our Directors. All of them are free to exercise their
independent judgments.

During the Year, regular Board meetings of the Company were held two times
to review, consider and approve, among others, annual and interim results and
to review the business operations, corporate governance and the effectiveness
of internal control systems and risk management of the Group. At least 14 days’
notice for each regular meeting is given to all Directors. All such minutes are kept
by the company secretary of the Company and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director. Apart from the regular Board
meetings, the Chairman also met with the independent Non-Executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors during the Year.
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Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors against liabilities arising out of legal action on corporate activities. Such
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2024, the Board comprised six Directors including two
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director (“NED”) and three independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The biographical details of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 40 to 44.

Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for leadership and effective functioning of
the Board, ensuring key issues are promptly addressed by the Board, as well as
providing strategic direction of the Group, take primary responsibility for ensuring
good corporate governance practices with necessary procedures established and
also together with other executive Directors are responsible for the Group’s daily
operations and the effective implementation of corporate strategy and policies.

Executive Directors
As at 31 December 2024, there were two Executive Directors including Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Zhang Guogiang. Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Huang.

Non-Executive Director
As at 31 December 2024 there was one NED, Ms. Huang. Ms. Huang is the
spouse of Mr. Zhang.

Independent Non-Executive Directors and their Independence
As at 31 December 2024, there were three INEDs including Mr. Liu Da, Mr. Ma
Yuntao and Dr. Li Huiqun.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of INEDs in accordance with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. With Dr. Li Huiqun and Mr. Liu
Da’s working experience and their academic background in economics, finance
and accounting, the Company considers that they are qualified persons with
appropriate professional knowledge in accounting and finance as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has already received annual confirmation letters of independence
from all the INEDs and each of them have declared fulfilment of all the guidelines
for assessing independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Board considers that all INEDs are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.

All the Directors, including the NED and INEDs, have entered into service
agreements with the Company for a term of three years and under which all
Directors must retire by rotation at least once every three years, and no Director
shall hold office for a continuous period in excess of three years, or past the
third annual general meeting, following the Director’s appointment or re-election,
whichever is longer, without submitting himself/herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

In compliance with Code Provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, an updated list of the
Directors identifying their role and function are available on the websites of the Company
(www.zensunenterprises.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk). The
Company will review the composition of the Board from time to time to ensure that the
Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skill and experience to meet
the needs of the Group’s business and to enhance the shareholders’ value.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the Shareholders and have
exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of
the Group. Every newly appointed Director shall receive a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and that he or she is fully aware of his or her
duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable statutory and regulatory
rules and requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
so as to develop and refresh directors’ knowledge and skills and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company regularly circulates training materials or briefings to all Directors
in respect of the updates on, among other things, the Listing Rules, the SFO
or guidelines, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and relevant financial or
accounting standards which may be of the interest to Directors. During the Year,
all Directors have complied with the Code Provisions in relation to continuous
professional development, apart from reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business, director’s duties and responsibilities. The Company updates Directors
constantly on the latest developments regarding the Group’s business and other
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. All Directors have provided to
the Company with their training records on a regular basis, and such records have
been maintained by the Company for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.
According to the training records maintained by the Company, the trainings
received by each of the Directors during the Year is summarised as follows:

Name of Directors
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Type of trainings

BEEnE =R

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Zhang Jingguo Aand B

SRARE 5 A AKB

Mr. Zhang Guogiang Aand B

R B985 A AKB

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Ms. Huang Yanping Aand B

Huang YanpingZ 4= AKB

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUKHTES

Mr. Liu Da Aand B

Ell=3ea AKB

Mr. Ma Yuntao Aand B

BERKLE AKB

Dr. Li Huiqun Aand B

FHEEEL AKB

A attending seminars/webinars/conferences/forum (including anti-bribery and ~ A: HEMNEg / BEmNeg /g3 wE(REREN
corruption training) E0gr=r )

B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, general  B: HEBBGE —REK  BHE  DEEAUARE

business, real estate, corporate governance and director’s duties and
responsibilities.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees including the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) to
assume responsibilities for and to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs with respective terms of reference. Details of the Board committees are
discussed below.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and are empowered to obtain independent’ professional advice at the
Company’s expense in appropriate circumstances.

Attendance of Directors at various meetings
During the Year, details of the Directors’ attendance in the following meetings are
set out below:

ExEeZ8e
ExrgoRy-fEseLZBeelakzie((&#
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B([REZBE]) REAWBERER  FEAEAR
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EERSEEBIHER
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Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HESEAEBITERRE

Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
=3 XY ERZEES FHEES REZEE RRBEAE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Jingguo 5/5 N/A 11 11 11
SRARE 5t & TEA
Mr. Zhang Guogiang 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
SRE GRS A TiE A TiE A N iE A
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Ms. Huang Yanping 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Huang Yanping% + TiE A TiE A N iE A
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Liu Da 5/5 5/5 N/A 1/1 1/1
Ell=es TiE A
Mr. Ma Yuntao 5/5 5/5 1/1 N/A 11
HBiBEREE N iE A
Dr. Li Huiqun 5/5 5/5 11 11 11

FEREL




AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems of the Company,
including reassessment of the financial and accounting policies, review of interim
reports, annual reports and financial information, etc. In addition, the Audit
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board, to be put
to its Shareholders for approval at the annual general meeting (*“AGM”), in relation
to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; review and
supervision of the external auditor in respect of its independence and objectivity,
the effectiveness of the audit procedures; formulation of policies on the provision
of non-audit services by the external auditor; handling any issues related to the
resignation or the removal of such auditor and the communication with the external
auditor on auditing matters.

As at 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee consisted of three members,
namely, Mr. Liu Da, Mr. Ma Yuntao and Dr. Li Huiqun who are all INEDs. Mr. Liu
Da is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The most up-to-date version of the
written terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, five Audit Committee meetings were convened. The Audit
Committee had performed the followings tasks, among others:

(i) reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2024;

(i) reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function;

(i) discussed with the auditor of the Company and reviewed their audit
findings;

(iv) reviewed the auditor’s remuneration;

(v) reviewed all non-audit services provided by the auditors to determine the
provision of such services would affect the independence of the auditors (if
any);

(vi) performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the corporate

governance policies and practices; and

(vii) made a recommendation to the Board on the appointment of the auditor of
the Company and approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the auditor of the Company.

After due and careful consideration with all necessary financial information, and
reports from management and the external auditors, the Audit Committee noted
that no suspected fraud or irregularities, significant internal control deficiencies, or
suspected infringement of laws, rules, or regulations had been found in respect
of the Group, and concluded at the meeting held on 28 March 2025 that the risk
management and internal control systems were adequate and effective.
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On 28 March 2025, the Audit Committee meeting was convened to review the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024, including the accounting principles and practices, in conjunction with the
Company’s external auditor. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of
its ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in this annual
report has complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Audit Committee therefore
resolved to recommend for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Prism
Hong Kong Limited as the auditor of the Company and that the relevant resolution
shall be put forth for it Shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2024 AGM.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and packages of the
Directors and senior management to the Board. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as the prevailing market conditions. The human resources department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources data for the
Remuneration Committee’s consideration.

As at 31 December 2024, the Remuneration Committee consisted of three
members, namely, Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Dr. Li Huigun and Mr. Ma Yuntao. Dr. Li
Huiqun and Mr. Ma Yuntao are INEDs while Mr. Zhang Jingguo is an Executive
Director. Mr. Ma Yuntao is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
most up-to-date version of the written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held. The
Remuneration Committee had reviewed and approved the remuneration of
Executive Directors, NED and INEDs.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE AND BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the structure,
size, diversity and composition of the Board regularly and make any changes
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, including making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board that assist
complementation of the Company’s corporate policy.

As at 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee consisted of three members,
namely, Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Dr. Li Huigun and Mr. Liu Da. Mr. Zhang Jingguo is
an executive Director while Dr. Li Huiqun and Mr. Liu Da are INEDs. Dr. Li Huiqun
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The most up-to-date version of
the written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy (the “Director Nomination
Policy”) for the Nomination Committee to identify and evaluate a suitable candidate
for nomination to (i) the Board for appointment; or (i) the Shareholders for election,
as Directors, at general meetings.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out a number of factors in making nomination,
including but not limited to the following:

o Skills, experience and professional expertise which are relevant to the
operations of the Group;

. Diversity in all aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy;

o Commitment in respect of sufficient time and participation to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board Committee(s);

° Character, experience and integrity, and is able to demonstrate a standard
of competence commensurate with the relevant position as a Director; and

o Requirements of independence of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held. The Board had
reviewed the current structure and composition of the Board and recommended
Mr. Zhang Jingguo and Mr. Liu Da to retire, and being eligible, offered themselves
for re-election in the AGM held on 10 January 2025 pursuant to Articles 24 and 25
of the Articles of Association and Code Provision B.2.2 of the CG Code.

Under Article 24 of the Articles of Association, subject to any requirements on
retirement of Directors by rotation as may be otherwise provided under the Listing
Rules, one-third of the Directors for the time being must retire from office at the
AGM. If the number of directors is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest
one-third must retire from office. Every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. According to Article 23 of the Articles of
Association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or by way
of addition to their number must retire from office at the next AGM following the
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-appointment. Every Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years by rotation or offers himself for
re-election.
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The Company notes increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives, sustainable and balanced
development. The Company adopted a diversity policy (“Diversity Policy”) which sets out
the approach to diversify the Board from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses
Board composition on behalf of the Board and will recommend the appointment of new
Director, when necessary, pursuant to the Diversity Policy.

In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has been considered based
on the Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will also consider factors based on
the Company’s business model, specific needs and meritocracy from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

During the Year, the Board comprises six Directors, including two Executive Directors, one
NED and three INEDs, and as at 31 December 2024, out of the six directors, there are
four male directors and two female directors, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The Board is also characterised by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of professional experience, skill and knowledge. Having
reviewed the Diversity Policy and the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee is
satisfied that the requirements set out in the Diversity Policy had been met.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy, on an annual basis to ensure
its effectiveness.

Diversity in Workforce

The Company recognises the importance of diversity in workforce throughout the Group as
a matter of corporate governance. The Group is committed to ensuring that recruitment
at all levels, including the Board, adheres to range of selection criteria in order to consider
a pool of talented individuals. The Group will continue to take gender diversity into
consideration during recruitment. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 310 full-time
employees with an overall gender ratio between male and female at approximately 67%
and 33%, respectively. The Nomination Committee considers that the existing workforce
composition has achieved gender diversity, and endeavours to discuss and agree on
measurable objectives and plans for achieving diversity, periodically and when necessary.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, remuneration paid or payable to the
Company’s auditors for the Group’s audit services was RMB1,850,000. No non-
audit services was provided by the auditors to the Group for the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Statements and Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
announcements in relation to the consolidated financial statements on annual and
interim results of the Group are published in a timely manner, within three months
and two months respectively of the year end and the half-year period end.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 82 to 84.
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Going Concern

Save as disclosed under the heading “Material uncertainties relating to going
concern” in the Independent Auditor’s Report and in note 2.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Notwithstanding the above, and as set
forth in the section headed “Management’s position, view and assessment on
the Disclaimer of Opinion” in this Corporate Governance Report, the Directors are
of the view that the Group have taken and will continue to implement plan and
measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position and the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The Auditor’s disclaimer of opinion and basis for such disclaimer
The external auditor of the Company, Prism Hong Kong Limited (the “Auditor”),
did not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 (“Disclaimer of Opinion”). Due to
the significance of the matters on the material uncertainties relating to going
concern as described in the section headed “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” in
the independent auditor’s report in this annual report, the Auditor was not able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion. Please refer to the section headed “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” in the
independent auditor’s report from pages 82 to 84 of this annual report for further
details on the basis for the Disclaimer of Opinion.

Management’s position, view and assessment on the Disclaimer of
Opinion

In view of the Disclaimer of Opinion, the Directors have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern. The following plans and measures are formulated to
mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the financial position of the Group,
including:

(@) The Company will continue to communicate proactively with its creditors,
especially noteholders, on mutually agreeable arrangements on payments
of outstanding principal and interests;

(b) The Group will implement various strategies to improve the Group’s income
from sales of properties, project management and sales, hotel operations,
rentals from investment properties and dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss to generate additional operating
cash inflows and putting extra efforts on the collection of outstanding sales
proceeds and other receivables;

(c) The Group is actively reviewing its debt structure and looking for funding
opportunities, including actively negotiating with several financial institutions
to obtain new loans at a reasonable cost; and

(d) The Group will continue to take active measures to control administrative
costs and unnecessary capital expenditures to relieve liquidity to support
operations.
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The Board is of the opinion that, taking into account the above-mentioned
plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Board is satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above plans and measures, coupled with the volatility of the
property section in China and the uncertainties to obtain continue support by the
banks and the Group’s creditor, the Board understood the concerns of the Auditor
that uncertainties exist as to whether the Group will be able to implement the plans
and measures successfully and the outcome of the plans and measures.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments may
have to be made to write down the carrying values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

Audit Committee’s view on the Disclaimer of Opinion

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion, the management’s
position concerning the Disclaimer of Opinion (the “Management’s Position”) and
measures taken by the Group to address the Disclaimer of Opinion. The Audit
Committee had discussed with the Board and the Group’s management and
agreed with the Management’s Position based on the reasons above. The Audit
Committee had also discussed with the Auditor regarding the financial position
of the Group, measures taken and to be taken by the Group, and considered the
Auditor’s rationale and understood their consideration in arriving their opinion.

There is no disagreement by the Board, the Group’s management nor the Audit
Committee in relation to the position taken by the Auditor regarding the going
concern issue and the basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

EEERAE EEINEAHBIRERE  AEEKA
HERANEGEES  RAURBREBNEEEREMNE
FISMMEET - At - ESTSEH - WEECER
HEEBINEBEH E2024F12 318 I FERNGA B
®EBRE -

BEW XS RERAL - Nz PREBETERN
WEERESRITRAEEBEREAREFNTHEE
- EESEMRBMNEY  DAEEEERIHE
Heat B R s b oA K5 B R IE S A RFET TN -

8 A EEEARELE - BIAELBEARRE E
MREEEEARESE  REMAREELRE—F
BESHRERE  ARBERBDEENRERDEEDF
EHNDBERAPDEERADAE - ZEHEBNTEL
ARG P B IR T R -

ERZEEHTRRERNBH

ERZEGCENTEREAUNEEBANTESR
BEANG(TEEENIS ) RARBERBRTER
ERRENER FEREZEGCREZTILALEE
BREETHW TERELAEARRAERENILS -
BERZESTEREMNG T AEENMBMR - A
SEHDERDEASRRNERE - WEE BRERIEIE R
FEREEEEREARRRNZE -

EFxg FAEEEEEMERZRSHREAMSE
RERBRGAMBRROAHEERARIN IS
EEROL -




RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems including a review on their
effectiveness for achieving long-term sustainable development of the Group. The
risk management and internal control systems, under a defined management
structure with limits of authority, are designed for the Group to identify and
manage the significant risks to pursue its business objectives, safeguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, enhance effectiveness and efficiency of
its operations, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for reliable
financial reporting, and ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives and can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for the determination of the Group’s risk profile within its
acceptable tolerance levels in business operation, oversight of management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of overall risk management process from
risk identification, risk assessment, establishment of appropriate risk responses and
regular risk evaluation and monitoring, so as to ensure the systems are effectively
established and maintained.

The risk management process is structured from management of the Group from
respective business functions at execution level to the Board, together assisted
by the Audit Committee in decision-making and monitoring level. Management of
the Group identifies, assesses and prioritises the key existing and potential risks
through a detailed assessment process and determines the appropriate mitigation
strategies and control measures in response to the identified risks. Ongoing
evaluation and monitoring of the identified risks, respective measures, and results
are carried out and reported to the Board regularly. The Board at decision-making
level, assisted by the Audit Committee, reviews the risk appetite, risk management
process and strategies and also the internal control systems and provide
recommendations for any improvement on the systems on an ongoing basis to
ensure risk management effectiveness.

The establishment of the internal audit & compliance department promote the
importance and construction of the compliance into the corporate culture, monitor
the effectiveness of the existing internal controls system of the Group, and provide
reasonable assurance to the Board for oversight of the internal control system
operated by the management.
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The internal audit & compliance department conducts regular internal audit review
across principal divisions of the Group, and, on a regular basis reports their finding
results with improvements directly to the Audit Committee to ensure the internal
controls are in place and adopted properly and effectively as intended. The scope
of internal audit review included principal divisions from finance department, risk
management department, treasury department, purchasing department and
sales department, etc. to ensure material controls have been covered during
the internal audit review process. Any matter or areas of improvement shall be
communicated to the divisional management and had them followed up on a timely
basis. Upon review of the Annual Risk Management and Internal Control System
Report conducted by the internal audit & compliance department, the Audit
Committee and the Board reviews and evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control system, at least annually on a regular basis.

The Board's annual review in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024 has
considered, among other things, (i) the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; (ii) the scope and quality of the
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems
(including the work of internal audit function); (iii) the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems (including the extent and frequency of
monitoring results to the Board or the Audit Committee); and (iv) the effectiveness
of the Company's processes for financial reporting and the Listing Rules
compliance. The Board and the Audit Committee are of the view there are no
material internal control defects identified by the internal audit & compliance
department during the course of internal audit review. With the view to ensure
adequacy of resources and experienced staff for the Company’s financial reporting
functions and prevent re-occurrence of a delay in results publication in future, the
Company has implemented the following measures:

i) The finance department will report to the executive Directors regularly to
keep them well informed about any issues relating to financial reporting and
to resolve such issue (if any) in a timely manner;

(i) For certain key finance positions, the Company may designate an
alternative suitable employee to ensure normal operations during special
circumstances;

(ii) The Company may consider to extend the notice period of certain key
finance personnel during contract renewal so as to allow the Company to
have more time in identifying suitable replacement; and

(iv) The Company will work with various parties, including external human
resources agencies, to identify potential candidates when situation requires.

With the discussion between management, the internal audit & compliance
department and the Audit Committee, the Board (with the concurrence of the Audit
Committee) considered that the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are effective and adequate. The review of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group is an ongoing process and the Board
maintains a continuing commitment to strengthening the Group’s internal control
environment and processes.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO and the Listing
Rules and the overriding principle that Inside Information should be announced
immediately when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of Inside Information are as follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has formulated inside information policies and disclosed its
policies on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution
of information to the public through channels such as financial reporting,
public announcements and its website;

o the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or Inside
Information; and

° the Group regularly reminds the directors and employees about due
compliance with all polices regarding the Inside Information, as well as
keeps them appraised of the latest regulatory updates.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well
as communication among board members. Mr. Yuen Ping Man (“Mr. Yuen”), the
Company Secretary of the Company was resigned with effect from 29 February
2024. Mr. Chang Eric Jackson (“Mr. Chang”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company with effect from 29 February 2024. Mr. Chang confirmed
that he has attended not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the Year in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Chang’s biography
is set out on page 44 of this annual report in the section of “Board of Directors and
Senior Management”.

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication Policy

The Board considers that having active communications with its Shareholders
and investors is important and this will enhance transparency and clarity in
public disclosures by the Company. Any significant events of the Group fall to be
disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate and complete manner through
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, so as to safeguard its
Shareholders’ rights of information and participation. The Board considers that the
annual general meeting is an important opportunity for direct communication with
its Shareholders. The notice of the annual general meeting together with relevant
documents will be sent out to its Shareholders at least 21 clear days prior to the
date on which the annual general meeting will be held. The notice contains details
on the procedures for voting by poll as well as other relevant information related to
the proposed resolutions.

The Board considers that the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy are affirmed and reflected by the active
participation of Directors and Shareholders to the Company’s general meetings
and other corporate events.
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Annual General Meeting

The annual general meetings of the Company provide opportunity for Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor will also attend
the annual general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

Shareholders’ Rights

(1

2

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”)

Shareholders may request the Directors to convene an EGM of the
company. The Directors are required to call an EGM if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings. Such request must state the general nature of the business to
be dealt with at the EGM and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the EGM. The request
may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and
must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it.

The Directors are required to call an EGM within 21 days after the date on
which the Directors become subject to the requirement. The EGM called
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not call an EGM, the Shareholders who requested the
meeting, or any of them representing more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves call the EGM. The EGM must be called
for a date not more than 3 months after the date on which the Directors
become subject to the requirement to call the EGM.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
meeting

Eligible Shareholders (as defined below) may submit a written request to
make proposals or move a resolution at the annual general meeting (the
“Request”). “Eligible Shareholder(s)” means:

(i) Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or

(ii) at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution
at the annual general meeting to which the requests relate.

The Request may be sent to the Company (a) in hard copy form or in
electronic form; (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (c) must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time
at which notice is given of that meeting.

The Company must then send a copy of the resolution at the Company’s
own expense to each shareholder entitled to receive notice of the annual
general meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and
(b) at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives
notice of the meeting.
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An Eligible Shareholder may request the Company to circulate, to the
Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a general meeting, a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a
proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting; or (b) other business
to be dealt with at that meeting (the “Statement”).

The expenses of the Company in circulating the Statement need not be paid
by the Eligible Shareholders who requested the circulation of the statement
if (@) the meeting to which the requests relate is an annual general meeting
of the Company; and (b) requests sufficient to require the Company to
circulate the statement are received in time to enable the company to send
a copy of the statement at the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.
Otherwise, (a) the expenses of the Company in circulating the Statement
must be paid by the Eligible Shareholders who requested the circulation of
the Statement unless the Company resolves otherwise; and (b) unless the
Company has previously so resolved, it is not bound to comply with the
circulation of the Statement unless there is deposited with or tendered to
it, not later than 7 days before the meeting, a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet its expenses in doing so.

(83) Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
A shareholder may send an enquiry to the Board at the registered office
of the Company at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board in written form, which
shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry.
In addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Investor Services Limited, the
share registrar of the Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and
disclosure compliance purposes only. The information does not represent and
should not be regarded as legal or other professional advice from the Company to
the Shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as Shareholders. The Company disclaims all
liabilities and losses incurred by the Shareholders in reliance on any contents of the
section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.

CONCLUSION

Going ahead, the Group will continue to review regularly its corporate governance
practices to maintain high level of transparency, to enhance the Company’s
competitiveness and operating efficiency and to ensure its sustainable development
and to generate greater returns for the stakeholder.
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EBREXEARAA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
R

%@Prism

To the members of Zensun Enterprises Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Zensun Enterprises Limited

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Zensun
Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 194, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on
these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group incurred
net loss of RMB2,172,935,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024 and as at
31 December 2024, the Group’s liabilities include bank and other borrowings and
relevant interest payable with their carrying amounts of RMB5,699,592,000 and
RMB553,765,000, respectively, of which RMB5,133,009,000 have been due for
settlement within one year or repayable on demand are included in current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position, while its available cash and cash
equivalent amounted to RMB317,544,000.

In addition, as at 31 December 2024, the Group had defaulted or cross defaulted
of certain bank and other borrowings, with the aggregate principle amounts and
interest payables of RMB3,841,383,000. These conditions, together with other
matters disclosed in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the
existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

Material uncertainties relating to going concern (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the directors of the
Company on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the results
of the successful implementation and outcome of the measures, as detailed in
note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, to be undertaken by the Group.
In view of the extent of the material uncertainties relating to the results of those
measures to be undertaken by the Group which might cast a significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern, we have disclaimed our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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EBREXEARAA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
R

Zensun Enterprises Limited

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (CONTINUED)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not
possible for us to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Lee Kwok Lun.

Prism Hong Kong Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Kwok Lun

Practising Certificate Number: P06294

Hong Kong
28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEiEER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ ZE2024F12 431 H ILF[E

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff & AR®T R ARETT
Revenue Uk 25 6 9,542,095 20,034,898
Cost of sales SHE A (9,179,011) (19,262,196)
Gross profit EF 363,084 772,702
Other income E A 7 7,200 8,698
Other gains and losses, net H bz & E518)F 58 7 (1,563,595) (1,610,103)
Administrative expenses 1THER (142,515) (173,631)
Sales and marketing expenses HERTHEERER (56,247) (97,043)
Finance costs A& A AR 8 (289,651) (438,624)
Loss before tax BRBLATE 1B 9 (1,681,724) (1,538,001)
Income tax expense B RS 12 (491,211) (709,271)
Loss for the year FEEE (2,172,935) (2,247,272)
Attributable to: T5I& T e
Owners of the Company RARER A (2,181,963) (2,298,458)
Non-controlling interests e R A 9,028 51,186
(2,172,935) (2,247,272)
Loss per share attributable to owners VAN
of the Company BEANELEERER
Basic (RMB cents) ER(ARES) 14 (114.0) (120.1)
Diluted BE N/A N/A

TE A TNER
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Zensun Enterprises Limited [ERAEXERAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEHWER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ ZE2024F12 431 H ILF[E

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Loss for the year FEEE (2,172,935) (2,247,272)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2wk
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be reclassified AR E B HHEN Y EEEE 2
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hiz2mikss(&i8) :
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations BMEEINEEMEE ZE R Z58 8,247 (23,013)
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified REZBEBETEENHBEEER
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: ZEmEmilias
Exchange difference on translation of HMEIEBINETS I EE 2
non-foreign operations ME 5 ZE R 3,247 61,648
Fair value gains of property, plant and equipment upon ERSNEYERYE BEX
transfer to investment properties, net of tax HENRAFERE(BE) - 12,511
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEE
net of tax Wz (Bifk) 11,494 51,146
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEREEBEAE (2,161,441) (2,196,126)
Attributable to: T 77 L -
Owners of the Company RAEHER A (2,170,767) (2,247,460)
Non-controlling interests eI 9,326 51,334
(2,161,441) (2,196,126)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R R

As at 31 December 2024  1A2024%F12 A31H

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff & AR®T R ARETT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKEE 15 345,968 363,203
Investment properties BB 16 719,918 810,535
Goodwill [EE= 17 - -
Intangible assets B EE 18 22,452 67,368
Deferred tax assets EREF IR E B 30 125,620 485,478
Total non-current assets SEmB A EEEE 1,213,958 1,726,584
Current assets RENEE
Completed properties held for sale RIEREZERTIYE 21 9,279,745 9,761,774
Properties under development BERAPYE 22 24,349,024 28,675,621
Accounts receivable, other receivables and FEURBRFX ~ E fih FE UG TR IE K2
other assets HEMEE 23 2,331,394 2,915,597
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZ SREE 24 213,387 296,979
Prepaid income tax and tax recoverable TR AT 1S 50 & AT U Bl £ 18 1,127,057 1,179,407
Pledged deposits BEFILEE 20 123,711 130,913
Restricted bank balances PR S IRTT 4S8R 20 541,908 1,184,149
Cash and cash equivalents Be KRS EEIEB 20 317,544 528,296
Total current assets MENEEERE 38,283,770 44,672,736
Current liabilities RERE
Accounts payable, deposits received and accruals EAERR - BRiRE RETER 25 9,664,071 8,680,025
Contract liabilities = ah=F 26 12,954,604 18,087,691
Amounts due to related companies AN NG O] 27 1,651,058 1,218,038
Loans from a related company KE—MEEEARZER 28 7,223,176 7,273,704
Bank and other borrowings WITREMEER 29 4,579,244 5,496,112
Tax liabilities MIEAE 1,070,749 1,045,181
Total current liabilities mEB B EERE 37,142,902 41,800,751
Net current assets REBEEFEE 1,140,868 2,871,985
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAEBERABER 38,283,770 4,598,569




Zensun Enterprises Limited [ERAEXERAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R R

As at 31 December 2024  1A2024%F12 A31H

2024 2023
2024%F 2023%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff & AR®T R AR®TT
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Rental deposits received BEWHEERS 25 444 520
Bank and other borrowings WITREMEER 29 1,120,348 1,187,611
Deferred tax liabilities RLEFIEA E 12 271,357 286,320
Total non-current liabilities JEME A ELETE 1,392,149 1,474,451
Net assets BEFE 962,677 3,124,118
Equity e
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AARHEA AE (LR
Share capital A&7 32 5,326,923 5,326,923
Reserves i 33 (4,429,117) (2,258,350)
897,806 3,068,573
Non-controlling interests R R = 64,871 55,545
Total equity ek 962,677 3,124,118
Zhang Jingguo Zhang Guoqgiang
REKED REIE
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

—EomEER

FAAREARE
Retained
Capital PRC** Property profits/ Non-
Share reduction statutory Exchange revaluation (accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* Reserve* Reserve* losses}* Total interests equity
ERHE g nx  REEA/
Bx Fif EERE SERE EfthfE  (RiEE) & FERER BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR  AR®Tn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn
(Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 33)
(Hzt32) (K&33) (Hi£33)
At 1 January 2023 20231718 5,326,923 119,330 331,565 369,747 - (831,531) 5,316,034 4211 5,320,245
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(ER)/ i - - - - - (2208458 (2298458 51186 (2247272)
Other comprehensive income EREMEENE
for the year:
Bxchange differences on franslation ~ B 7 ER £ - - - 38,487 - - 38,486 148 38,63
Fair value gaing on transfer from ERERANER
properly, plantand equipmentto  ¥1% « BERRIEL
investment properties, netoftax ~ ATEME (i) = = = = 12511 = 12,511 = 12,511
Total comprehensive income/(oss) A2 ENE/(BF8)
for the year % - - - 38,487 12511 (2208458  (2.247461) 5133 (2,196,127)
Transfer to PRC statutory reseve.~ ERZHEEERAE - - 16,465 - - (16,465) - - -
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31R 5,326,923 119,330 348,030 408,233 12,511 (3,146,454) 3,068,573 55,545 3,124,118
Attributable to owners of the Company
TN
Retained
Capital PRC* Property profits/ Non-
Share reduction statutory Exchange  revaluation (accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* Reserve* Reserve* losses)* Total interests equity
ERHA ki ng  RERN/
Bx f ERRE SERE EfthfE  (RiEE) B FERER BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABETR AEETT ARETR AEETR ARETT ARETR AEETT ARETT AEET R
(Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 33)
(Hiz32) (Hi3t33) (Hi3¥33)
At 1 January 2024 H2024%1A18 5,326,923 119,330 348,030 408,233 12,511 (3,146,454) 3,068,573 55,545 3,124,118
Loss for the year EEFR - - - - - (2,181,963 (2,181,963 9,028 (2,172,935)
Other comprehensive income ~ FRE 2 AN
for the year:
Exchange differences on hEVEHER
translation - - - 11,196 - - 11,196 298 11,494
Fair value gains on transfer ERENEMERTE
from property, plant and BERRENATE
equipment to investment Yiga (if&)
properties, net of tax - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive FR2ERE/ (BR)EE
income/(loss) for the year - - - 11,196 - (2,181963)  (2,170,767) 9,326 (2,161,441)
Transfer to PRC statutory reserve EEZREEF il - - 13,584 - - (13,584) - - -
At 31 December 2024 H2024F12A31R 5,326,923 119,330 361,614 419,429 12,511 (5,342,001) 897,806 64,871 962,677

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated negative reserves of *
RMB4,429,117,000 (2023: negative reserves of RMB2,258,350,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position. 2,258,350,0007T) °

** PRC refers to the People’s Republic of China. For the purposes of these financial ~ **
statements only, except where the context specifies otherwise, references to
Mainland China or the PRC exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

X% BEREN
SN B -

ZEFRBEREREMBERRABRAZEE BFHE
AR #4,429,117,0007C (2023 F : B EFHARE

TEETEARANE - BRZSHBEERRME - B
BREAMEBRES BFARA
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Zensun Enterprises Limited [ERAEXERAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ ZE2024F12 431 H ILF[E

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi ARBTT ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities REXKMEBRENE
Loss before tax Gl i} (1,681,724) (1,538,001)
Adjustments for: KRB IBFE :
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets BAFEFABR SR
at fair value through profit or loss BEZAFERBE (K 7 89,298 (40,324)
Fair value loss on investment properties REMFEANTEERE 7 30,079 7,968
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  MELEETE 9 14,225 11,189
Interest income FEUA 7 (2,553) (8,103)
Write-down of properties under development and WOREE B R M E
completed properties held for sale to HEZERIWESR
net realisable value BN 7 1,391,123 1,273,227
Provision for impairment of goodwil EERERE 7 - 300,357
Impairment losses on accounts receivable JRE UK B 3k e At R MR R IR
and other receivables, net BIEEEFEE 7 28,270 4,685
Finance costs & A 8 289,651 438,624
Operating cash flows before working capital changes &iE&Z S 2 KEWERE 158,369 449,522
Decrease in accounts receivable, other receivables  FEUTBRERR - H fth e U 3518 &
and other assets Hith & E R 555,857 142,900
Decrease in restricted bank deposits from pre-sale ~ EY)%EFEEFAERIBEE Y
proceeds of properties SR HI SR 1T E RUR 642,241 181,756
Increase in properties under development BRPYIZEILM (3,709,240) (4,153,253)
Decrease in completed properties held for sale BHEHEZE R IYERD 9,155,817 19,237,274
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable, JERERFR ~ BEUIES R
deposits received and accruals ezt E R Ofd) 789,678 (818,111)
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEERD (6,892,264) (13,240,042)
Cash generated from operating activities KEEBSR G 700,458 2,300,046
Tax paid BHTIE (69,698) (254,835)

Net cash flows generated from operating activities REEBMSREREFH 630,760 2,045,211
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2024 2023
2024%F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi ARBTT ARET T
Cash flows from investing activities BRETHMBREMNE
Interest received B FIE 2,553 8,103
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEXEYEE 7 TS RIE 22,235 -
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment &A% - &= k& 4E1E B (11) (169)
Net cash flows generated from investing activities REESHERERNEFHE 24,777 7,934
Cash flows from financing activities BMETHMBRERE
Release of pledged deposits R E RS 12,628 12,989
Placement of pledged deposits FHRERRIRE (5,426) (6,387)
New bank and other borrowings raised FERITREMEE 350,421 1,506,639
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERITRAMEES (1,504,406) (3,033,816)
Interest paid ERFLE (102,300) (708,004)
Repayment to related companies EBEEARFIA (77,901) (138,450)
Advance from related companies TEUK EAE A RIZRIA 510,921 318,382
Loans repaid to a related company EE—HEEARTER (63,617) (1,015,187)
Loans received from a related company WER—FIRE R R E R 13,089 1,045,312
Net cash flows used in financing activities BB EE AR SRS FHE (866,591) (2,018,522)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash HERBESEEH
and cash equivalents (B2, /g (211,054) 34,623
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RENzBeREeEMEER 528,296 488,199
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SINGE P 3R S B 22 AR 302 5,474
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZHEERESZEER 20 317,544 528,296
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRRESHEEBERIW
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the SRA AR BRRATIRZ
consolidated statement of financial position HWE RIS EEIER 20 317,544 528,296
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located at 24th Floor,
Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Joy Town Inc., a private limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The ultimate
holding company of the Company is Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited,
a private limited liability company incorporated in Singapore, as trustee of
a discretionary trust which is set up by Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”),
a non-executive director of the Company. Ms. Huang is the settlor and
protector of the discretionary trust. Mr. Zhang Jingguo (“Mr. Zhang”), the
Chairman and an executive director of the Company, is the spouse of Ms.
Huang.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 45.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2024 have been approved for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”)
on 28 March 2025.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
These annual financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the applicable
requirements of the Companies Ordinance and include the
applicable disclosure requirement of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

The material accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new
or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately RMB2,172,935,000, and as of that date, the
Group’s current portion of bank and other borrowings amounted to
RMB4,579,244,000, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted
to RMB317,544,000.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group did not make payments on
certain principal and interest payable of its USD denominated
senior notes due in 2023, which had been delisted upon maturity
on 13 September 2023; the principal and interest payable of its
USD denominated senior notes due in 2024 (“2024 Senior Notes”),
which had also been delisted upon maturity on 23 April 2024, and
the interest payable of its USD denominated senior notes due in
2025 (“2025 Senior Notes”), triggering an event of default or cross
default of various borrowings pursuant to the terms and conditions
of respective agreements. The Company had suspended the trading
of its USD denominated senior notes due in 2025 on 2 April 2024.

As of 31 December 2024, the aggregate principal amount and
interest payables of the said USD denominated senior notes
and bank and other borrowings in default or cross default was
approximately RMB3,841,3883,000.

These events or conditions indicate that material uncertainties exist
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. The Directors have given careful consideration to
the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern. The
following plans and measures are formulated to mitigate the liquidity
pressure and to improve the financial position of the Group:

(@) The Company will continue to communicate proactively with
its creditors, especially noteholders, on mutually agreeable
arrangements on payments of outstanding principal and
interests;

(b) The Group will implement various strategies to improve
the Group’s income from sales of properties, project
management and sales, hotel operations, rentals from
investment properties and dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss to generate
additional operating cash inflows and putting extra efforts
on the collection of outstanding sales proceeds and other
receivables;

2.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(©) The Group is actively reviewing its debt structure and looking
for funding opportunities, including actively negotiating
with several financial institutions to obtain new loans at a
reasonable cost; and

(d) The Group will continue to take active measures to control
administrative costs and unnecessary capital expenditures to
relieve liquidity to support operations.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
forecast covering a period of not less than twelve months from the
end of the reporting period. They are of the opinion that, taking into
account of the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the directors believe it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2024 on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, given the volatility of the property sector
in China and the uncertainties to obtain continuous support by the
banks and the Group’s creditors, material uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Company will be able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
may have to be made to write down the values of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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2.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4

2.5

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - Dbased on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for a non-financial asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.
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2.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

() the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iif) is @ member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group; or
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EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

100  Zensun Enterprises Limited

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EESTEEE)
(CONTINUED)
2.6 Related parties (continued) 26 EEAL(HE)
()  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b) ZAA—EEBIFEATEMR
applies: —IEIGMF

(0

(i)

)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other

entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the

(ii)

aﬁ—gﬁZt'  t
ATRAZHEAR)
2%%ﬂ HABPE

same third party; =HZEERE
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HERBR—E2E=FE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; BZAELE mME—F
BERZFE=FEBZHE
NG
(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) ZER Ty AN E B Bl B K
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity SEEHMECERZES
related to the Group; & FI T 5% 2 BE B 12 48 F 5t
2l
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) M?i‘éﬁ HE@MATZ AL
identified in (a); PEHI s R
(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (viiy  REOFTREZATHZ
over the entity or is a member of the key management ?%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ HE 77 _JZ?% %
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); B (ZEBZ 7)
and ZERE EE/\EZ—
(vilij  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (viii ZE® HEMEEEZ

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

TR ERE  AAER
SALEEZFARREE
ZEIEAERE °



2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2%

2.78% to 10%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 6.67% to 20%

20% to 50%

Land and buildings

Hotel
Leasehold improvement

Furniture, office equipment and
motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

2.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-
of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as
a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9

2.10

2.11

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Contract benefit is recognised as intangible assets and amortised on
the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful economic
lives:

Contracts benefit 50 months

The useful life of contract benefit is assessed based on the remaining
period of the property development.

Contract benefit

Contract benefit acquired in a business combination is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date, which is related to the future
acquisition of the land use right. Before completing the acquisition of
the land use right, contract benefit is tested for impairment annually
and is not amortised. And after completing the acquisition of the
land use right, contract benefit is subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. The useful life
of contract benefit is assessed based on the remaining period of
the property development. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the period of the property development.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period and net realisable
value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
except those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment
of the total costs of land and buildings attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated costs to be
incurred in selling the properties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

2.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Lease

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of offices and motor vehicles (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Sale and leaseback transactions with variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate where the Group acts as a
seller-lessee. For sale and leaseback transactions with variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate, lease liabilities
are recognised at the commencement date of the leasebacks at the
present value of expected lease payments to be made over the lease
term. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
expected lease payments. Any differences between the payments
made for the lease and the lease payments that reduce the carrying
amount of lease liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
term and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due
to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13 Financial instruments

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost
are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is, that date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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HE2024F12A31HIEFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.13 Financial instruments (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair

value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity investments are
also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss

when the right of payment has been established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

2.

ERETHE(E)

213 £WMITAE)

RERAMEHEE (&)
REEE
SREEREDBZRE

=113

T2

REHERAGEZ EREE(EBIR)
BEHERATIEZEREERRERE
BRAZEFE > YA BETE - &
RALTER BRI SORER - W RER
RBEEPHRER

BATEFABRGZ SREE
BATEAABSEZEHEERATE
R RERIIR - MR FEZEA
NP AR AER

b 2R ) 62 48 N S (3 3 45 O T AR B 3 R 4
BATEFARMEEKE 277 ET
DB BEEE - IERERB IR X
MBS ERRRPER /LMK
A °

AU TER T B E
CREEN(WER) - HeMEEN—
HoRk—HARREREEN DX
ETIERFE LERAIBAEELES
MBARMEBLR)

—  KRREAEMERSRENE
MEER 5

- AEECDERWIZABEMS
REenEWNEN  REBEB—A
(84 28 REEARBRET
ROBERT » A—BE=FXMN
FEBURESREBNEE © K@)
AEBECEEZREERNBAE
2 R K B3 - 3k (b) AN & H 3 A%
BERAREZEEERBAN DR
feRkER - BEEERZEEED
PEHIHE -



2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payables, amounts
due to related companies, loans from a related company, bank and
other borrowings, and financial liabilities in other payables, deposits
and accruals.

The Group classifies financial liabilities that arise from a supplier
finance arrangement within accounts and bills payables in the
consolidated statement of financial position if they have a similar
nature and function to accounts payables. This is the case if the
supplier finance arrangement is part of the working capital used in
the Group’s normal operating cycle, the level of security provided is
similar to accounts payables and the terms of the liabilities that are
part of the supply chain finance arrangement are not substantially
different from the terms of accounts payables that are not part
of the arrangement. Cash flows related to liabilities arising from
supplier finance arrangements that are classified in accounts and
bills payables in the consolidated statement of financial position
are included in operating activities in the statement of cash flows.
Otherwise, the financial liabilities are classified in bank and other
borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial position and
the related cash flows are included in financing activities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.
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HE2024F12A31HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (accounts payables, other
payables and borrowings)

After initial recognition, accounts payables, other payables, banks
and other borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with
the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.13

2.14

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

2.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable and
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable and that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.15

2.16

217

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the country
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

2.
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2.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

217

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

217

2.18

2.19

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of properties and services provided in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
taxes.

(@) Sale of properties Revenue from the sale of properties in
the ordinary course of business is recognised at a point in
time when the purchaser obtains the physical possession
or the legal title of the completed property and the Group
has the present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

(b) Project management services Revenue from project
management services derived from the provision of
management and sale services in connection with
development of property projects is recognised when
the relevant services are rendered and the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.

(c) Property management services Revenue from the provision
of property management services is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

(d) Hotel operation Revenue from room sales and other ancillary
guest services is recognised over time on a daily basis, and
revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the goods is transferred to customers.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20

2.21

2.22

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme and pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in Mainland
China are required to participate in a pension scheme (the “Pension
Scheme”) operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the Pension Scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme.
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2.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the Hong Kong dollar. These
financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the exception
of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.
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2.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Hong Kong and overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB, including the Hong
Kong dollar (HK$), United States dollar (“USD”) and Singapore
dollar (“SGD”). As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of
the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve except to the extent that the differences are attributable to
non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

3.1

New and amended HKFRS Accounting Standards that
are effective for annual periods beginning on 1 January
2024

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the

following new and amended HKFRS Accounting Standards issued

by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations and

effective for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the

annual period beginning on 1 January 2024:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the "2022
Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Except for those mentioned below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRS Accounting Standards had no material impact
on how the results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current” and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 and Amendments to HKAS 1 “Non-
current Liabilities with Covenants”

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by a right
to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist at the end of
the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled in its
own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion option in a
convertible liability is itself accounted for as an equity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Additional disclosures
are required for non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of its liabilities
as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 and concluded that the classification
of its liabilities as current or non-current remained unchanged upon
initial application of the amendments. Accordingly, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

3.2

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting

Standards

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and revised HKFRSs have been published
but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the

Group.
HKFRS 18
HKFRS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 21
Annual Improvements to

HKFRS Accounting
Standards - Volume 11

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements?®

Subsidiaries without Public
Accountability: Disclosures®

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

8 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on amended HKFRSs that are expected to have impact
on the Group’s accounting policies is provided below. Other
amended HKFRS Accounting Standards are not expected to have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

3.2

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
While a number of sections have been brought forward from HKAS
1 with limited changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements for
presentation within the statement of profit or loss, including specified
totals and subtotals. Entities are required to classify all income
and expenses within the statement of profit or loss into one of the
five categories: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and
discontinued operations and to present two new defined subtotals.
It also requires disclosures about management-defined performance
measures in a single note and introduces enhanced requirements on
the grouping (aggregation and disaggregation) and the location of
information in both the primary financial statements and the notes.
Some requirements previously included in HKAS 1 are moved to
HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors, which is renamed as HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of
Financial Statements. As at consequence of the issuance of HKFRS
18, limited, but widely applicable, amendments are made to HKAS
7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per Share and
HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition, there are minor
consequential amendments to other HKFRS Accounting Standards.
HKFRS 18 and the consequential amendments to other HKFRS
Accounting Standards are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier application permitted.
Retrospective application is required. The Group is currently
analysing the new requirements and assessing the impact of HKFRS
18 on the presentation and disclosure of the Group’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 19 Disclosures by Subsidiaries that Do Not Have
Public Accountability

HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply reduced disclosure
requirements while still applying the recognition, measurement and
presentation requirements in other HKFRSs. To be eligible, at the
end of the reporting period, an entity must be a subsidiary as defined
in HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, cannot have public
accountability and must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that
prepares consolidated financial statements available for public use
which comply with HKFRS Accounting Standards. Earlier application
is permitted. As the Company is a listed company, it is not eligible to
elect to apply HKFRS 19. Some of the Company’s subsidiaries are
considering the application of HKFRS 19 in their specified financial
statements.
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

3.2

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify the date on which
a financial asset or financial liability is derecognised and introduce
an accounting policy option to derecognise a financial liability
that is settled through an electronic payment system before the
settlement date if specified criteria are met. The amendments
clarify how to assess the contractual cash flow characteristics of
financial assets with environmental, social and governance and
other similar contingent features. Moreover, the amendments clarify
the requirements for classifying financial assets with non-recourse
features and contractually linked instruments. The amendments also
include additional disclosures for investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial instruments with contingent features. The amendments shall
be applied retrospectively with an adjustment to opening retained
profits (or other component of equity) at the initial application date.
Prior periods are not required to be restated and can only be
restated without the use of hindsight. Earlier application of either all
the amendments at the same time or only the amendments related
to the classification of financial assets is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRS 3. ﬁ@
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) =1k

TREETERMBREE
e ()

2T

3.2

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and how
it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require disclosures of
information that enable users of financial statements to understand
the impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate comparative information. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate component
of equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards -
Volume 11 Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11
set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7 (and the accompanying
Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 7. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The
amendments have updated certain wording in paragraph
B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs IG1, IG14 and 1G20B of
the Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7 for the purpose
of simplification or achieving consistency with other
paragraphs in the standard and/or with the concepts
and terminology used in other standards. In addition, the
amendments clarify that the Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7 does not necessarily illustrate all the requirements
in the referenced paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it create
additional requirements. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments clarify
that when a lessee has determined that a lease liability has
been extinguished in accordance with HKFRS 9, the lessee is
required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and recognise
any resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In addition, the
amendments have updated certain wording in paragraph
5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A of HKFRS 9 to remove
potential confusion. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

3.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting
Standards (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards -
Volume 11 Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7 (continued)

° HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described in
paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just one example of various
relationships that might exist between the investor and other
parties acting as de facto agents of the investor, which
removes the inconsistency with the requirement in paragraph
B73 of HKFRS 10. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

o HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments replace
the term “cost method” with “at cost” in paragraph 37 of
HKAS 7 following the prior deletion of the definition of “cost
method”. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

4.1 Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year,
which is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
The assessment of the going concern assumption involves making
a judgement by the directors, at a particular point of time, about
the future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The directors consider that the Group has the capability
to continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that may individually or
collectively cast a significant doubt upon the going concern
assumption are set out in note 2.1 to the financial statements.

3.

4.

Annual Report 2024 — 2 — PUFEF IR

RANFE

o

&Nﬁjéﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ

/\IJ g:‘l_ /\IJ Il_-.-_
32 DEMBREMZEBMBREE
Bt Al ()

BB EER B EREEHE —
BINEEBYBHREEANEIY  TE
BB EERET7Y - FEYKHREES
B BEEUBHEEERAF10HRE
BB ERETHISTE(F)

. %‘\i’éﬁﬂ‘%#&%ﬁg,ﬁw 5105R4R A B
B  SFIABERE - BB
HEEBIF105REB74B AT
RERKEERIEAREEETR
RIEAREMEH 2 MA]gEFE
MEZEBERz—  #mER T HE
BB RS ERNE105EB73
Eﬁ%i%?—@zi? S FF AT

o FMHERE AT AN AN & B Ay B
%&Ei’%jﬁﬂﬁﬁém/a

. EEEHEAFTRESRE
o EZ%%‘J%@FEXZK%JE’JE%
21 BRIAKBEEEEAE
7HREB7TER T E’]mEmFﬁ$P&J*§
BRTZKAETE | - £ FFIRATE
A - HEEAAH RSB WM G
BRI E|ERZE -

EREHHE R MG

REAREE 2 MBRRE - BEREERELEH
Bhm AX BERBBEZERSE  KHE
%Kﬁ?ﬁﬁ%u&iﬁﬁ B 2 FI B - (At R B
& o N - ARZERI NG ZTIEERER
—J&réﬁlﬁAEfé/,\ﬂi‘%i"ZQFIﬁﬁEEETE
EHERFE -

41 BFELKEEE
RERAEESHBEZBEF  B¥
Ritst 2 BB  BERERIEEHE
MR RBAEERRE AR E
REFORLE . I DHEAMBRER
ERACEBRBREAFEZETEY
B o IR ECLRER  BEEFNE
FERMERAE ETRE 2 EHHMRRZ
ﬂixﬁi%ffﬂj‘#ul%ﬁ o %%ﬂﬁz P NEE
BRENIZEGE - MA@k LR
?Tﬁ*%«HEM%méMiFﬁ Bses
BEBRR 2 EASHFRAEHEAT

WARMFE2.1 o

123



124

Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

4,

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.2

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2024 was nil (2023: Nil). Further details are given in note
17 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable
and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts
receivable and other receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer
type and rating).

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can
lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts
receivable and other receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements, respectively.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.2

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with

adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the dates of the transactions that occurred at those
prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar properties
in the same location and condition, and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2024
was RMB719,918,000 (2023: RMB810,535,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and
a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 16 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. An
intangible asset not yet available for use is tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

4.
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HE2024F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.2

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2024 was RMB10,758,000
(2023: RMB32,308,000). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2024 was RMB2,462,966,000 (2023:
RMB1,390,227,000). Further details are contained in note 30 to the
financial statements.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT
is based on management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to
the determination by the tax authorities upon the completion of the
property development projects. The Group has not finalised its LAT
calculation and payments with the tax authorities for all its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will impact
on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in which
the differences realise.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.2

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Net realisable value assessment of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

The Group carried out assessment on net realisable value of
properties under development and completed properties held
for sale at the end of each reporting period and compared the
costs and its net realisable value. The net realisable value is the
estimated future selling price less estimated cost of completion
or the estimated costs necessary to make the sale (if any). The
estimated future selling prices are estimated by management with
reference to the Group’s pre-sale selling prices and the recent
selling prices of similar properties in the nearby or relevant locations.
The management also estimated the future selling expenses and
the expected costs to completion by reference to the actual selling
expenses of the Groups’ completed projects, adjusted by certain
current market data, the legal and regulating framework and general
market conditions. The Group’s properties under development
and completed properties held for sale are all situated in the
PRC, details of which are set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and notes 21 and 22 to the financial statements.
At 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale were
approximately RMB24,349,024,000 (2023: RMB28,675,621,000)
and RMB9,279,745,000 (2023: RMB9,761,774,000), respectively,
which are expected to be recovered through future sales and stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group carried out
assessment on net realisable value at the end of the reporting period
and recognised RMB1,410,613,000 (2023: RMB1,431,831,000) and
RMBS3,246,703,000 (2023: RMB2,141,893,000) of the write-down
for properties under development and completed properties held for
sale, respectively, for the year end 31 December 2024. When there
is any decrease in the net realisable value of the properties and it is
lower than the cost of the properties, loss will be recognised on the
properties under development and completed properties held for
sale in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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HE2024F12A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.2

4.3

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had contingent liabilities relating
to guarantees amounting to approximately RMB18,227,453,000
(2023: RMB19,614,491,000) in respect of mortgage facilities
provided by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans
entered into by property buyers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant
to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments
by these property buyers, the Group would be responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interests thereon and any penalties owed by the defaulted buyers
to the banks. The Group would be entitled to take over legal title to
and possession of the related properties. These guarantees will be
released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the mortgage loan
by the buyers of the property; and (ii) the issuance of the property
ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion
of the deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, no provision for the guarantee contracts was
recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 as the default risk is low and in case of
default in payments, the net realisable value of the related properties
can cover the outstanding principal together with the accrued
interests and penalties. Should the actual outcome be different from
expected, provision for losses will be recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Judgements

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes arising from
investment properties that are using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties — senior housing communities located in the United States
of America (the “USA”) — are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time rather than through
sale whereas those situated in Hong Kong and Singapore are not
held under such a business model. Therefore, the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted for properties of senior housing
communities but is not rebutted for properties located in Hong Kong
and Singapore. The Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on
changes in fair value of these investment properties located in Hong
Kong and Singapore as the Group is not subject to any income
taxes on disposal of these investment properties.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

4.3 Judgements (continued)

Deferred tax on withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding corporate
income taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax liabilities, based
upon the likely distribution level of such earnings from these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred
tax liabilities arising from the withholding tax associated with the
investments in subsidiaries established in the PRC for the year ended
31 December 2024 was RMB60,247,000 (2023: RMB60,247,000).
Further details are contained in note 30 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has six reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@) Property development in the PRC

(b) Project management services in the PRC
(c) Hotel operations in the PRC
(d) Property investment and management in the United States of

America (“USA” or “US”) in American Housing REIT, Inc. (“AHR”)
(e) Property investment other than AHR
() Securities trading and investment

The Group has property investment and/or management businesses in
Hong Kong, the USA and Singapore. Other than AHR which is operated in
the USA, the property investment businesses in other regions are evaluated
together and assessed as one operating segment by the management
previously and up to 31 December 2024.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except that certain other gains
and losses, corporate and unallocated income and expenses (including
unallocated finance costs) are excluded from this measurement.
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(CONTINUED)

HE2024F12A31HIEFE
5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, tax liabilities and
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are

managed on a group basis.

There are no differences from the Group’s annual financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2024 on the basis of segmentation or on
the basis of measurement of segment profit or loss, segment assets and

liabilities.

Segment revenue and segment results

Segment revenue

reEBER (&)
DEEETBIEELEHBEE « B RARER
PEEE  RZEEERAEEEEEE -
DHEBTRBELCHBAERGS HEBEUAK
BBRAFRARDEEE  BRFABERAEER
EEEE o
AEBEE2024F12A31B IEFEZ FEME
MEANRDEHEER DB P HEEREE
ZETEREETmIEER o

7 AP K 7 ER AR

Segment results

2 ez DEBELE

2024 2023 2024 2023

2024 2023%F 2024%F 2023%F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT AR%Tx ARBTRT AR®TR

Property development in the PRC AR B YRR 9,436,079 19,917,712 (1,591,995)  (1,554,386)
Project management services in R 218 B B8 R

the PRC 17,498 32,222 9,450 16,710

Hotel operations in the PRC PR B 2 B S i 36,226 34,986 17,053 14,757
Property investment and HAHRETT 2 MHEEE

management on AHR KER 10,693 15,331 (3,837) (10,585)

Property investment other than AHR AHRASNZ ¥ 248 & 24,725 17,318 (9,818) 13,318

Securities trading and investment FHEBENEE 16,874 17,329 (72,478) 57,646

9,542,095 20,034,898 (1,651,625) (1,462,540)

Unallocated corporate income RAOBERAFUA - -

Unallocated corporate expenses RAOMARFALZ (30,099) (75,461)

Loss before tax B % AT S 1B (1,681,724)  (1,538,001)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REITER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets DEBEE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Property development in the PRC R MEERE 38,365,212 44,889,330
Project management services in the PRC R E 218 B EERTE 3,248 6,745
Hotel operations in the PRC AR B 2 B G & 8 135,353 137,929
Property investment and management on AHR HAHRETZMERERER 248,393 207,817
Property investment other than AHR AHRIASNZ M ERE 352,819 680,369
Securities trading and investment BHREEMRE 213,533 297,079
Segment assets DEREE 39,318,558 46,219,269
Unallocated assets AOBCEE 179,170 180,051
Total assets BB E 39,497,728 46,399,320
Segment liabilities PHERE
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Property development in the PRC R MEERE 36,366,713 41,100,109
Project management services in the PRC R E 218 B EERT 994 1,063
Hotel operations in the PRC R 2L &8 1,608 4,070
Property investment and management on AHR HAHRETZMERERER 128,559 62,367
Property investment other than AHR AHRIASNZ MR E 70,453 1,323,000
Segment liabilities DEPEE 36,568,327 42,490,609
Unallocated liabilities ROBEE 1,966,724 784,593

Total liabilities EEE 38,535,051 43,275,202
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HE2024F12A31HIEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REITER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and segment results DEN S R DI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE2024F12A31HILFEE
Property
investment
Project and  Property
Property  management management  investment  Securities
development services Hotel onAHR  otherthan tradingand  Segment
in the PRC inthe PRC  operations in the USA AHR investment total  Unallocated Total
RERY
AHRET
RRE RpEZ ZMERE  AHRBN  BHEE
ZME%E  BREERE  EEEE RER 2ME¥RE kRE 4948 AR @it
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR ARMTR  ARMTR ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETR
Addtions to investment properties  REANERNE « BER
and property, plant and equipment  REZRE 11 - - - - - 11 - 11
Depreciation of property, nE  BERRERE
plant and equipment 13,452 - 3,865 - 4 - 17,321 1,304 18,625
Amartisation of intangjble assets BYEESY 44,916 - - - - - 44,916 - 4916
Fair value loss on investment RENFZATEER
properties (1,911) - - (863) (27,305) - (30,079) - (30,079)
Fair value loss on financial assets RATEIAER SBE
at fair value through profit or loss E/NTERE - - - - - (89,208)  (89,29) - (89,208)
Write-down of properties under HRERPNERiHE
development and completed HEZERINES
properties held for sale to net NERSE
realisable value 1,391,123 - - - - - 1,391,128 - 1,391,123
Impaiment losses on accounts N RE MR NGE
receivable and other receivables, net  EFEEE 28,169 - - - 9 10 28,270 - 28,270
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RESHER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and segment results (continued) DEBM B R D ER S ()
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12A31HILFE
Property
investment
Project and Property
Property  management management  investment  Securities
development services Hotel onAHR  otherthan tradingand  Segment
in the PRC inthe PRC  operations in the USA AHR  investment total Unallocated Total
REEY
AHRE(T
ReER RPEZ ZNERE  AHRI  BAHEE
NX¥E EEEERE BEEE REE 2NXR¥ RRE  AH8F AOE Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTn ARMTr ARETr ARETn ARMTR ARETR
Additions to investment properties  RENERNE - BE
and property, plant and equipment K& ZRE 169 - - - - - 169 - 169
Depreciation of property, NE BERGERE
plant and equipment 10,572 = 2,9% = 309 = 13,875 2,499 16,374
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE 44916 - - - - - 44916 - 44916
Fair value (loss)/gain oninvestment i &¥% 7 ATE(BE)/
properties g = = - (12,691) 4723 - (7,968) - (7,.968)
Fair value gain on financial assets RATEABE L
at fair value through profit or loss SREEY NIENS - - - - - 40,304 40,304 - 40,304
Write-down of properties under MR RTE R
development and completed YEsa=THES
properties held for sale to net LA
realisable value 1,213,227 - - - - - 1273227 - 1218227
Provision for impairment of goodwill P& A 300,357 = = = = = 300,357 = 300,357
Impairment losses on accounts ElEE ST R E A el E
receivable and other receivables, net i EIREE 2606 - - 1963 19 4 4585 - 458
Geographical information HEER
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REIIMBEF W zs FRBEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024%F 20234 2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥T T AR¥TR AR¥T T
The PRC M 9,503,951 19,991,517 537,373 587,533
The USA ESE 11,508 16,200 215,250 211,066
Singapore TN 8,262 8,178 245,803 339,107
Hong Kong B 18,374 19,003 89,912 103,400
9,542,095 20,034,898 1,088,338 1,241,106

The geographical information of revenue from external customers is
based on the geographical markets of the customers, and the locations
of properties and investments. The geographical information of the non-
current assets, excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments, is
based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers
During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no single customer
has contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.

REIBEFPREZBEEHNNERTF R
M5 MERREZAEMMETE - IR E
E(REHBREER SR TARIN 2R ER
DERNEREECBEMETE °

FRETEEFZER
HE2024F M2023F 12 A31H IFFE - &
B—RFPEBASEEAWRES10% A E o
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6.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

REVENUE 6. s
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA T -
2024 2023
20245 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR® T
Revenue from contracts with customers EEARAIW
Sales of properties in the PRC iNalcifsek=—t/ES 9,436,079 19,917,712
Project management services in the PRC R E 218 B EEIRT 17,498 32,222
Hotel operations in the PRC R ZHE &8 36,226 34,986
9,489,803 19,984,920
Revenue from other sources E i KR
Gross rental income from investment properties HEMFEAS WAL 35,418 32,649
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value BAVEFABE EREE
through profit or loss 2 R% B 16,874 17,329
9,542,095 20,034,898
Revenue from contracts with customers EEAH W
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) W5 & F
For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE2024512A31HILEE
Project
Sales of management Hotel
properties services operations
Segments 2 EB in the PRC in the PRC in the PRC Total
A ReEZ ReEZ
HEWE HEEEERE EEEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR®TR ARETT ARETT
Type of goods or services and B RBREZERIR
geographical markets B M5
Sale of properties in the PRC R R EYE 9,436,079 - - 9,436,079
Project management services AR B2 18 B B R AR TS
in the PRC - 17,498 - 17,498
Hotel operations in the PRC R R 2R E & E - - 36,226 36,226
Total revenue from contracts with ~ 9NEFEFE & 49Uk 5 4858
external customers 9,436,079 17,498 36,226 9,489,803
Timing of revenue recognition Uz R
Goods transferred at a point in time A — B ZEEESY) 9,436,079 - 13,606 9,449,685
Services transferred over time B8 B S 82 28 AR 7 - 17,498 22,620 40,118
Total revenue from contracts with ~ 9MNEFEFE & 4k 25 4858
external customers 9,436,079 17,498 36,226 9,489,803
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. Wzm(E)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) 2RSS (&)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) Wiz &R ()
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12A31A L EE
Project
Sales of management Hotel
properties services operations
Segments 2 2B in the PRC in the PRC in the PRC Total
A RHEZ AHEZ
HEWE HEEEERE EEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T AR¥T T AR¥T T
Type of goods or services and FERBRHEZERIRESE
geographical markets i
Sale of properties in the PRC R E B EE 19,917,712 - - 19,917,712
Project management services K2 IEE 8RB
in the PRC - 32,222 - 32,222
Hotel operations in the PRC R B 2 B G & & - - 34,986 34,986
Total revenue from contracts with MR E & AU sR 4858
external customers 19,917,712 32,222 34,986 19,984,920
Timing of revenue recognition U #E2BE RS
Goods transferred at a point in time A — I EZEES 19,917,712 - 13,876 19,931,588
Services transferred over time g e T B 2 AR 755 - 32,222 21,110 53,332
Total revenue from contracts with SN E A& AU s 4258
external customers 19,917,712 32,222 34,986 19,984,920

Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was

RAHERRERLAABRERN 208 E

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting ZWESIT ¢
period:
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥TT
Sale of properties in the PRC A S5 9,370,466 17,546,557

i85



136

Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

6.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
properties and advance payments are required pursuant to the
terms of sale and purchase agreements.

Rendering of services (project management services and property
management services)

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and bills are issued when services are rendered.

Hotel operations
The performance obligation is satisfied as services are rendered or
goods are delivered and payment is generally received in advance.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

6.

Wz ()
FEFE &S (H)

(i)

B EE
ERASBENEE2ERBMRMT

YR E
BHEEIRINMERERT  BA
IR E B ek R TR R 30 -

IERRF(RE ERRFERYEE IR
%)

FE#VE A TH 1 B AR A AR 2 A 4R (AR 7
& IEH A RREE RS BERS R BT ©

B &E
HRERERBHEINERKE—KRTE
FWEGRIE - BB E TEER -

R2024 5 % 202312 4310 * AL E
BRTEROBTECRETHIDRET) Z
RSERWAT :

2024 2023

2024%F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET T AR® T

Within one year — R 12,915,636 17,331,964
After one year —F1% 83,035 884,368
12,998,671 18,216,332
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OTHER INCOME, AND OTHER GAINS AND 7. HMWAURHEMWKERESEFE
LOSSES, NET
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TR
Other income Heg A
Interest income F B U A 2,553 8,103
Others Hith 4,647 595
7,200 8,698
2024 2023
20245 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR
Other gains and losses, net HihWzm R ESEFE
Fair value loss on fair value of investment REMERNFEZ
properties (note 16) NFEEE(HE16) (30,079) (7,968)
Gain on disposal of investment properties, net SR E Y3 2 Was F 58 57 =
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value BEAFEFABRZEREEZ
through profit or loss AFE(ERE), WS (89,298) 40,324
Foreign exchange differences, net R = ER (24,882) (64,290)
Write-down of properties under development WRERTMERFIELREZ
and completed properties held for sale to ExIYEER] 2R 5E
net realisable value (1,391,123) (1,273,227)
Provision for impairment of goodwill (note 17) B R ER M (KIEE17) - (300,357)
Impairment losses on accounts receivable and PR LA B R e L A LU SR IR
other receivables, net (note 23) B EEFE(HE23) (28,270) (4,585)
(1,563,595) (1,610,103)
FINANCE COSTS 8. MERX
2024 2023
20245 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TT
Interests on: AREIEZFE -
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 514,197 727,720
Interest arising from revenue contracts AR E EE 2 FE 1,759,177 1,767,460
Less: Capitalised in properties under development B RBERPYEEARL (1,983,723) (2,056,556)
289,651 438,624

Borrowing costs from bank and other borrowings have been capitalised at
rates ranging from 2.80% to 12.50% (2023: 2.80% to 12.50%) per annum.

RERTREMEREZEBRABEN T2.80
[EZE=12.50[F (20234 : 2.80EE12.50F) 2 F

MEFAERL -
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9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. KREAEE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging: AREBZBRFEAISECIER T5&HE
2024 2023
20245 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®T
Cost of properties sold EEMEKAR 9,155,817 19,237,274
Cost of services BR 75 Ak AR 19,240 21,592
Total employee benefit expenses: B EEFIFA A%
Directors’ emoluments (note 10) EEHM(FIEE10) 374 1,181
Other staff: HEMET :
Salaries and other benefits e R EMET 36,186 51,647
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRE R B R 1,583 2,546
38,143 55,374
Less: Capitalised in properties under development B RBERAYEEARLE (4,396) (5,988)
33,747 49,436
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 5 A 2 M 1,850 1,850
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB NMREITE 14,225 11,189
Amortisation of intangible assets* T A i 44,916 44,916
Lease payments not included in the measurement of WKzt AT E G ETE
lease liabilities M ER K 379 35
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived REE 2R AT EE
at after crediting: Bt ATI%IA :
Gross rental income from investment properties KEMFHSWABE 35,418 32,649
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for: W TEACEELERY ¢
— investment properties generating — EXEHSRAZIREYE
rental income (6,792) (2,707)
— investment properties not generating — WEEEHESBAZ
rental income wEYE (548) (1,287)
(7,340) (8,944)
28,078 28,705
* Amortisation of intangible assets is capitalised in properties under * BERVEERFCNERTYWEERL - BFE
development, details of which are included in note 18 to the financial BRI RIRMIFE18 ©

statements.
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERFTETHAESHHN
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed RIEEWHRA - FE R A K% 383(1)()
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong b) * COFROHEARRR(FEESFmER) R
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of BIE2EIRTE 2 FAEE R FETHA B HFH
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: o
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR
Fees W 333 648
Other emoluments: E B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBEREMER 38 500
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFI B 5K 3 33
374 1,181
For the year ended 31 December 2024 B ZE2024F12A31BLLEE

Salaries, Retirement

allowance benefit
and benefits scheme

Fees in kind contributions Total
E2c A= 43 BIKEF

weE REVEF B st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®TR

Executive directors: HITESE -
Mr. Zhang* SRS - - - -
Mr. Zhang Guogiang ok BY 3R ST A - 38 3 41
Non-executive director: FEHTTEE -
Ms. Huang HuangZ - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: B IFHTEE -

Mr. Liu Da B AE 111 - - 111
Mr. Ma Yuntao BERGE 111 - - 111
Dr. Li Huiqun FEEEL 111 - - 111

333 38 3 374
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 10. EERFETHAESHM(E)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F12831HILLFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowance benefit
and benefits scheme

Fees in kind contributions Total
E2ac A= 43 BIREF

we REUEA FT IR st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®BTRT AR®BTT AR®ETET

Executive directors: HITESE -
Mr. Zhang* SR - - - -
Mr. Zhang Guogiang ok B3R ST A = 500 33 533
Non-executive director: FEATEE -
Ms. Huang HuangZ + = = - -

Independent non-executive directors: B I ITEE -

Mr. Liu Da ZERE 216 - - 216
Mr. Ma Yuntao BEREE 216 - - 216
Dr. Li Huiqun THEAEEL 216 - - 216
648 500 88 1,181
Mr. Zhang is also the chief executive of the Company. * RICEMBRARITIREE
There was no arrangement under which the directors waived or agreed to WEHFEASEESRELEARARKRERREM

waive any remuneration during the reporting period (2023: Nil). N ZHE(20234F : ) o



11.

12.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included no director (2023:
one), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the five (2023: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

11.

AR

FARARH

FERR (20234 : M) H
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R ATBETHRES (2023F
—) » BEAM B 2 B RN X100 - AR

REFAL(EIEARR

AERRIFERTHRAR)FM2FBENOT :

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AR® T

Salaries, allowances and benegfits in kind e B RERET 4,986 2,626

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

MEeNF T ARz EEHALGFERERIFE

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: ZITHRAB)Z AT ¢
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TR
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001/87CE 1,000,000/ 7T 2 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7Tt £ 1,500,000/ 7T 3 -
5 4
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FTEFHBEX
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Current tax — charge for the year AHFIE - FRAX
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEBFIEH - -
- PRC CIT — B EAMEH 10,538 515,287
- PRC LAT — R B £ it I (E 100,049 199,530
— Overseas Corporate Income Tax —BIMEEFTIER 34 1
Under provision in prior years BEFEREDTE 36,995 12,957
147,616 727,775
Deferred tax (note 30) EFERL (MIFE30) 343,595 (18,504)
Total tax charge for the year FARIEFRZ AT 491,211 709,271
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

12.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group had no assessable profits generated in
Hong Kong for both years.

PRC CIT is calculated at the applicable income tax rate of 25% on the
assessable profits for both years. In accordance with the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding income tax will be levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the enterprises with foreign investments
established in the PRC. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes
on dividends distributable by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in
respect of their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

The subsidiaries in the USA are generally subject to Federal Income Tax at a
rate of 21% (2023: 21%) on the taxable income and the statutory regulation
of State Income Tax in different jurisdiction for the year ended 31 December
2024. Certain of these subsidiaries retained with undistributed income are
also subjected to an additional personal holding company tax at 20% on
the taxable income. Certain subsidiaries are limited liability companies which
are by default disregarded entities (i.e. viewed as divisions of the holding
company) and would be taxed as part of their holding company for federal
tax purposes.

Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to the profit before tax per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

12.

Fr&Bim < (&)

MR AEERREFEANDBEREBELER
Bl Al o E I ER RS M RE A FETG
W B

R B 1 3 AT 15 F PR 8 4F S 3R B AR i i ) 2 25%
BRAMEHETE - BEPBRCEMESHE -
FERBIRKZHINE D ERINEIRE BT IRAAR
BBHEBRI0%BINMAER - it - A%EE
LA FR BRI AR SZ A BT B A B 8 20084E1 A1 B LASKE
BREX A & R PTIR A O B B S B 0B o

B 4t 3R (E A T iR i B AR IR (EERB0% =
60% 2 RER XL - MEBRHEENERS
RIERGR T ERAEERRMEMEERMAX
SRS HOBREE o

HZE2024F12A31BILFE - REBEZKBE
DR — MR FERERBWAIEZ21% (20234F :
21%) ZH BT RMB R I M B BIE HFE T
B RIEERMAABRZETRA - BBRDIK
WAZETHEWBRR NG ERF KA Z
20% 7 HEAIER R RIM IEL o & THBAE
BERRR @ AETHEE AT (IR AIZERA
RIZDER) « BB S B EER A A — 3D

DETEBIA -

F P15 754 B S B AR A 1R 25 R P RS BR B8 A1 A
SRR

2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TT
Loss before tax BR AT E 1B (1,681,724) (1,588,001)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2023: 25%) A TE i K 25% (20234 : 25%)
E 2 FIE (420,431) (384,500)
Effect of different tax rates on operations in EHEMRDEAEREEHRERTRZ
other jurisdictions oa 15 -
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose  FRIHIF X H 2 Fifs 52 2 71,392 145,231
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BEZRHBAZHBTE (6,582) (6,355)
PRC LAT A 5 + 3 I (A R 100,049 199,530
Tax effect of PRC LAT FR B+ B E R 2 B R 2 (25,012) (49,883)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised RERGRE=RE RG22 285,863 242,686
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZHEBEBR BT E 530,771 607,405
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B BERERCHIBEE (81,849) (67,800
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 36,995 12,957
Income tax expenses for the year FRMEHRAX 491,211 709,271




13.

14.

DIVIDENDS 13.

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 14.
OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

Annual Report 2024 & Z UL F R

RE

ARREFTWTAEZIRNEZE2024F12A31H
WEFE 7S (20234 : #) ©

RRARFEEARLEEBRER

FRERBETDRATENGTE

2024 2023
20245 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR® T
Loss &8
Loss attributable to owners of the Company RAEEE ABIEERE -
used in the basic loss per share calculation ARstE SR ERER (2,181,963) (2,298,458)
2024 2023
20245 20234
’000 ’000
F A& T B
Shares &vy
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FABBEITEBRMNETLHE -
outstanding during the year used in the basic AR ESRERNERE
loss per share calculation 1,913,387 1,913,387

No diluted loss per share amounts were presented for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares outstanding during these years.

AR A EBNE £20244F 202312 A318
IEFEWEBEHECBITLER  WEME
FEMEZY|SREESE -
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HE2024F12A31HIEFE
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. W¥ - BERRXRE

Furniture,
office
Land equipment
and Leasehold and motor
buildings Hotel improvement vehicles Total
HE & -BLZE
TREF BIE MERE RERARE HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R AR¥TR AR®T AR®FR AR%T
31 December 2024 2024F12A31H
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2024 R2024%1 818 246,425 138,481 2,542 27,303 414,751
Additions NE - - - 1 11
Exchange realignment [ 5 A% 1,687 - 44 20 1,751
At 31 December 2024 R2024%F12831H 248,112 138,481 2,586 27,334 416,513
Accumulated depreciation RIITE
At 1 January 2024 R2024%1 818 19,962 7,729 2,420 21,437 51,548
Depreciation provided WERE 12,081 3,865 126 2,553 18,625
Exchange realignment b % 313 - 40 19 372
At 31 December 2024 R2024%F12831H 32,356 11,594 2,586 24,009 70,545
Net carrying amount REFE
At 1 January 2024 M2024%1 818 226,463 130,752 122 5,866 363,203
At 31 December 2024 7202412 831H 215,756 126,887 - 3,325 345,968
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(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
office
Land equipment
and Leasehold and motor
buildings Hotel improvement vehicles Total
B JAE
T REF BE HEWEHE  RERSE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®BT R ARET T AR®T R AR®BT R
31 December 2023 2023F12A31H
Cost oS
At 1 January 2023 2023F1A1H 450,394 138,481 2,409 27,092 618,376
Additions NE = - - 169 169
Transfer to investment property ~ R ZEREYE (207,127) - - - (207,127)
Exchange realignment b 5 A% 3,158 - 133 42 3,333
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F12H31H 246,425 138,481 2,542 27,303 414,751
Accumulated depreciation ZITE
At 1 January 2023 2023F1 /1A 20,786 4,735 1,964 18,223 45,708
Depreciation provided WERE 10,048 2,994 122 3,210 16,374
Transfer to investment property ~— BEEZREYE (11,080) — = - (11,080)
Exchange realignment P 5 R 208 - 334 4 546
At 31 December 2023 R2023412A31H 19,962 7,729 2,420 21,437 51,548
Net carrying amount REZEE
At 1 January 2023 20231 A1H 429,608 133,746 445 8,869 572,668
At 31 December 2023 2023F12H31H 226,463 130,752 122 5,866 363,203
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16.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. BREYE

2024 2023

2024%F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR¥TR

Carrying amount at 1 January B A1B ZEEmE 810,535 584,960
Transfer to property held for sale RS ELHEYE (45,351) -
Disposal HE (22,235) -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEEYME - BEREE - 196,047

Net loss from a fair value adjustment FABRAFEZEIEFE (30,079) (7,968)
Property revaluation reserve Y E G - 16,055
Exchange realignment ERTEES 7,048 21,441
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31 8 ZBREE 719,918 810,535

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.
The investment properties with an aggregate fair value of RMB284,084,000
(2023: RMB412,447,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s
borrowings (note 29).

The fair values of the investment properties situated in Hong Kong,
Singapore and the USA as at 31 December 2023 and 2024 are based on
the valuations carried out by APAC Asset Appraisal and Consulting Limited
(“APAC”). APAC is the member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
Valuers and an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group.

The fair value of the investment property situated in Mainland China as at
31 December 2024 is based on the valuation carried out by Zhong Ming
(Beijing) Assets Appraisal International Co., Ltd (“Zhong Ming International”).
Zhong Ming International is the member of the China Appraisal Society and
an independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and
best use of the investment properties is the current use. The fair values of
the investment properties are derived from the capitalisation of net income
method with due allowance for the reversionary income.

At the end of the reporting period, management of the Group works with
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the directors of the Company.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 19 to the financial
statements.

AEBEMBUEERERE URRES K E
EAABEZHERZERAFTERAGE -
WHREBREDWEAR - RFEAHEARE
284,084,0007T (20234 = A R#¥412,447,000
TL) 2R EMEC B UARGARER 2 EE (M
£29) °

MR BE « FINE RER 2 HEYHER2023F
F2024F12 A1 B 2 AFEDEREAGHERL
BRARAR([EA])FTETHERERE - 2 A
AEBAEMB2ee 8 BREAEEWEBEY
B A BB EMER -

IR0 AR B A3 2 IR E M R 2024F12 A31H Z
RFEDEATHEBEEENGE (LR BRE
EAR (TR ERBIFR ) FETHERETE - PERE
BATEEEN GRS S8 B =ALE I EEE
B2 BY A BB X MGERD -

BRIREMEAFER  REVERER R
ERBRRARAE - REVMEAFEARAF
BENMUERE - YAERKRAELBEERME -

RREHAR  AEEEEBRGEMAIE B
FE=RATFEFNERZLNRTEEE 2 (HERM
NBAHE - WEEZATFERBEANRDY K
REBREARMARRREERE -

REMERBEEHERATH AR - HE
—FRHEM BN P B RERMEE9 ©
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16. REYWXE (&)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group’s investment properties:

DNFEER

—EomEEH

TRITAEBRENEZ AT EAEBER

2024 2023
2024%F 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TT
Fair value measurement using significant ERAEAT A BRI A E IR
unobservable inputs (Level 3) AFEFE(E=A)
Recurring fair value measurement for investment AR TFMR 2 REMEZ
properties located in KEMAFETE
- Hong Kong —B5 50,567 63,923
— Singapore — N 259,561 339,096
— USA —EH 215,251 211,066
— Mainland China — R 194,539 196,450
719,918 810,535

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2023:

Nil).

ER FREF-_FZELTERLEFTFAF
EEBEBZIBEN BV EBRLEASE LS
=/ IER (20234 ) o
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Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
inputs to the valuation of the Group’s significant investment properties

categorised into Level 3:

HE2024F12A31HIEFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 16.

REMEE)

TXEHINAEESERE=RzEEZREMHE
HEMMERZHERMREZBABIBZME

Range or weighted average

YIRS E)
Properties Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 2024 2023
LES fh{E T ERFAERGEA#E 20244 20234
Offices located in Hong Kong  Income capitalisation Monthly market rent (HK$ per sq. ft.) 34.2 46.0
with a carrying value of approach FAMSHEE(BFAIRET)
RMB50,567,000 WAEAR{LE Term yield (per annum) 2.5% 2.1%
(2023: RMB63,923,000) FHIW S R (FF)
NREBRABARE Reversion yield (per annum) 2.7% 2.3%
50,567,0007T (20234 : BHRWEE(EF)
AR #63,923,0007T) 2
MAE
Commercial and residential Income capitalisation Monthly market rent (SGD per sg. ft.) 4.3-5.4 4.5-7.2

units located in Singapore
with a carrying value of
RMB259,561,000
(2023: RMB339,096,000)
R FT I AR E(E A R
259,561,0007T (20234 :
AR #339,096,000T) 2
P R EEA

Senior housing communities
located in the USA
with a carrying value of
RMB190,142,000
(2023: RVMB184,621,000)
N EBBREE AR
190,142,0007T (20234 :
AR #184,621,0007T) Z
REFERE

Commercial and office
properties located in
the Mainland China
with a carrying value of
RMB194,539,000
(2023: 196,450,000)
LR B A AR EE A RS
194,539,000t (20234 :
AR #196,450,00070) Z
SEYSE VN ES

approach

WABERNEE

Income capitalisation
approach

WAEARLE

Market comparison
approach
IS B0

BAWSEE (BT FREMET)
Term yield (per annum)
FHWRE(BF)

Reversion yield (per annum)
B ()

Annual market rent (USD per sq. ft.)
BFEMHEEE(BFHRET)
Term yield (per annum)
FHN SR (GF)

Reversion yield (per annum)
BEHRWEE(EF)

Price per square metre (RMB)

FFIRERARET)

2.7%-3.3%

2.9%-3.5%

22.5-27.0

7.8%-8.5%

8.3%-9.0%

9,200-9,600

2.6%-3.0%

2.8%-3.2%

22.5-26.6

7.5%-8.5%

8.0%-9.0%

9,200-9,600

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent in isolation would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the term yield and reversion
yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair
value of the investment properties.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the prior
years.

MSHEEBAEEMORD) EEHREME
RFEREEMORD) - FHUE X REFIK
BmEEBRBIEMORD) @EEIREMERF
BEARERDE) -

PR i E R B FEARR o
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17. GOODWILL 17. B8

RMB’000
AR¥TT

At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, M2023%F1H18 + 20234F12H31H -

1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024: 2024%1 A1H Kk2024F12H318 :
Cost A 424,722
Accumulated impairment 2FHRE (424,722)
Net carrying amount IRTEDFAE =

Impairment testing of goodwill

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a four-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the 2023 cash flow projections
was 27.46%.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the cash-
generating unit for 31 December 2023. The following describes the key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant unit.

Selling price — Management determined the selling price based on the
selling price of the pre-sale units in the same project or the prevailing market
price of the comparable properties with similar size, usage and location.

Costs to completion — Management determined the costs to completion
based on the budgets approved by management, which is estimated
according to the past project construction experience and its knowledge of
expected market prices of land and construction cost.

The value assigned to the key assumptions is consistent with external
information sources.

BB R ER S

RS EEBEN 2 I Y e 5 58 HIREE A E A
HETE ZtHEEANReRERAERS
RERERTHE 2 RENFHRE 2 HETEE -
2023 F R e mETERIE A 2 MR E F27.46% °

FTE2023F 12 A31B 2 e EXBAFREE
Efﬁﬁﬁﬁ:*ﬂ' © F‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁim%ﬁxﬁﬂﬂ%
BHEITRER R 2 AR ERERANT

BB R PR AR R BB BAT AR X - Rk
SRR BN B2 FERR

EE-EHERER - HAEEEUCEEN
BERERE BAERUBZAILLBYEZRT
mEETEE -

TR — &@Efﬁf*ﬁ“@lﬁﬁt}EZﬁ%”E

TIKA  BEDREAEEDERER LA
%‘Iiﬂﬁ&k BZ$?EHHFM } < FRAR(ERT

BT BRER B RBEEIMEER IR -
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18.

19.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE

Contract
benefit
EHME
RMB’000
ARETT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A1 8 24 &R FE 112,284
Accumulated amortisation EET#EE (44,916)

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2023 and R2023F 12 A31H &2024F1 A1H Z A
1 January 2024 67,368
Accumulated amortisation RET#EE (44,916)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2024 2024512 A31 B 2 A R BREFE 22,452

The amortisation is recorded into the properties under development and
transferred to the profit or loss together with the revenue is recognised.

LEASES

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) consisting of offices,
commercial and residential units, senior housing communities located in
Hong Kong, Singapore and the USA under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay the security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year was RMB35,418,000 (2023: RMB32,649,000), details of which are

included in note 6 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2024, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its

tenants are as follows:

19.

BT AR DY AL A ER YRR — A

HE

AEBEERAEBEA

AEERBECEHAELHEHEBAEMRATS -
FongE REENEEDE(HE16) @ 215
AN BRAREEEBEMN  REERRS - HEK
FEEERARPIMERZS  UREERR
AHMREHAERS - AEBFARRNES
WA B AR #35418,0007T (20234 : AR
32,649,0007T) * HFFBEH R HIRETMEG ©

R2024F12A31H - HEASKBERIFEEHEF
ZA AR ST E M EBCR B IR E R IE N
T

2024 2023

20245 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR®TR

Within one year —ER 28,515 33,551
After one year but within two years —F A FERFLAR 22,319 26,797
After two years but within three years MFEA EB=FAR 20,832 21,539
After three years but within four years =F FBEEFEUA 18,503 21,310
After four years but within five years WE FERFELAR 7,972 19,416
After five years AR F 774 6,029
98,915 128,642
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CEFES SRHEBRITERRE
ERBEEEEER

2024 2023
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT

Pledged deposits BEREe
— Current —BNER 123,711 130,913
Restricted bank balances SRR IR TS 4 541,835 1,184,149
Cash and cash equivalents Re kIR EEIEB 317,544 528,296

Pledged deposits represent bank deposits of RMB117,117,000 (2023:
RMB122,548,000) and deposits held with financial institutions of
RMB6,594,000 (2023: RMB8,365,000) pledged to banks and financial
institutions to secure the facilities granted to the Group and the mortgage
loan facilities granted by certain banks to certain property buyers of the
Group’s properties. The pledged deposits will be released upon the
settlement of the relevant borrowings and the expiry of the mortgage
guarantees provided to the property buyers.

Restricted bank balances are required, pursuant to the relevant regulations
in the PRC, that certain amount of pre-sale proceeds of properties
be placed as guarantee deposits in designated bank accounts for the
construction of the relevant properties. The deposits can only be used for
payments for construction costs of the relevant properties with approval.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating or fixed rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB943,714,000 (2023:
RMB1,820,926,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

ERFAEESEEER FRIT RS REE 2 RTT
TFRAR117,117,0007C (20234 : AR #&E
122,548,00070) R ¢ R B F T RARKE
6,594,0007T (20234 : AR ¥8,365,0007T) °
DERERTFAEBZ@MERS THERTETASE
EMEZETWEERZZBERRE - BER
e ENEEEEEERRIRETYWEER
ZIRIBERE ER B AR o

R GIRITAESRBRBETRAERSN - AY
XEEMBSHBAZETEEFARERITAA
ERBEEYMEZERTREZRES ZFIA - &t
fE - BERBSHATARINEBYEZZ
SEPRA o

RITRERE A FRTERNEZZHHEE
R EREUR B, SRTAERE 17 AT HA 30 8 R 3K
ik BE AR 2 8RTT o iﬁi&iﬁA”WEIEE
ZRE(EEE A ERE

é MEHR  AEBUAREFEZEE IR

1THE88 B ANRH£943,714,0007T (20234 : AR
ai%éﬁ,820,926,0007E> o A\REETREE RN BA
HMEE o A - B B A2 (INEE B IE
B RCAEE - EEARNEZTERTE)  NER
S BEREEITINEELNRITHEARE
HEEME -

151



152

Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

21.

22.

23.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 21. BEHEZERIY=E
Completed properties held for sale are all situated in the PRC. The BELEZETIVEEIURTE - XEE
Group carried out assessment on the net realisable value at the end AR & BAR ¥ Al S I FEE TR - B E 2024
of the reporting period and recognised RMB3,246,703,000 (2023: F12A31HIEFE - BRMBFHIELE 2B T
RMB2,141,893,000) of write-down for completed properties held for sale T AR #3,246,708,0007T (20234 : AR
for the year ended 31 December 2024. #2,141,893,0007T) °
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22, BRERHYE
Properties under development are all situated in the PRC. The Group carried BERPDEIFUAFE - AEBRHE
out assessment on the net realisable value at the end of the reporting period RS ] 3 FEETHME - B E2024F
and recognised RMB1,410,613,000 (2023: RMB1,431,831,000) of write- 12A1BILEE  BRBABERDEA
down for properties under development for the year ended 31 December R ¥ 1,410,613,000 Jt ( 2023 F : A R ¥
2024. 1,431,831,0007T) °
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. Wi - Htt B W KA KR E
AND OTHER ASSETS &E
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Accounts receivable FEUS BRZX 15,801 20,663
Less: Impairment B ORE (2,746) (986)
13,055 19,677
Prepaid value-added taxes and other taxes TR IS ET R E AR 1,071,076 1,783,116
Deposits and prepayments e RIEMNFIE 416,368 494,144
Costs of obtaining contracts WMBEE K Z KA 93,581 136,064
Other receivables H th i Wz oE 779,677 498,449
2,360,702 2,911,773
Less: Impairment B ORE (42,363) (15,853)
2,318,339 2,895,920
2,331,394 2,915,597

Accounts receivable represent receivables from sales of properties, project
management services, property management services, dividend receivables
and rental receivables. Receivables arising from sales of properties and
project management fee receivables are due for settlement in accordance
with the terms of the related agreements. The settlement terms of
rental receivables and property management fee receivables are upon
presentation of demand notes.

MR FRIEMRHE  HEBERYE  WEE
BR% - REEWHIBNEERWFIE - KB
WEHEZ EWGRIARIAR B2 & RYGRIAT)
RIBZBEHEZ GRIREE - BRESK
EEMEERE 2 HEGERB L R FBNE

oo
FraEE
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23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. B - Hitt BKKER H b
AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED) BE(E)
An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting Qiﬁiﬁﬁj{ @;ﬁg}ég:ﬁ AH RN EEREEE
period, based on the invoice date and the net of loss allowance, is as 82 5 fE U BE =0 SR :
follows:
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Within 1 year 1E R 4,034 10,211
1to 2 years 1326 562 9,223
2 to 3 years 2E3F 8,251 =
Over 3 years 3EME 208 243
At end of year RER 13,055 19,677
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a WA DT TR & R B B AR E BT
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates LA EBRHEEEE -BEXDERZEER
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments A EMEETE BEX B o 2B4E Bl #Y 8 A R s
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted JE o ZAtE RS REMELR - EBEHEE
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable TELX&EA?&&i REA S ERBAESH - Zalik
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current TR AR BARRTE RIS IR R A] FEE K} o
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TY%W' 158 A 43 8 B R 15 HH AN &= BB 5T A\ P L BR
Group’s financial assets included in accounts receivable using a provision RZeMEEERNEERRNER
matrix:
As at 31 December 2024 7A2024F12A31H
Gross carrying Expected credit
amount losses
REAE EHEERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Assessment of expected credit losses ZRiEERKRES T HTEREERE
by credit risk portfolio 15,801 2,746
At end of year RER 15,801 2,746
As at 31 December 2023 7A2023F12831H
Gross carrying Expected credit
amount losses
FREAE AHEEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Assessment of expected credit losses by credit risk REERBAS T HTEEEEEE
portfolio 20,663 986
At end of year RER 20,663 986
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Deposits and other receivables mainly represent deposits with suppliers and
other receivables due from third parties. Where applicable, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by considering the probability
of default, expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate. The expected credit losses
was RMB42,363,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:

RMB15,853,000).

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts receivable

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.
AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

15,853,0007T) ©

R - HtEWRER H A

Ze R HMERFIBEEBHEHERZS REW
1% 77 18R 72 L FE UL 5K IE - aniE A
REREAHEBREREN 2 AJREMETT - 18
HEEERAUEB2ERNEENE I8 KK
FEABRERETHE - BRESIELFAE -
LA = BB AT AR OB B oA 2R A
) o 2024512831 H » FBEIEEEEAA
R #42,363,0007T (202312 A31 0 : AR

CBEDHTTD

2 R 5L IEDR) (40 i

IR Ui R R e Lt B MR TRDRU B 2 5 18 B A A AR

and other receivables in total are as follows: ZEEIT
2024 2023
20245 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®TT
At beginning of year REA 16,839 12,254
Impairment losses, net EEEFRE 28,270 4,585
At end of year NER 45,109 16,839

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24, BAVFEFABGZZEREE

PROFIT OR LOSS

2024 2023

2024%F 2023%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR AR¥TT

Equity securities listed in Singapore FRFT NS _E T 2 BRARRE 4,010 4,568
REIT securities listed in the USA RER EH 2 BEREETES 209,377 292,411
213,387 296,979
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25. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED 25. EMNERER  BEWRSRETER
AND ACCRUALS
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARET T
Accounts and bills payable R REE 169,165 294,533
Accrued construction costs (Note) FERT R AN (M) 7,825,836 6,574,749
Rental deposits received BRHAEZS 9,201 1,678
Retention deposits and payable RE S REMKIE 173,963 160,595
Real estate and other taxes payable FERTE ER R M FIE 647,541 875,073
Other payables and accruals HEiENRIBEREEA 838,805 773,917
9,664,515 8,680,545
Less: Rental deposits received — non-current o B ERS - IERE (444) (520)
9,664,071 8,680,025
Note: Included in accrued construction costs are amounts due to a related Bt - FEETREEK AR B4 A R % 676,068,000 7T
company controlled by Ms. Huang’s daughter, Ms. Zhang Huigi (“Ms. (20234 : AR%458,780,0007T) Bt HEEE
Zhang”), of approximately RMB676,068,000 (2023: RMB458,780,000) T2 e —EEEE R R (BHuangZ + 2 &2
for its construction work. FaRBH AT ([RZ+ DIRF) 2 5%E -
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the RBMERR  REZZAHNEZIRNEERR
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: A EERE DT -
2024 2023
2024%F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®TT
Within 1 year 1FR 4,122,193 3,764,942
11to 2 years 1224 1,950,354 2,393,166
2 1o 3 years 2E3F 1,523,681 548,416
Over 3 years 3FLAE 398,773 162,758

At end of year RER 7,995,001 6,869,282
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26.

27.

28.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The amounts represented advance payments from customers based on
schedules as established in the property sale contracts. The increase in
contract liabilities as at 31 December 2024 was due to more property
projects having started pre-sale during the current year.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Ms. Huang and together with her spouse, Mr.
Zhang, and her daughter, Ms. Zhang, have the controlling interests over
these related companies.

LOANS FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The Group has entered into loan agreements with a related company,
Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zensun Real Estate”), which is
ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang, pursuant to which Zensun Real Estate
will provide unsecured loans to the Group.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. Those
amounts were shown under the current liabilities as Zensun Real Estate had
the discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the carrying amounts of the
loans approximated their fair values at initial recognition.

26.

27.

28.

BHEE

:Zi%%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%%ém%\liaﬁﬁ%Fﬁi‘%a
EEURERHTER A » 1A2024F12 A31BA XY
E%igbuﬁﬂamﬁp%%lﬁi BERAFERIATE
S -

FESBRE 1 BRI
R BEA R HIEAEER - 28T RERME

B o Huangﬁi@ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁ?ﬁi&ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ
TR ERERREAER

/\o

RE—HBEEQXRZER

AEBEEFERREEREXARAF([E

BME% | MAHuangZ T &EIEH 2 A R))%E]
EXtps Bt EEEXSREEKFER
TAREH -
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ZECEAERR  RERAREN
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FHABIERBAE -
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2024 2023
2024 2023F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum per annum
(%)  Maturity RMB’000 (%)  Maturity RMB’000
ERER=E
ERFRR%) ZHA ARETR (%) ZHEA ARETR
Current L
Bank loans - secured RTEF-—HER 2.95-7.92 2025 808,692 3.30-9.98 2024 3,136,480
2025% 20244
Bank loans - secured RITER-FHA 8.20-9.03  On demand 1,269,950 NA  NA =
RER TER TER
Bank loans - unsecured BB - EHKA 465 2025 4,000 NA  NA =
20254 TER  TEB
Other loans - secured Hth B - KA 594 2025 378 2.80-10.50 2024 252,582
2025% 2024%F
Other loans - secured HiER - FEA 2.80-3.20  Ondemand 255,800 N/A  N/A -
REX TEE  TEB
Other loans - unsecured Hth B —EH A 2.80-550 2025 362,235 2.80-550 2024 178,827
2025% 2024%F
Other loans - unsecured HiEx—EEA 2.80-3.20  On demand 38,105 NA  NA -
REX TEE  TEB
Senior notes - unsecured (a) (o) (¢) ~ BEEE—EHKH(@)b)c) 7.0-1250  On demand 1,840,084 7.0-12.50  On demand 1,928,223
RER REX
4,579,244 5,496,112
Non-current FEENH
Bank loans - secured FITER-HHEA 3.00-7.20  2026-2029 509,860 3.75-9.98  2025-2030 449,822
2026F 22029 2025F £2030%F
Bank loans - unsecured BITER-EHKA 465 2026-2027 6,000 NA  NA -
2026 £2027F TER  MER
Other loans - secured HihEH-HEA 594  2026-2058 49,772 2.80-5.50  2025-2058 168,495
2026F 22058 F 2025F £2058%F
Other loans - unsecured HiEH - EHA 2.80-5.50  2026-2029 554,716 2.80-5.50  2025-2058 569,294
2026 £2029F 2025F £2058F
1,120,348 1,187,611
5,699,592 6,683,723
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

29. RITRHEHMEE(E)

2024 2023
2024%F 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Analysed into: DA
Bank and other borrowings repayable: RT3 BHEE ZR1T R
HibfgE
Within one year or on demand —FE R IRERK 4,579,244 5,496,112
In the second year E_fF 686,211 778,819
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-EZFERF(BEERME) 385,814 361,422
Beyond five years BBRF 48,323 47,370
5,699,592 6,683,723
The carrying amounts of bank and other borrowings at the end of the RIMEER - RITREMEEZEREETIAT
reporting period were denominated in the following currencies. P EEETIE -
2024 2023
20244 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%TR
SGD AN T 5,331 118,024
UsD = 1,948,623 1,977,377
RMB AR 3,745,638 4,588,322
5,699,592 6,683,723
Notes: et -

On 3 October 2019, the Company issued senior notes at a principal
amount of US$220 million carrying interest of 12.8% per annum due
on 3 October 2021 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
subscription agreement (the “2019 Original Notes”). Subsequently on
20 December 2019, the Company issued additional senior notes at a
principal amount of US$120 million under the same terms and conditions
of the subscription agreement of the 2019 Original Notes. The additional
senior notes are consolidated with the 2019 Original Notes and form a
single series at an aggregate principal amount of US$340 million carrying
interest of 12.8% per annum due on 3 October 2021.

In September 2021, US$142,420,000 of the 2019 Original Notes,
representing approximately 42.01% of the total aggregate principal
amount of the outstanding 2019 Original Notes, have been validly
tendered for exchange and accepted pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the exchange offer in exchange for the new notes to be
issued, and the remaining outstanding amount of US$196,580,000
were repaid upon maturity. Such amount of US$142,420,000 were in
exchanged for the new notes issued on 13 September 2021. Details of
the Exchange Offer are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8
September 2021.

(a) R2019F10A3H + AR RRERBEREZI1F
FREEH T R2021 10 ASH B A& 8
220,000,000E TF B 12.8EEAEZE([2019
FRIAZE ) - HER2019412 208 @ &
R AR IR 20194F [R 1A IR 3R B 1k 2 4B R 15
ERE RN 1T A S EE 120,000,000 T
EEE - BIMEAZIRE2019FRIBRES
HAE—ERF - BR2021F10A3B 2
N4 #2%8340,000,000E( T F B 12.8EEBEE
% -

202149 A8 + 20194 [R 18 1% 142,420,000
ETX(EREE20190F RIBZBASEED
42.01%) B IRIBRZIRE LM G RAIRHB IR
RERBA B EER - URBRHE T RITHOH
= MeR N AR(EE $%196,580,000% TE
R EIEABS (B8 © 3%142,420,0003 7T B B H
2021F9A13HAEITHHERE - KRENWN
BN AR F A B A2021F9A8HMALE -



29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)
() (continued)

On 13 September 2021, the Company issued senior notes at a principal
amount of US$200 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due
on 13 September 2023. The US$200 million senior notes are listed
and traded on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Such amount of
US$142,420,000 were in exchanged for the 2019 Original Notes due on
3 October 2021 (as detailed in note a above), and the remaining amount
of US$57,580,000 were intended for project developments and general
corporate purposes. Details of the issuance of the senior notes are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 14 September 2021.

On 12 September 2023, US$103,478,000 of the 2023 Notes,
representing approximately 91.39% of the total aggregate principal
amount of the outstanding 2023 Notes, have been validly tendered for
exchange and accepted pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
exchange offer in exchange for the new notes to be issued, and the
remaining outstanding principal amount of US$9,752,000 were planned
to repay upon maturity.

Senior notes in the principal amount of US$103,478,000 carrying interest
of 7% per annum due on 12 September 2025 (i.e. the “2025 Notes”)
were issued. As a result, the 2023 Notes validly tendered for exchange
and accepted pursuant to the Exchange Offer have been cancelled.
Details of the issuance of the senior notes are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 September 2023.

(b) On 24 September 2021, the Company issued senior notes at a principal
amount of US$160 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due on
23 April 2024. The US$160 million senior notes are listed and traded
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The net proceeds of the senior
notes were intended to refinance existing indebtedness and for project
developments and general corporate purposes. Details of the issuance of
the senior notes are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 24
September 2021.

(c) As of 31 December 2024, the Group did not make payments on certain
principal and interest payable of its USD denominated senior notes
due in 2023, which had been delisted upon maturity on 13 September
2023; the principal and interest payable of its USD denominated senior
notes due in 2024 (“2024 Senior Notes”), which had also been delisted
upon maturity on 23 April 2024, and the interest payable of its USD
denominated senior notes due in 2025 (“2025 Senior Notes”), triggering
an event of default or cross default of various borrowings pursuant to
the terms and conditions of respective agreements. The Company had
suspended the trading of its USD denominated senior notes due in 2025
on 2 April 2024,

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
Group’s pledged deposits, investment properties, completed properties
held for sale and properties under development with the total carrying
amount of RMB5,560,536,000 (2023: RMB10,386,509,000). In addition,
shares of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities to obtain certain
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group as at 31 December 2024
and 2028. Details of pledged assets are disclosed in note 39 to the financial
statements.

In additions, as at 31 December 2024, the Group’s senior notes and bank
and other borrowings were guaranteed by related companies. Details of the
guarantees are disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements.
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29. WITREMBE(E)
Hiat - (48)
() (%)

202169 H138 + AR AIFEITN2023F9 A
13 B B 81 2 AN & %8200,000,0003 T F £.12.5
[BEEERE - %200,000,000% T B L ZHER
BEBBRX LT REE ° 142,420,000% TE
RIEFP2021F10 A3 A B H 2 2019F R 1A ZE
& (A £ sEafrsfat) - #2 T57,580,000%
TEBEBEEERAR—REEAR - BHEE
EEBRETHFBENARQT HEA202159
R14B®AE °

K202359 8 12R - 20234 5 1%103,478,000
EL(BAEEN0BEERASHED
91.39% ) B AR IR S A 22 9 A RN B2 M- 1 7 i
AR O ERZ R - ARG T RITHHR
1R - MER TR EE A £ %89,752,0005 T At &l
RE| R -

AN %8 103,478,000% T « FHXK7E « R
202549 A 12 H B AR B 5 =45 (BN [ 20254
ZRDBEEET Bl - REIBRENHEH
RERBYEZEMA2023F ZEC LS ©
EHRBARBRITNFBHARAARBSHA
20239 A13AHI A% »

(o) 202149 A248 + ANARIE1TR202454 8
23 F B Hi 2 A £ %8160,000,0003% 7T 4 £.12.5
[EELEERH - %160,000,000% T ELZHER
EAMR A EMRES - BAZRRAFRESE
ARERERGER  BERER—REER
% AREAZEBREITHFBHARAAR A
B2021F9 24 A AL -

(© HE20245F12A318  AEBEH A HER
2023 F EIHAM E TR EE £ Z & (B 142023
F9A13 0 B AR BRI ) M0 T AN S K B+
B HR2024 5 RN E T EBAEZR
([2024FBEZHK ] - INEHR2024F4 23R
B A R BB ) M AR & Rk FE 5 R B R R 2025
FHHMETTHEELERZR([2025FE LR
BDMEMTS - BEAREERRERK
HHETHENKZXENEE - ARFIER
20244 A2 H {8 B H 20254 2| Hify &
TLRHEE S EE -

AEEETRITMEMEREDAASEERER
B A R #5,560,536,0007C (20234F : AR ¥
10,386,509,0007T) 2 E#Eifizd « WEWE
BIELEZE T IMERBEEPYEERR -
BEAN - FA2024 % 202312 A31H « & T K
B AR B BRI - ABUS AL E AT ER
ZETHRAOREMEE  FHBRKEEEZF
BRI 2R R M FESOIH FE -

AN - A20245F12A31H - AREBZEBELEEE
IARSRITREMERHRBAEARER - BEE
RZF BRI IERRM F42HE -
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30.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE
DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary
differences are as follows:

IEAER IH

ERERELEZREREEERABZEH N
T

Deferred tax assets EEHRBEBEE
Write-down
Accrued of properties
Provision expenses for under
Tax loss for LAT tax purpose development Total
BEEE ITHBEHERE RHEAX RMARRTYE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®T R ARBTR AR®T R AR®BTR
At 1 January 2023 M2023F1H1H 181,464 52,419 187,714 133,718 656,315
Credited to profit or loss during FARERRFA
the year (note 12) (BizE12) (149,156) (50,727) (133,285) 263,331 (69,837)
At 31 December 2023 and M2023F12A31H &
1 January 2024 2024%1A1H 32,308 1,692 54,429 397,049 485,478
Credited/(charged) to profit or FRMERRAA
loss during the year (note 12) ($0B%) (PFiF3E12) (21,550) (386) (31,682) (306,240) (359,858)
At 31 December 2024 20245128318 10,758 1,306 22,747 90,809 125,620

During the year ended 31 December 2024, deferred tax assets were
recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
relevant future taxable profits will be available against for utilisation. These
unused tax losses were in respect of certain PRC subsidiaries carried
forward at the end of 2024 and the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that these certain PRC subsidiaries will generate sufficient future
taxable profits.

At 31 December 2024, the Group had total unrecognised unused tax losses
of RMB2,462,966,000 (2023: RMB1,390,227,000) and unrecognised
temporary differences of RMB4,278,674,000 (2023: RMB3,120,458,000)
which were subject to agreement with the respective tax authorities,
available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these unused tax losses as they have arisen
in subsidiaries and the Company that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. Except for tax losses incurred
in the PRC amounting to RMB1,656,088,000 (2023: RMB980,949,000) will
expire within five years since the date of carry forward, these unrecognised
unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely, subject to fulfilment of
certain conditions or rules.

HZE2024F12A31HILFE » WAlEABEE
R ERF = A8 - Alg s REARIE
BIEERECHEEE - 2SABAREEE
Th B3 T R B B A Bl A 2024 FF [ A5 B k0
RARNREERE  2EE5THEMBRRG
EERHZ RREREHF

R2024F 128318 - NEBERERARB AR
TEE B EE A AR 2 462,966,000 7T (2023
F£ . AR #1,390,227,000 7T ) & oK fE R R
=% N R #4,278,674,000 7T (2023 & : A
R #3,120,458,0007T ) ' B H @HE B EERT
M2 ATRERMARRFE o BRBIIE
BETHEEE —EREE B QR ERAQ
RIEE RN KA BEH BB m A o] A A E
MIBEE MYTERZSASHARBEIER
RELEHBEE - BRFPEELEZREEE
A B # 1,656,088,000 7T (2023 & : A R #
980,949,0007T ) #% B 4 ¥ H HA ke A F N [E M
I ZEAERAD AR EEE A ER L
B BT AE TIREFRE -
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30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 30. EZEHIE ()

Deferred tax liabilities EEBEERE
Revaluation Withholding
of properties tax on
acquired distributable
under Revaluation Accelerated profits of the
business of investment tax Group’s PRC
combination properties depreciation subsidiaries Total
AEEH
EBEH AR
EHTREZ RE iz ] 2k &
MEE MEE BIEITE ZFEMB st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR%®Trn AR®ETr ARETR

At 1 January 2023 M202351 18 (308,832) (1,967) (73) (60,247) (371,119
Credited to profit or loss during FRRIER

the year (note 12) BRET A (PEE12) 88,540 - - - 88,540
Charged to other comprehensive 4 A7 E A

income during the year EEWESINR - (3,542) - - (3,542)
Exchange realignment b 5 S B = (199) - - (199)
At 31 December 2023 and M2023F12A31H &

1 January 2024 202441 1R (220,292) (5,708) (73) (60,247) (286,320)
Credited/(charged) to profit or FARBRE

loss during the year (note 12) A (3R (Kf3E12) 15,363 900 = = 16,263

Charged to other comprehensive &R

income during the year H 2 mkzs g = - _ _ _
Exchange realignment [E 7 - (1,300) - - (1,300)
At 31 December 2024 20245128318 (204,929) (6,108) (73) (60,247) (271,357)

RIBHBELCEMETE - RPBEAMKYLZE
SMREDLE D IRILE TEIMEEER - BENK
BB 10% 2 TR ° FZIRE MR 20085F1 H1HE
R R ERARR2007F12 4318 2 &K &F] o 10

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A

lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes at applicable rate of 10% on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB902,543,000 (831 December 2023: RMB902,453,000). In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable to distribute these earnings in the
foreseeable future.

AR b B ANBR 3G B T TE Rl AR @ BT B B R
e - BEARBEENRE - At - A5H
AL B bR AL 2 BT E A Rl pE 200841 A 1
AZRBEANBIRSOKREZBERRE10%
BmIBIE

202412 318 @ BRI EERELEFHIES
ENFEALHBARMNEERECERER
@EE A A R%902,543,0007T (2023412 A 31
B : AR%0902,453,0007T) ° EERAE ° A7
AARRAETEDIRZERTF
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31.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, Hong
Kong employees that have been employed continuously for at least
five years are entitled to Long Service Payment (LSP) under certain
circumstances (e.g. dismissal by employers or upon retirement).

The amount of LSP payable is determined with reference to the employee’s
last monthly salary (capped at HK$22,500) and the years of service,
reduced by the amount of any accrued benefits derived from the Group’s
contributions to MPF scheme, with an overall cap of HK$390,000 per
employee. Currently, the Group does not have any separate funding
arrangement in place to meet its LSP obligations.

In June 2022, the Government gazetted the Amendment Ordinance,
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from employers’
mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP. The Amendment Ordinance
will take effect on 1 May 2025 (the Transition Date). Separately, the
Government has indicated that it would launch a subsidy scheme to assist
employers after the abolition.

Among other things, once the abolition of the offsetting mechanism takes
effect, an employer can no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived
from its mandatory MPF contributions (irrespective of the contributions
made before, on or after the Transition Date) to reduce the LSP in respect
of an employee’s service from the Transition Date. However, where an
employee’s employment commenced before the Transition Date, the
employer can continue to use the above accrued benefits to reduce the
LSP in respect of the employee’s service up to that date. In addition, the
LSP in respect of the service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately before the Transition
Date and the years of service up to that date.

The benefit payment under LSP remains capped at HK$390,000 per
employee. If an employee’s total benefit payment exceeds HK$390,000, the
amount in excess of the cap is deducted from the portion accrued from the
Transition Date.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the LSP obligation due to
the Amendment Ordinance.

31.

REIRTS & A IE

REBEBBERBIROIESTE  HEXEZLEF
MEEESEENE TER T (FIETRES
BN EZXRHARBEE -

RNEHREEHNEBENEL2ERERE &
BRIIA (LR A22,500/87T) RIRBER »
NEBRABES T EELNEREL 2 KT
me R K1EE8EEE LR A390,0005 T © B
Al NEBYETNEBNES LT RETE
RHRGSER -

M20225%6 A © BUFTIBERT &M - HEERR A
SR E TR HIEHRZ Rt Ea R R
B2 R - BT EDIF 2025556 A1 R (3B
BEH) AR - tbSh - BB RS RERR 1% 16
H—IBmREET S AEBEE -

Hep —BEURSRHRGIER  EXEBER
HER LS (e EL s M SR TR 2 R (RN B
BHREZA - ERRZRIEL ZHF) REL
Z AR REH#E R A B (R B IR TS 2 & B AR
T A - WEERBEBHRIERABZE -
AEEAASEER LR RSB ERE
BRIt IE B R 2 REARBE B Nid
B B HAT SRS 2 R AR 2 542 (R B iR
BB A2 A REBEBE A 82 RIS FHIE
=

EHRESBETITRZINREBMNDASTRESE
390,000/ 7t ° W3 {E B M & T AR KEHE B
390,0007T + AlRR ML ERSFE S BEE B g
2o F0R

AEBER EFHER] GHE ERRBE 2 EBH

=
-
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR® T
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE :
1,9183,386,669 (2023: 1,913,386,669) 1,913,386,669% (20234 :
ordinary shares 1,913,386,669/% ) & 1@ i 5,326,923 5,326,923

33.

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

RABIRALBEEEETIAT

Number of

ordinary
Shares in issue Share capital

21T
ZEREE [N
RMB’000
AR® T

At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, #2023F1 18 » 2023F12 8318

1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 20241 H1H K&2024%12A31H 1,913,386,669 5,326,923

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
year ended 31 December 2024 are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, these
entities are required to appropriate 10% of their net profits after tax,
as determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
entities, the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other
than those for which it is created and is not distributable as cash
dividends.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of group
entities. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.25.

33. f#fE

AEBEZRESBEREREZE2024F12A31H
IEEEZEH 2T RGRAESEHERN -

(a)

(b)

REDEERE
REBEFBERABERRTBERIZANEA
AMARERMAA  ZSERARNR
aHFERR Z10%RBUEE B R E © Ut
TREPREAEREE  EERER
FER H M & R60% A1 - XARR T
BOESR R ERAMERARMEE TR
B Z MR - X TE B i R I SH
BB AR INRA - BEREFER
BIBINAEEZEMEARZ225% °
EE TS A ERER B AN E A 3
& I ARERREMEDIK °

HNEE 1 15
SNERFBRIGHESE B RYIBIRERM
EENMAEIINEZR - ARREBRIEH
A2 26T El B st IR R B HE

o

o
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. In
view of the Group’s expansion strategy, the Group has sourced funding
from banks, financial institutions, bonds, senior notes and its related
companies in which Ms. Huang has beneficial interests and continued
to look for other external financing sources. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from the prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the share capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues, raising of new borrowings or redemption of debts.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related companies, and loans
from a related company, net of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances and pledged deposits. The gearing ratio as at the end of the
reporting period was as follows:

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024

EXERER

AEBEREARATAERAEEERENSE
e ARNEBRCEBEESE TEHARRS
KA@M - ERAEE 2 ERRE - AEE
BIRTT - EEE  E5 - ELEFE KHuang
RIHEREGER  HBERREEER S IRN
BESSKEMIIPRERE - AEEBERE
EBRFFERITIE o

ARDEZEFHREHNEARE - BEAZ
HEN  ARAEERRE KA K B #H AR
AHERE - REARAREZTER  AKEGEER
SANBRE - BITHRD  BRFEEREOE
T FPEHEERERRESE -

AEBEARBEBARFRE  HERRTE
HEE  ENEEARZIRARKE —HHE
REZEF  BRLEBRLEEER - ZRH
RITEHRREER RS RBEPRZEER
AL

2024 2023

2024%F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®ETR

Amounts due to related companies FEfTRE R Rl 5RE 1,651,058 1,218,038
Loans from a related company KE—HBEERRZER 7,223,176 7,273,704
Bank and other borrowings (current and non-current)  $R1T R EfhE & (RE RIERE)) 5,699,592 6,683,723
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BHENBESEEEB (317,544) (528,296)
Restricted bank balances SR BRI TR (541,908) (1,184,149)
Pledged deposits (current and non-current) MR (RERIERE) (123,711) (130,913)

Net debt BEFE 13,590,663 13,332,107
Total assets BEE 39,497,728 46,399,320
Gearing ratio BEAGBHXR 34% 29%
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. @RS Z2eRIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as RBEHR  SHESRTAZEREAENT ¢

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2024 2024
Financial assets THEE

Financial assets

at fair value Financial
through profit assets at
orloss amortised cost
BRAFEFA Ei°§: £)2%iN
BRzeRMEE TEZL2REE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZSRMEE 213,387 -
Accounts receivable JE UK BR 3R - 13,055
Financial assets included in other receivables and T AE fib EURIE K&
other assets EMEECSREE - 737,314
Pledged deposits EEFES - 123,711
Restricted bank balances PR Gl SR TAE B4R - 541,908
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRSFEIER - 317,544
213,387 1,733,532
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R
RAGTEZ
=R
RMB’000
ARBT T
Accounts and bills payables R R EE 169,165
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FTAEMBERNRIE - EE2 &
deposits and accruals EirERzomAaRE 8,847,809
Amounts due to related companies FEfS A& A RI5RIE 1,651,058
Loans from a related company RE—HBEEREZER 7,223,176
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 5,699,592
23,590,800
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)

2023
Financial assets

RERHE S 2EMT A(E)

20235
EHEE

Financial assets

at fair value Financial
through profit assets at
orloss amortised cost
BRAFETA E278: £)2 %N
BRveMEE TEZ2RMEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Tx AR%T
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZEMEE 296,979 =
Accounts receivable JE UL BR R = 19,677
Financial assets included in other receivables and T AE b FE U GRIE K
other assets EMEEZSREE = 482,596
Pledged deposits BEFES = 130,913
Restricted bank balances ZIRISRITAE 4 = 1,184,149
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBFEEEEE - 528,296
296,979 2,345,631
Financial liabilities 2HERE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
/g )
RAGTEZ
SN
RMB’000
ARETT
Accounts and bills payables ERERERRRE 294,533
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FTAEMBERNIE HE Rk
deposits and accruals EEtERAZESRARE 7,510,939
Amounts due to related companies FETREE R RIFIR 1,218,038
Loans from a related company RE—EEEARIZER 7,273,704
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 6,683,723
22,980,937
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. ERIREZAFERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RIERR  SREMTAZRERENT

Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AFE
2024 2023 2024 2023
20244 20234 20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value BATEEFA
through profit or loss EBmsemEE 213,387 296,919 213,387 296,979
Financial liabilities cREeHE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 5,699,592 6,683,723 5,653,756 6,619,875

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, pledged deposits, accounts
receivable, financial assets included in other receivables and other assets,
accounts payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due to related companies and loans from a related
company approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices.

The fair values of bank and other borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2024 were assessed to
be insignificant.

ERECMARERREEFEERE  XBRHIR
1ThEER - CHEMES - BEIRR - s AEME
WHRIAREMEEZ SREE - BNEKRX - &
AEMENRBAREAERAZERAE - BN
BMEARRARKA —MBAERARZERAF
BEEAEBREEABEE - THARZEIATH
BESFTE -

AEBMPBEETENY B  AERES
MTARAFEFECHENEF HBEEER
ERMARUBERE - NSRS AH - BB
DT e E T AMEE S B T G EDPER
ZERGANE - HEHEFENBEEHRAE -

TREERABNAFENEERAHERSE
FEREXZHBTAZ R  RASERHE
ZeREENRBBBRI -

B ERAKRE 2 A FERTISRETE -

BITRHEMEEZ AFEDBBEEIHAKRIR
CREBRAKITARABEUGRK - FERR R
BTEHEMZ TAZMRETHRGTE - B
2024F12A381H ' A&EBEBEB@RITREMEE
N TBYOERERNAFELSBHMTCE -
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUE)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2024

36.

SBMIAZAFERAFERER
(48)

AFEBR

TRIFAEESRMTAY ATEHEBR -

BAFPHEHIBZEE -
R2024F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERUTBEHEZATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EIR BERTHE BEATAHE
miEZHE BWAYE BWAHE
(5—#) (B=4) (E=8) mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR AR¥TR ARMF T
Financial assets at fair value BAFERA
through profit or loss Ba omEE 213,387 - - 213,387
As at 31 December 2023 R2023%F12H31H
Fair value measurement using
FERAUTHESEZAFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EIB ERTHE BEATAHE
52 HRE BAHE BWAHE
(%) (=) (B=#) @gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T AR®BT R AR®BT R
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE 296,979 - - 296,979

The Group had no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31

December 2024 (2023: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (2023: Nil).

R2024%F12 4318 » AEBWET([IZAFE
FrEZ SR AME(20234F « &) -

FR - cHMEENSRAGE —AEF K
M AT ERTE 2 S - Jh e S ol
BE =4 (20234 : #) o



36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUE)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
As at 31 December 2024

36.

EMIAZAFERAIFEEBR

—~

&)

Annual Report 2024 & Z UL F R

AFEER(E)
HWELAFEZERE:
R2024F 12431 H

Fair value measurement using

ERUTBEHEC N VE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E IR BEATBRE EXTABE
s ZHRE WABE WABE
(B-#) (B=#) (=8 met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT ARBT T AR®TR
Bank and other borrowings RITRAMESR - 5,653,756 - 5,653,756
As at 31 December 2023 Ro023F 1231 H
Fair value measurement using
ERAUTHEFEZAFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E IR EDNGIE EXTABR
miEZHE WABE PN ¢:4
(5—-#) (=8 (=8 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBT T ARBT R ARMT T
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE - 6,619,875 - 6,619,875
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37.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, accounts receivable, other
receivables, accounts payable, other payables and accruals and amounts
due to related companies, which arise directly from its operations. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as pledged deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, bank and other
borrowings and loans from a related company. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rate set out in note 29. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest cost
using a mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s loss/profit before tax.

37.

MEERERER RRBEEK

AEENIZERTATZERERSRASSE
BB - ZEHIRITER - BURIRR - EME
WHIR -« EAERR - EiENFREREER
LRENBEARNE TR TARELE
MEEEL ASEEFHEMCEREERA
& MEERRE  RATEAABRRZER
BE ROLEBEERRE —HBEIRZ
EX - ZEeRTANIZENERRAEE
ZEBERE -

AEETMTREENTERAR AN XER
BRABREAR  SMNERR - FERBRRERREHE
EEE o — RN F - AR5 b E R R
ReF G - AEBAFALRBETARRZH00T
Ee@MTA BEEgRJYREZTRARER
KSR - Eaan T e

F=E

7R 5= [58 T g 1 70 355 1) 3 2 3 fm o = 2 B Y 29
PEAEEFSRTREMEERR - AEE
WEERATESR T EEPRNXRER - REEH
ERAESREEEEEREFSKA

TRIREMRE R ZREREFTENBER
T MENSEARESFRED MY AEER
B RIEE, E R e -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in loss
2024 in basis points before tax
2E MBS 18
20244 EH(THE) #m, Ghd)
RMB’000
AR®TT

Loans and borrowings denominated in LRIEEAFEZERREE
UsD X 100 2,670
usD ETT (100) (2,670)
SGD IS 100 10
SGD IS (100) (10)



37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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MEREERRRBEKR)

Interest rate risk (continued) FlZR (&)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in loss
2023 in basis points before tax
2 BRELATE 18
20234 EF(FER) #im, (8d)
RMB’000
ARET T

Loans and borrowings denominated in I EEE 2 BRREE

usD = 100 2,882
UsD ey (100) (2,882)
SGD s T 100 114
SGD N T (100) (114)

Equity price risk R A B 4% R B

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
listed investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The management manages this exposure by regular review of price
fluctuation.

Price sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risks of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
at the end of the reporting period.

P A 1% R B 7 B A 1 B 2 (R Il 38 25 (B B
BREBBRABZS N TETRZEAR - AEE
EXWOBRRATEAABRZEREEZ
FHRERAERRER - EREEBTEHEHN
BRI E IR LR o

ERSRE
T SREDSTARE BRIZ D FERARE
ZERMEEEBRAEAZARERE

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease) in

in market price  loss before tax

& MR AT 18

EFHCREE) i, R

% RMB’000

% ARET T
31 December 2024 2024912 A31H 10 (21,339)
(10) 21,339

31 December 2023 2023%12A31H 10 (29,698)
(10) 29,698
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BMBEREREBERBEKGE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk ShiE R B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise AEBEMBERFEERER - ZFRMKIIAEA
from transactions by operating units in currencies other than the units’ RGBT LA I e E AN BT
functional currencies. SMELE °
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting TRINTEFRMBEREMAEREZRETENBR
period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$, USD and SGD T BRBT  ETRFMNEITEEXRNEEA
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s R B AN B RS R A BB A& F 2 8
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of monetary assets and REST(AREBEENBEBEZATEEEFA
liabilities). ) -
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in
in market price  loss before tax
HiE B % AT S 1B
LR (TK) #hn, R )
% RMB’000
% ARBT T
2024 202445
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD s 7 A T AHE 1 22,250
If the HK$ weakens against the USD ST AT E (1) (22,250)
If the SGD strengthens against the USD fisl 37 D04 T K =TT HHE 1 799
If the SGD weakens against the USD fisi 3 D3 T S = T2 B (1) (799)
If the HK$ strengthens against the SGD {878 7T 3 N3 T AHE 1 (34)
If the HK$ weakens against the SGD 1wl 78 70 5 ET A3 T B2 B (1) 34
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB BT AREHE 1 (1)
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB BT HARBRE (1) 1
2023 20234
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD s T AT A E 1 23,164
If the HK$ weakens against the USD AT AT E 1 (23,164)
If the SGD strengthens against the USD fis 37 hN3E T S =TT HHE 1 299
If the SGD weakens against the USD fisi 3 D3 T 3 = Tz B (1) (299)
If the HK$ strengthens against the SGD w7 7T 5 3 N3 T AHE 1 (85)
If the HK$ weakens against the SGD sl 785 70 5 FT AN T i (8 (1) 85
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB i T i AR EFAE 1 (1)
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB BT ARBEE ) 1
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MEREERRRBEKR)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are

FERR

AEBERERN RIEBRIF ZHNBREET
X5 MBRAEENBE  MARKERR
RETRINETPHARXEERERRF ° It

monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is

not significant.

oh - AEESFHEERBRBFIRGEHRIER -
REEZZRRERILTERX ©

Maximum exposure and year-end staging RERERER FAEER
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to TRIWRERAEE ZERENEZELEEZ NG

credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is available without undue

cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

AEERRBA - TEERNBEBHERN(ER
EMBRBZHARBHAFE) RRN12A
BTHZFRIERDH -

25 eRATREEMAREE

As at 31 December 2024 Ro024F 1231 H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A
EHEE
3] 2HEBEEFE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BIRER E2RER HEIFEER [GE (P st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥ETR AR¥TR AR TR AR¥ETR
Accounts receivable* JRE Ui AR 0
- Normal** —EFE* 15,801 - - - 15,801
Financial assets included in other 5t A E 4 fEULERTE K2
receivables and other assets HiWBEZSREE
- Normal* — [E 779,027 - - - 779,027
- Doubtful™* —TERE - - 650 - 650
Pledged deposits EEfZe
— Not yet past due — X 123,711 - - - 123,711
Restricted bank balances R FIRI T
— Not yet past due — RimH 541,908 - - - 541,908
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER
— Not yet past due — K7 & 317,544 - - - 317,544
1,777,991 - 650 - 1,778,641
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

37. BXEKREEEERBEK(E)

Credit risk (continued) EERE(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) RERRER FAER(E)
As at 31 December 2023 Ro023F 12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A
BHEEESE 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
SE1RE SRR EIMR R fEt s st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥ TR AR¥ T AR¥ TR AR¥ TR
Accounts receivable* e AR TR
- Normal* — g 20,663 - - - 20,663
Financial assets included in other =+ A E i L 708 K2
receivables and other assets HEEZCMEE
— Normal** — g 497,799 - - - 497,799
- Doubtful** —TERE - - 650 - 650
Pledged deposits BERZe
— Not yet past due —RmH 130,913 - - - 130,913
Restricted bank balances RGBT
- Not yet past due — Ry 1,184,149 - - - 1,184,149
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEMBEER
~ Not yet past due B S 508,296 - - - 508,296
2,361,820 - 650 - 2,362,470

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment as detailed in note 23 to the financial
statements, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

ke

The credit quality of the financial assets included in accounts receivable,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings, lease
liabilities and loans from a related company. Cash flows are being closely
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows:

AN SR B 18 R B 75 SR MY R 2B TR AR E RS A
TEARMBKERRT S - AEEYEEFAEAE
PREERAR °

BT ARBARR - HttREREBEREMEEZ
CRMEEADY  AUBEHBETSREEN
EEER B MIaHERARBERLINE - SRE
ENEEERBERIESR] -

RBESER
AEEZ BERBEBIBRTREMES - B
ERBEURKRE —RBABEQARZER  #HE
EREHRERBEERE 2 FE - AEEFERY]
ERRERE

RBEMR - ARESREBEREEHRMER
NRIELEOZ AT
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37. BHEREEEREREEKE)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBELE(E)
As at 31 December 2024 R2024%F12H31H
On demand
or within 1to2 3to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
EZER
H—FR —ZWF =ERE BBRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF R AR TR AR¥T R AR%T R AR¥T R
Accounts and bills payable ERERRER 169,165 - - - 169,165
Financial liabilities included in other 5t AE b B Uiz & I
deposits received and accruals EAER AR 8,847,809 - - - 8,847,809
Amounts due to related companies  FE{EEE A &7 IE 1,651,058 - - - 1,651,058
Loans from a related RE—HBEEARZ
company =
- Non-interest-bearing —B 8 7,223,176 - - - 7,223,176
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 4,802,589 715,117 413,782 89,945 6,021,433
22,693,797 715,117 413,782 89,945 23,912,641
Financial guarantee contracts (Note) B FZ#ER A 9 (BisE) 18,227,453 - - - 18,227,453
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12H31H
On demand
or within 1to2 3to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
EZER
H—FR —ZWF =ZEARE BBRE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥TR AR¥T AR%T R AR¥T
Accounts and bills payable EANERRRER 294,533 = = = 294,533
Financial liabilities included in other 5t A K B2 Wiz 4 &
deposits received and accruals E:tERZERBR 7,510,939 - - - 7,510,939
Amounts due to related companies  FE{EEE A &7 IE 1,218,038 - - - 1,218,038
Loans from a related company RE—FEREARIZER
- Non-interest-bearing —%8 7,273,704 - - - 7,273,704
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 5,655,316 814,556 383,087 91,884 6,044,843
21,952,529 814,556 383,087 91,884 28,242,056
Financial guarantee contracts (Note) B 5#ERA 49 (BisE) 19,614,491 = - - 19,614,491

Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on the expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the guaranteed financial receivables held by the
counterparty suffer credit losses.

Hret - ERBBHRAR OFIRAERYE T REEH
IR - AERERIR LA e RSN 2 BUR (R
REZBEDTHE - ERNMEPR ALY - A&
B RAARB AR L P ST ER IR AR
PR o WM ZIEFHRFHF I RBEERRE
ZAIREET AR - M AT RE AR T H T
FERVBREFAGERZEEBRME



176

Zensun Enterprises Limited

EREXERAF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024
38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38.

HE2024F12 A31HIEFE

RERTRERME

CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (a) BETH2EEEFH
Amounts
due to Loan from Bank and
related a related Accrued other
companies company interest* borrowings Total
ERE RE—EE RITR
DNENE EARZER RE 2 Hitnfg & st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF AR¥TR AR¥F AR®TR AR¥T
At 1 January 2024 12024F1H1H 1,218,038 7,273,704 141,868 6,683,723 15,317,333
Changes from financing MEEELRE
cash flows (Note) 23 ([fT) 433,020 (50,528) (102,300) (998,617) (718,425)
Interest expenses FERY - - 514,197 - 514,197
Foreign exchange translation HNEHRE - - - 14,486 14,486
At 31 December 2023 72023128318 1,651,058 7,223,176 553,765 5,699,592 15,127,591
Amounts
due to Loan from Bank and
related a related Accrued other
companies company interest* borrowings Total
1 RE—MHE RITR
BEARME EARZER REtFIE* Hinfg & st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR¥ TR AR¥ T AR% TR AR®BT R
At 1 January 2023 72023F1A1H 1,038,106 7,243,579 87,161 8,199,383 16,568,229
Changes from financing mEHERE
cash flows (Note) 28 (M) 179,932 30,125 (673,013)  (1,527,177)  (1,990,133)
Interest expenses FMERZ - = 727,720 = 727,720
Foreign exchange translation HNERE - - - 11,517 11,517
At 31 December 2023 2023F12H318 1,218,038 7,273,704 141,868 6,683,723 15,317,333
Note: The financing cash flows are made up of the net amounts of new it MERERERGARERERAZ
bank and other borrowings raised, repayment of bank and other MERITREMEE BEBIIRE
borrowings, interest paid, advance from/repayment to related MiEE - EAFE - BEARRKR
companies, loans received from/repaid to a related company and BX Bk EE—RHEEAFRR
third parties in the consolidated statement of cash flows. NBEERZFHE ©
* Included in accounts payable, deposits received and accruals. * S AERERSK - Bz e RIERTER -

(b)

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash

flows is as follows:

(b) FHERSHHARE
Ren8XkMBEERSMLEREDT

Within operating activities

2024 2023

20244 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

EEEN A 253 19




39.

40.

41.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS 39. EEEKW
The following assets are pledged to certain of the Group’s bank and other RBEHR U TNTEECEBFETAEEE
borrowings granted to the Group and mortgage loan facilities granted to BRZAEBERTREMEERAEBYE L&
certain property buyers of the Group’s properties at the end of the reporting TYEERERILBREZEH :
period:
2024 2023
2024%F 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Property under development BREPYE 3,311,616 6,063,554
Completed properties held for sale RIEREZERTIYE 1,841,125 3,779,595
Investment properties wEYE 284,084 412,447
Pledged deposits EERES 123,711 130,913
5,560,536 10,386,509
In addition, shares of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities to AN+ 20245 K 202312 A31H » 2K
obtain certain banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December ETHEBRABIZKRG  MEAREBERET
2024 and 2023. RITRLE 2 I -
COMMITMENTS 40. HEIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the RBEHAR - XEBZERFAENT -
reporting period:
2024 2023
20245 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBT T
Contracted for , but not provided, in respect of DRI #ABERBEY
Property development expenditures HEREMAS 4,926,377 6,799,747
4,926,377 6,799,747
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41. HAREE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had contingent liabilities relating
to guarantees amounting to approximately RMB18,227,453,000 (2023:
RMB19,614,491,000) in respect of mortgage loan facilities provided by
certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
property buyers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these property buyers,
the Group would be responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with accrued interest thereon and any penalties owed
by the defaulted buyers to the banks. The Group would be entitled to
take over the legal title to and possession of the related properties. These
guarantees will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the
mortgage loan by the buyer of the property; and (ii) the issuance of the
property ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion
of the deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, no provision for the guarantee contracts was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: Nil) as the default risk is low and in case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the outstanding
principal together with the accrued interest and penalties.

MR2024%F 12 A31H » AEBRBBEAEEY
EZMEBRIUZEBERMABAS TR
REZEBERBMEZEREASIABED
A R #18,227,453,000 7t ( 2023 4F : A R #
19,614,491,0007T)  BIEWERIEK © HZED
X¥EXRBRIZIBHIE  AEBEAEEELRE
BRRMIBITHREERIBEASERRFE
MAEMEIR - NEBE KB EEEHBYENE
EERMEBE  ZSERBRUTREEZ
ERFEERR - (WEBERERBIRBE K3t
BMEZEHMEMERET ZERIZRBHEUEE
e ARAEBERE G AREHNRBEIE B fif
NEREBEEL - BEBEYE 2 vl 2 3% E 0%
EXREEASERZFNMNERE S R EHL
ERELHNREE2024F12 A31 H IFFE (2023
F ) 2R A ISR RS o
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the reporting period:

42. BEALXRS

(a)

RREHBERRERBSF LIRS
5N REBPME N RIS
THXS -

Related companies (Note (i) Transactions 2024 2023
BE DR (MEEG) R5 2024F 2023F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T
Relevant members of KERIRARLD  Project management B HEERE
Ever Diamond Global al([xElz service fee income ZA
Company Limited BEKEDH
(“Ever Diamond”, and (SR KEE
collectively, the “Ever E])
Diamond Group”) 95 94
Relevant members of ARIERE{R3E  Construction costs BERA(RBRE
Henan Zensun Corporate BEREAR (capitalised in properties B AR L)
Development Company 7] ([ IR under development) (P 5E(i)
Limited (“Zensun Bl zAaEk (Note (i)
Development”) together BREERE
with its subsidiaries g€t
(collectively, the “Zensun [FBERESE
Development Group”) D 1,489,745 1,758,149
Relevant members of FEYE R (a) Property engineering (@) BB IR
Xingye Wulian Service SEBRAT costs (capitalized R(REES
Company Limited ([E%wH]) in properties under MEEXR)
(“Xingye Wulian”) together ZEBKER development) (Note (i) (B (i) 13,259 26,260
with its subsidiaries FIERENE (b) Property management (b)) MEEER
(collectively, the “Xingye NGt and value-added BEEREE
Wulian Group”) EVESE]) services fee (Note (ii)) (B i)) 19,689 17,346
Notes: Wizt -
i) Ever Diamond Group are entities controlled by the Ms. Huang. (i) XEEBAMHHang L TEF 2 &

Zensun Development Group and Xingye Wulian Group are entities
ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang’s daughter, Ms. Zhang.

(i) These transactions were based on terms mutually agreed by
both parties. These transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s senior notes and bank and
other borrowings amounting to approximately RMB5,635,866,000
(31 December 2023: approximately RMB4,812,948,000) were
guaranteed by related companies which are controlled by Ms.
Huang, and her daughter, Ms. Zhang. No asset of the Group was
pledged to these related companies in respect of these guarantees.

The Group is licensed by Zensun Real Estate to use the trademark
of “Zensun” and “IEfE” on a royalty-free basis until July 2025.

B rEstESEREEYHEERR
A HuangZ & 2 %2 57 5k 7 £ & 44T

ZER-

(ii) ZER G HERE T HER W E 2 50
EE - WHK ETRIE4AZET
EBZFBHERS ©

MN2024%E 128318 - REEZ B L
ZEARBTREMEEHOARE
5,635,866,0007T (2023412 A318 : 4J
AR #4.812,948,0007T) 2 $R17 M E A
BEEEAHuang® T R E L BRI %
FlZEEABER MERZSERE
ZERBEARBHAEEEE -

AEEEEEEETIRAENEELE
A Zensun | & [ IE 7 | 12 £2025F7
Ao
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 42. B@EA TR 5 (&)
(o) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) BRREE A+ 2 KBRS
Details of the Group’s balances with related parties as at the end WMEBR - AEBEEEA L+ 2R
of the reporting period are included in notes 25, 27 and 28 to the §$| BN R R MEE25 - 27 %28 ©
financial statements.
(©) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (c) REBFEEIE A B HEN
2024 2023
20245 2023%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TR
Short term employee benefits EHESEN 904 409
Post-employment benefits B2 1A 33 33
Total compensation paid to MEEEBEABZMNH
key management personnel FrNsesE 937 442
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments EERFETBRAEME 2E—FFBEHRHY
are included in note 10 to the financial statements. & MIFE10 ©
Save as disclosed above, no transaction has been entered into with BREXFHEBREEN REANLEBEARAES
the directors of the Company (being the key management personnel) (BEZEBAB)#ETENRS  HRESE
during the year other than the emoluments paid to them (being key EREEEIE A BB 2 B k(2023
management personnel compensation) (2023: Nil). F:E)o
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 43. ERESTE

On 28 August 2013, a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to motivate eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years
from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible persons
of the Share Option Scheme include (i) a director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (i) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (iii) a
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (iv) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent
or representative of any member of the Group; (v) a person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional services to any member of the Group;
and (vi) a landlord or tenant (including a sub-tenant) of any member of
the Group. Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
shall be entitled at any time during the life of the Share Option Scheme to
offer the grant of any option to any eligible person as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select and the basis of eligibility shall be determined by
the Board from time to time.

201348 H28H + AR RN B ELTE
(IEBRRAERTE]) - BERAERT B B EREE A%
EEBKRREMEMZAERAL - BRIEBK
FEEESER] - GRIBRETEImZAR—HSA
BE+F - BREFESZEER/RATBENLNSE
EERKE AR ZESRIEEES(BIEBILIE
WITEE)  (MAEEETAKE AR ZEERH
BRE  (NAEBETMAKE AR ZERKRG
HER  (WAEEETRKER ﬂzgﬁ A
EER %%&A**ﬁi%i L ~7¥<
8 RESIKREX  VALAEEEFRKE R

}%f,\ﬁﬁéf‘fxﬁm&mi#ﬁWﬂ?%ﬁﬁ 552%5
s BERBZALTRER : RVI)ASEEER

KERRZEETHMEF(BELMEF) - BRIEE
Pt &2 (R - BB IR 818 M AE
BHE EESERAEERNBEEZEFNG
BRALTRZEZELBRE MAEREENK
HEFEETE °
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43.

HE2024F12A31HIEFE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted is such number of shares which,
when aggregated with shares subject to any other share option scheme(s),
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the annual general meeting approving the Share Option Scheme
on 28 August 2013. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible person in the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the grantee
of the options). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director, or to any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to the shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

The amount payable upon the acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The
period within which an option must be exercised shall be such period as
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant, save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years commencing on the date
of grant of an option.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board, but
may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer of the grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date the annual meeting approving
the Share Option Scheme on 28 August 2013, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options vested immediately and may be exercised at any
time not exceeding a period of 5 years from the date on which the share
options are accepted.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no options have
been granted under the above-mentioned scheme.

43. BEBRESTEI(E)

BRI ERT S - AT 2 RS R 2 R
DEE LR - BEAEMBRESES R 2R
BEMN  RZTEBBEARQRR201348 728
BREREFASE A EZBERIESSIE%T
BEAR 2 10% o FEAR]+ =16 A 53 AR 45 B8 ik 4
Al AERIETE S A BEWALETZRNHER
LR AR REREEE BETRD1%ER -
Ef#E— SR BaZRE s BREAFRE
R ARSI AR + HAIEST ©

MAARNBEE  TBTBRAEREERRHE
EZAZTMBEA LR HBRE  HEARE
WY FNTER 2 EAE(ABEREARAZ
ERPBSLIEMITEERRIN) o Bboh - FEER+=
& B AR - 1A AR A FE (A = 2 AR 5 B 32 FF
HTESKFESA2EABHEALREEM
FRIBAD R AT ERE TR MD0.1% R AE
8 385,000,0007%8 7T (R IR A2 Al B D A% A
H 2 BREETE) 2ERE - AIZAFRRRIREAR
SHER - HAIELT ©

BRREZARSENSE1.008T - BRiEZ
VRTERRAZBRS MR BRERS2ER
BEEE - HEARIHIR B AR B LR A
BHEBTF -

BREZTEERESSET @ ETFEERMN
TEEZESS | (AR ARORIEZREH B H
(KWEARSAH)RBRAMEARERAFRKT
B () ANRARMREERZR L B HRRE
RS ARG ARERABEHKTE
R (iii) A2 FRR A EIME -

HIREER R BRI T o BRES B IR
DHABIE RE AR A B R B LR © TR
TBEAR B R20134F8 A28 H (Ht BT
MRRAFAEHH)EBTRH10%  HRE
M—FRNRTRAERTFEMALTZERES
BT TETROEE ERLEARQF]
AR F B ERT - T FTEBIBA R B ] B
BB EITIRN1% - IEIREE ERREEER
B #R 7R 38 T 47 HA RS PO 0 {o] B 8 B B 53 B N )
RERATHE -

R T 20244 % 2023412 B31 8 IFEE 1%
ERENRERIR BT B R -



44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

44.

N
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ENNSEUE 3 O €

—EomEEH

RAINMERRZ M BEARRIBRELDT

2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KR 40 48
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RARZEE 324,181 324,181
Total non-current assets ERBEELRTE 324,221 324,229
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and other assets HEmpElrma kR EaEE 40,359 39,516
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZ SREE 213,303 296,871
Amounts due from subsidiaries Al ENGIE Sl 6,011,248 6,343,940
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFEEEEE 9,425 7,215
Total current assets MENEERTE 6,274,335 6,687,542
Current liabilities BB &
Other payables and accruals EtEARERETER 126,685 83,576
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 1,840,084 1,928,223
Amounts due to subsidiaries I NS B R - =
Total current liabilities MBI A BB 1,966,769 2,011,799
Net current assets REBEEFE 4,307,566 4,675,743
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBERS 4,631,787 4,999,972
Net assets BEFE 4,631,787 4,999,972
Equity Eam
Share capital A&7 5,326,923 5,326,923
Reserves (Note) A ED) (695,136) (326,951)
Totallequity W2k @ 4,631,787 4,999,972
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. RRATHBMRR Bk (F)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: et -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARZ EE BT -
Capital
reduction Exchange Other Retained
reserves reserve reserve earnings Total
ERER RS INE & 5 Hitnf# e REZE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARETT ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1A1H 119,330 148,474 82,674 (904,318) (653,840)
Total comprehensive income/ A2 EW
(loss) for the years (E518) 45 - 464,473 - (237,584) 226,889
At 31 December 2023 and 722023412431 H &
1 January 2024 2024%F1A1H8 119,330 612,947 82,674 (1,141,902) (326,951)
Total comprehensive loss for 5 A % [ &5 18 42 58
the years - (43,765) - (824,420) (368,185)
At 31 December 2024 R2024%12A31H 119,330 569,182 82,674 (1,466,322) (695,136)




45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2024 are as follows:

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Place incorporation/
registration and

Annual Report 2024

45. MEARBE

—EomEEH

R2024%F12A318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

BT

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
ML BRTEE AN B ELER
% S it B K% 3 b BE MR EE ZEDH FEEK
Direct Indirect
i i
75 Wall Street, LLC USA Note (i) = 100.00  Property investment
EE B () Y&
American Housing REIT, Inc. USA Common stock - 99.80 Property investment
X USD6,256 MERE
L imAR6,2563 7T
AHR First Borrower, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.80 Loan financing and
EJE1 FEEG) property investment
EXEERMERE
AHR Second Borrower, LLC USA Note (i) = 99.80 Loan financing
EE BIEE() BEXREE
American Senior Housing USA Note (i) - 99.80 Property investment and
REIT, LLC ESET B 2E ) investment holding
MR E MBI
ASHR McKinney, LLC USA Note (i) = 99.80 Property investment
EE BTG YR E
ASHR First, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.80 Property investment
EH {EsH() MERE
China Credit Singapore Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Ordinary shares 100.00 — Investment holding
EIlIES SGD13,417,282 B
13,417,282% N3 T
Expats Residences Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary shares - 100.00  Property investment
ESMIES SGD25,002 MEKRE
25,0025 I T
Heng Fung Capital Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100.00 —  Property investment and
Limited B TR T securities trading
EERMERRAA MEBREREBEHEE
Keng Fong Foreign Investment USA Common stock - 100.00 Property investment
Co., Ltd. E[Y USD250,000 MEKE

& 3@A%250,0003 7T
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45.
(CONTINUED)

B A R (AR

R2024F 128318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2024 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
Ealio A BRTEE AR LR
8 ok 1T 3 B R 2 B MR EE ZEDH FTEEK
Direct Indirect
B A
Singapore Service Residence Singapore Ordinary shares - 100.00  Property investment
Pte. Ltd. ESMIES SGD1,250,000 MERE
1,250,000%7 i3& T
Xpress Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100.00  Securities trading
FREERRAF BB HK$1,260,000 BHEE
R il
1,260,000/ 7T
ZH USA, LLC USA Note (i) 100.00 — Investment holding
== EsH() REZER
Xingcheng Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1 - 100.00  Investment holding
B R B R A A B TR ATT LB R
EEBAEEIREZAMAER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Investment holding
Note (ii) R R R RMB1,000,000 REZER
(D) EERIIE-ZN
AR #1,000,0007T
FESFR B B X AR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) B B A RMB400,000,000 MR
Bt i) S E AR
AR #400,000,0007T
B EEREXERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) FRE A RMB50,000,000 MR
S (i) M E AR
AR #50,000,0007C
AEEEHEEEXEGR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) FE HEARM RMB50,000,000 YIEIR
fF 3 (i) & AR
AR #50,000,0007T
T IEEEHEEBRAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) HEL R B A RMB300,000,000 L EL
B3 (i) & AR

A #300,000,0007T
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

45.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2024 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share
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B A R (AR

R2024F 128318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
Eaiy oAV ORITEE DB EEER
=18 o fHf itk B K2 % 3 3t BE TR A EE 2B FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ i
IR FEEBRAR] PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R E A RMB50,000,000 YIEER
Esa(D) FERE A
AR #50,000,0007C
TERAEEFRAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (il B, B A RMB50,000,000 e S35
BRF 3E Gi) &
AR #50,000,0007C
T EFREEFR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development,
Note (ii) PR R At RMB50,000,000 project management
B i) &R services
AR #50,000,0007C YIEERE - 1B EERY
FEIERENEEAR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R E R RMB100,000,000 3
()] EERIE= 7N
AE#100,000,0007T
S IEEHBEX AR AT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (il B, B RMB100,000,000 TR
B 5 (i) EEAR
AR #100,000,0007C
AEEEFMEEXER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) R E A RMB50,000,000 MEER
RT3 (i) &R
AR #50,000,0007C
T E R R B AR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R B B At RMB100,000,000 LR
Esa(D) FERE A
AR#100,000,0007T
bR EEEEERNA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development,
Note (ii) FRER, R B R RMB300,000,000 project management
B 3£ (i) & services

A #300,000,0007T

PERER - AR EERE
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45. MIBRARBE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2024 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

R2024F 128318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
Ealio A ORITEE RN T E LR
£ REf it B % 24t BE R A EE ZEAH FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ k3
IR EGEEERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development,
Note (ii) FRE R R A RMB200,000,000 project management
B (i) RIIE=ZS services
AR#200,000,0007T YRR - BB BERG
A IEREE R B X ER AT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R B B A RMB100,000,000 YIEER
()
R IERE TR ER R AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (il Bt B RMB100,000,000 MERR
Bt 2 i) AR
AE#100,000,0007T
TR EXFRAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R h B RMB50,000,000 MEBR
T () AR
AR #50,000,0007T
MEEEREEEBRAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (il R, R B P RMB100,000,000 E 3
B 5 i)
AREIEEASEEER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development,
Note (ii) R A RMB100,000,000 project management
B 52 i) & AR services
AR #100,000,0007T V¥R - THE BERE
AL EEER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) PR R RMB100,000,000 MEER
(D) &R
AER#100,000,0007T
AEEEeEEFXEER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development

Note (ii)
Bt 22 i)

R E At

RMB100,000,000
A EAR
AR#100,000,0007T

MRER
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

45.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2024 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share
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B A R (AR

R2024F 128318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
Eaiy oAV ORITEE AN TGRS
ZB o fHf itk B K2 % 3 3t BE TR A EE 2B FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ i
S IEEREKEE AR AT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (i) B E A RMB100,000,000 YR
BT 3K (i) FERE A
AR#100,000,0007T
T REEER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (i) F B B A RMB100,000,000 YRR
B2 i) & AR
AR#100,000,0007T
A EEFINEEBR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) PR R RMB100,000,000 MEER
EhERa(D) &R
AER#100,000,0007T
A RAREZEBRAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) E R E A RMB20,000,000 33
B 5 (i) A EZ
AR #20,000,0007T
EERTAREEERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i B B A RMB100,000,000 MR
P 3 G A&
AR #100,000,0007C
S EEEBEEXAR AT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) B E A RMB100,000,000 MEER
AR
AR #100,000,0007T
AT EE FREERRAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) R E A RMB100,000,000 MIEER
BT 3K (i) FEE A
AR#100,000,0007T
SEEFEEEEEAR AT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development

Note (ii)
B 52 i)

R FRE AL

RMB100,000,000
2NN
AR #100,000,0007T

MRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

Zensun Enterprises Limited

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45.
(CONTINUED)

B A R (AR

R2024F 128318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2024 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
Ealio A ORITEE DB EEER
=18 ok 1T 3 B R 2 B R A EE 2B FEEK
Direct Indirect
B A
REIREE EAR A A PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 60.00 Property development
Note (i) B B A RMB200,000,000 MEER
Esa(D) & AR
AR#200,000,0007T
A ENEEXAR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) R B B A RMB100,000,000 e
B 52 i) & AR
AR#100,000,0007T
SRR TIREAR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) PR R RMB100,000,000 MEER
() &R
AER#100,000,0007T
R EEAR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (i) FhE A RMB100,000,000 YIEBE
BT =E Gi) EER =N
AE#100,000,0007T
AERREMEXEGRAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 60.00 Property development
Note (ii) H B B A RMB300,000,000 MR
B 5 (i) FEEAR
AR #300,000,0007C
ERInE B ERNDER AT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) B E A RMB100,000,000 MEER
RT3 (i) FEREAR
AR #100,000,0007T
TAEMNEEEERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R E A RMB20,000,000 MIEER
Esa(D) & AR
AR #20,000,0007C
REBREEZARAA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) R B B A RMB100,000,000 e
B i) & AR

AE#100,000,0007T
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

45.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2024 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Annual Report 2024 & Z Q& F IR

B A R (AR

R2024F 128318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
Eaiy oAV ORITEE AN TGRS
ZB o fHf itk B K2 % 3 3t BE TR A EE 2B FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ i
KSR BEEERE AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) R E A RMB50,000,000 YRR
BT 3K (i) FERE A
AR #50,000,0007C
EFESHEEAR AT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (i) B, B A RMB100,000,000 YRR
R0 & AR
AR#100,000,0007T
A EEF A EERRAA] PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 90.00  Property development
Note (ii) R R R RMB100,000,000 MEER
EhERa(D) &R
AER#100,000,0007C
A EEEMEFEER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) R E B A RMB100,000,000 YRR
B 5 (i) A EZ
AE#100,000,0007T
R IER MEEEBR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (i) E B A RMB100,000,000 MR
P 3 G A&
AR #100,000,0007C
TEEREXFRAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital — 100.00  Property development
Note (i) B E A RMB100,000,000 MEER
RT3 (i) AR
AR #100,000,0007C
RN FEXEAR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (i) R E A RMB50,000,000 YRR
BT 3K (i) FERE A
AR #50,000,0007C
SENEEXERE AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (il B, B A RMB100,000,000 YRR
iR & AR

AE#100,000,0007T

189



190

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B mRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ ZE2024F12 431 H ILF[E

45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45.
(CONTINUED)

Zensun Enterprises Limited

B A R (AR

R2024F 128318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2024 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
Ealio A BRTEE DB EEER
=18 ok 1T 3 B R 2 B R A EE 2B FTEEK
Direct Indirect
B A
T REREBEEBR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 70.00  Property development
Note (ii) HEL R B At RMB100,000,000 e
Esa(D) & AR
AR#100,000,0007T
R EImEXER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R B B A RMB200,000,000 e
B 52 i) ERIIE=ZN
AR#200,000,0007T
B B R E AR AR AT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) PR R RMB50,000,000 MEER
() EERIIE- %N
AR #50,000,0007C
HMNBEEZERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 51.00 Property development
Note (i) FE A RMB10,000,000 YIEBE
B =5 (i) EER =N
AR #10,000,0007C
EEMEREFXEAR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 90.00  Property development
Note (i) T E o B R RMB20,000,000 MR
B 5 (i) EEAR
AR #20,000,0007C
BRI EEmEXARAA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 90.00  Property development
Note (i) B E A RMB20,000,000 MEER
RT3 (i) &R
AR #20,000,0007T
B EEEREEBR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 99.90 Property development
Note (ii) R E A RMB30,000,000 LR
Esa(D) & AR
AR #30,000,0007T
AL IHEEAR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development

Note (ii)
B 32 i)

FREL R EAL

RMB50,000,000
A& 2R
AR #50,000,0007T

MRER
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

45.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2024 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Annual Report 2024 & Z Q& F IR

B A R (AR

R2024F 128318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
ML BRTERE DB EEER
=18 SR B 2 B TR A EE 2B FTEEK
Direct Indirect
B i
KGR BEEBR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) B, B A RMB20,000,000 WEBE
Esa(D) & AR
AR #20,000,0007C
IFE I EEBEHEEAR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii B,/ B i RMB30,000,000 MR
Ea(0) & AR
AR #30,000,0007C
BEAREEZGR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R RMB50,000,000 MEER
BT 5 (i) &R
AR #50,000,0007C
BNTELEFXER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (il B, B RMB20,000,000 METR
()] EER =N
AE#20,000,0007T
BREEMBEXEERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (il B, B A RMB20,000,000 MR
B 5 (i) EEA
AR #20,000,0007T
BILEFHEXGRAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) R E A RMB20,000,000 MEER
BT 35 (i) &R
AR #20,000,0007C
HILWZEEFXBRAA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R E A RMB30,000,000 MIEER
Esa(D) & AR
AR #30,000,0007C
BEMEREXERAT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R E A RMB20,000,000 e
BRF 3K Gi) & AR

A #20,000,0007T

191



192

EBREXEARAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

Zensun Enterprises Limited

HE2024F12A31HIEFE

45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 45.
(CONTINUED)

B A R (AR

R2024F 128318 * ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2024 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
Ealio A ORITEE DB EEER
=18 ok 1T 3 B R 2 B R A EE 2B FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ k3
FINBZEEREEXERAA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R E A RMB20,000,000 YIEER
Esa(D) & AR
AR #20,000,0007C
BAOmEZEFHAEEERAT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 56.00 Property development
Note (il B,/ B i RMB10,000,000 MEHR
Ea(0) & AR
AR #10,000,0007C
AN EREFEKEFR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R RMB100,000,000 MEER
BT 5 (i) &R
AER#100,000,0007T
T rRRIEE X ERAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (il hE T E AN RMB20,000,000 e
BT =E (i) EERIE= N
AE#20,000,0007T
TEENEXARAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (ii B R RMB50,000,000 MR
BT (i) FEREAR
AR #50,000,0007T
T IEEREREEBR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i B B A, RMB50,000,000 L4
RT3 (i) &R
AR #50,000,0007C
B EEEEXERAA] PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) R E A RMB20,000,000 MIEER
Esa(D) & AR
AR #20,000,0007C
B EEBEXER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 41.00 Property development
Note (ii) R E A RMB20,000,000 e
Ea(D) & AR

A #20,000,0007T
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45. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES
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45. MEBLRAHME(E)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2024 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered share

20245128318 * AR EEHB AR Z?

£ (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name place of business capital to the Company Principal activities
ML BRTERE DB EEER
=18 SR B 2 B MR EE ZED FTEEK
Direct Indirect
B ik
ENGIEEmEXER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R E A RMB20,000,000 YIEER
B (i) & AR
AR #20,000,0007C
RIGSEE S EA RN A PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00 Property development
Note (ii) R E A RMB20,000,000 e
Ea(0) & AR
AR #20,000,0007C
LR EHEXARAR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (ii) R RMB20,000,000 MEER
Pt 32 i) &R
AR #20,000,0007C
A EE RN EERRAR] PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (il B, B RMB20,000,000 METR
Bt 22 i) EER =N
AR #20,000,0007C
PR EEEXEBR AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100.00  Property development
Note (il B, B A RMB30,000,000 MR
B i) EEA
AR #30,000,0007C
EEEEIEXER AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital = 100.00  Property development
Note (i) R E A RMB10,000,000 MEER
Esa(D) & AR
AR #10,000,0007T
Notes: Hiat -

193

BIEERERTTHRE @ BRUEREERNEBL
ARBKERA] °

0] No capital contribution is required from the member unless otherwise (i)
required by law.

RABERZEBRERDA - BRKILRE
BHES RSB A -

(ii) Entities established in the PRC are limited liability companies with no (ii)
English names registered or available upon establishment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 £ ZE2024F12 431 H ILF[E

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 46. REHEEE
There was no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group after 31 R2024F12 A31H#%& - AEBEMEEITERE
December 2024. ANEABETE -

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47. #EBEERE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the B ISR E R 2025F 3 A28 H EE F b/ kX
board of directors on 28 March 2025. FETI|BE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B HME

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12H31HILLEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024%F 20235 20224 20214 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T ARMT T ARMT T AR¥T T

Results B
Revenue e zs 9,542,095 20,034,898 9,657,056 13,421,496 8,069,061
(Loss)/profit for the year ERE(ER), BT (9,179,011) (2,247,272) (2,942,527) 385,042 778,373
Attributable to: FE1h -
Owners of the Company RNATER A (2,181,963) (2,298,458) (2,946,113) 399,470 782,988
Non-controlling interests FEE IR A 9,028 51,186 3,586 (14,428) (4,615)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEE(EHER) wA (2,172,935) (2,247,272) (2,942,527) 385,042 778,373
As at 31 December
M12831H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024%F 2023%F 2022%F 20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Total assets BEE 39,497,728 46,399,320 61,543,899 68,239,873 67,152,356
Total liabilities BEE 38,535,051 43,275,202 56,223,654  (60,041,216)  (59,263,541)
Net assets FEE 962,677 3,124,118 5,320,245 8,198,657 7,888,815
Non-controlling interests AR M 2 (64,871) (55,545) (4,211) (185) (14,885)
Equity attributable to EATEEA

owners of the Company FE(E R 897,806 3,068,573 5,316,034 8,198,472 7,873,930
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FTEREVHBE

As at 31 December 2024

R2024%12 A31H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BREYE
Gross area
Location (approximately) Effective % held Type Lease term
1 B HWEE BRERRE 5l HY
(K) (%)

No. 883 North Bridge Road, 24,329 sq.ft. 100% Home Office Long-term lease
22 Home Office Units on various floors, 24,329 /R REHAE REAFEA
Southbank, Singapore 198785

N3 Southbank L% #8835 % EE 2
2 22{BREHA B (Ep4R - 198785)

2 Residential Units, Dakota Residences, 3,660 sa.ft. 100% Apartment Long-term lease
34-42 Dakota Crescent, Singapore 399939 3,660F FR BhT REIAH

2 FAFT i Dakota Crescent 34-425%

Dakota Residencesz 2B =E & {7 (Ep#47 : 399939)

30/F and Carpark No. C8 on 2nd Carparking Floor, 3,480 sq.ft. 100% Office premises and Long-term lease
Wyndham Place, No. 44 Wyndham Street, 3,480F R Car Parking space  RHITHA)
Central, Hong Kong WREYHERBN

BEBPIREF MR ERPEES L
3018 K212 5 Ei5C85: B fi

Glen Carr House, 1433 North Hamilton Drive, 29,000 sq.ft. 99.8% Senior house Freehold
Derby, Kansas, 67037, U.S. 29,000 R communities KA

Glen Carr House iz 3 B8 & H7 /1 8 kb i REGERE
North Hamilton Drive 14335

Oxford Grand McKinney, 2851 Orchid Drive, 69,700 sq.ft. 99.8% Senior house Freehold
McKinney, Texas, 75070, U.S. 69,700F 5 R communities KAFERE

Oxford Grand McKinney iz /A3 B/ & Ei M 2SR fE REEREES
Orchid Drive 2851%%

Land parcels located at 671-180-012, 67.5 acres/ 100% Vacant land Freehold
013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018 273,200 sq.m./ =B+ KA
Desert Hot Springs, County of Riverside, 2,940,300 sq.ft.
State of California, 92503, U.S. 67.5m,

R SE BN A & 8 Desert Hot Springs 2 273,200 5%/
#38671-180-012 ~ 013 * 014 * 015 » 2,940,300 R
016017 - 018

Unit 330, 75 Wall Street, New York, NY 10005, U.S. 1,370 sq.ft. 100% Apartment Freehold

ERAAN AL T Wall Street 7557330 1,370F 5 IR B KA

Unit 37J, 75 Wall Street, New York, NY 10005, U.S. 445 sq.ft 100% Apartment Freehold

ERAAMNALITIWall Strest 755537 F 445F 1R B KA

Zhengzhou Zensun International Building, South of Qilihe 20,372 sq.ft. 100% Commercial and office  Commercial Leasehold
South Road and the west of Jiayuan Road Zhengdong 20,372F ;R properties P SE R R R A 50 AR
New District, Zhengzhou City PEERBAYE

BN ER BB AR » A BB TSR TR+ B R
LARS « BB AT
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